TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING
March 28, 2024 — 3:30 o’clock p.m.
Assembly Rooms 2 & 3 — Eugene L. Geil Pavilion
4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

The Board may take action on any of the items listed
below, unless the item is specifically labeled
“Informational Only”

Time
Agenda Item Allotted Requestor
Call to Order 3 min. Standard
Roll Call / Pledge of Allegiance
Approval of Agenda 2 min Standard
Public Comments — Announcement 2 min. Standard
Members of the public may address the Board regarding any item listed on
the Board Agenda at the time the item is being considered by the Board of
Directors. Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three
minutes, individually, to address the Board of Directors.
NOTE: Members of the public may speak on any item not listed on the
Board Agenda, which falls within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors,
immediately prior to Board Communications.
February 2024 Financial Statement Results 10 min. CFO
New Business —
a) Approval of the renewal of an agreement for the Medical Directorship for 5 min. COO
Opioid Stewardship Program with Ole Snyder, M.D., for a term of 12
months, beginning May 1, 2024 and ending April 30, 2025, for an annual
and total term cost not to exceed $18,000.
b) Approval of an agreement with Infor (US), Inc. for software support for a 5 min. CIO
term of 12 months, beginning June 1, 2024 and ending May 31, 2025 for
a total cost for the term of $459,384.
Old Business —
a) Affiliation Update — Information Only 5 min. CEO
Chief of Staff -
a) Consideration of March 2024 Credentialing Actions and 5 min. COoSs
Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff as recommended by the
Medical Executive Committee on March 25, 2024.

Note: This certifies that a copy of this agenda was posted in the entrance to the Tri-City Medical Center at 4002 Vista Way,
Oceanside, CA 92056 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting. Any writings or documents provided to the Board members of
Tri-City Healthcare District regarding any item on this Agenda is available for public inspection in the Administration Department
located at the Tri-City Medical Center during normal business hours.

Note: If you have a disability, please notify us at 760-940-3348 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting
so that we may provide reasonable accommodations.



Agenda Item

Time
Allotted

Requestor

Consent Calendar
(1) Board Committee
Director Younger, Committee Chair
(Lack of Quorum)

(2) Administrative Policies & Procedures
A. Patient Care Services

(a) Finance, Operations & Planning Committee

1) Code Caleb Response Plan Policy

2) Constavac Reinfusion of Blood Procedure

3) Electrocautery Machine Setup, Use and Safety Procedure

4) Emergency Cart (Crash Cart) Cardiopulmonary Arrest Policy

5) Epidural or Intrathecal Catheter Infusion in the Non-Laboring

Patient Procedure

) Gowning & Gloving Procedure

7) High Level Disinfection Procedure

8) HIV Testing: In an Occupational Exposure

9) Labeling Medication on and off the Sterile Field Procedure

10) Missing Patient

11) Obstetrical Patients Triage Policy

12) Pneumatic Tourniquet Use and Safety Procedure

13) Single Use Device, Reprocessing Procedure

14) Skin Antisepsis, Surgical/Procedural Policy

15) Special Order Durable Medical Equipment (DME) and
Specialty Beds Policy

16) Surgical Attire Policy

17) Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns Policy

18) Wound VAC, Negative Pressure Therapy Policy

Administrative 300 Patient Care
1) Conditions of Admission Form Delivery
2) Event Reporting 396

Administrative 500 Compliance

1) Business Associate Agreement Policy 511

2) Controls and Monitoring of Payments to Physicians or Other
Referral Sources 576

3) Faxing of Protected Health Information (Medical Records)
522

4) Hospital Issued Notice of Noncoverage of Medicare-
Covered Services (HINN) 398

5) Important Message From Medicare and Notification of
Hospital Discharge Appeal Rights 392

6) Notice of Privacy Practices Policy 518

Infection Control

1) Infection Prevention Program Plan

2) Infection Prevention Risk Assessment
3) Required Reporting Policy

Medical Staff

1) CME Speaker & Honoraria Reimbursement 8710 — 604

2) Educational Planning; Needs Assessment; Objectives; and
Evaluation of a Continuing Medical Education (CME)
Activity 8710 — 600

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -2-

10 min.

March 28, 2024




Agenda Item

Time
Allotted

Requestor

3) Joint Providership Co-Providership 8710- 602
4) Regularly Scheduled Series (RSS) 8710-606

F. Pharmacy
1) Medication Error Reduction Plan (MERP)

G. Pulmonary
1) Pulmonary — Scope of Services

H. Rehabilitation
1) NICU Scope & Qualifications 505

.  Surgical Services

1) Anesthesia Equipment Policy

2) Block Time Policy

3) Bumping Surgery Procedures Policy

4) CPR in Surgical Services Policy

5) Food & Drink, Surgery Policy

6) Hysteroscopy Policy

7) Operating Room (OR) Committee Policy

8) Patient Transport to the Perioperatiave Environment Policy
9) Perioperative Documentation
10) Perioperative Standards of Practice Policy
11) Positioning the Surgical Patient Policy
12) Protective Barriers, Materials for Gowns and Drapes Policy
13) Scope of Service for Surgical Services Policy
14) Standard Precautions in Surgery Policy
15) Surgical Patients with Implanted Electronic Devices
16) Surgical Supply Stocking, Rotation and Outdate

(3) Minutes

a) Special Meeting — February 28, 2024
b) Regular Meeting — February 24, 2024

(4) Reports — (Discussion by exception only)

a) Building Lease Report — (February, 2024)
b) Reimbursement Disclosure Report — (February, 2024)

10

Discussion of ltems Pulled from Consent Agenda

10 min.

Standard

11

Comments by Members of the Public

NOTE: Per Board Policy 19-018, members of the public may have three (3)
minutes, individually and 15 minutes per subject, to address the Board on
any item not on the agenda.

5-10
minutes

Standard

12

Comments by Chief Executive Officer

5 min.

Standard

13

Board Communications

18 min.

Standard

14

Total Time Budgeted for Open Session

1 hour

15

Adjournment

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting Agenda -3-

March 28, 2024




@
Tri-City Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MARCH 28, 2024
MEDICAL DIRECTOR - OPIOID STEWARDSH{P PROGRAM

Type of Agreement X | Medical Directors Panel Other:
I- -
Status of Agreement New Agreement IS x | Renewal - Same
Rates Rates

Physician’s Names: Ole Snyder, M.D.
Area of Service: Medical Director- Opioid Stewardship Program

Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning, May 1, 2024 - Ending, April 30, 2025

Maximum Totals: Within Hourly and/or Annualized Fair Market Value: YES
Renewal, no change in rate
: 'Maximum Hours | Maximum Cos! *,é' %‘ﬁ, nua !a,lrr m
nth | perM ) | Cost(NTE)

$150/hr. 10 hours $1,500 $18,000

Description of Services:

e Medical Directorship agreement with responsibilities over the newly established opioid stewardship program
with duties to include leading a multidisciplinary team to provide best practice recommendations in inpatient,
ED, and outpatient settings.

¢ In collaboration with District representatives, the Medical director will heip develop policies and protocols that
will drive community standards to reduce opioid consumption, dispensing, and dependence through innovative
programs. Not only are these programs expected to provide a service that enhances the health and wellness of
the community we serve, but will work to establish a positive alliance and reputation within our local
community.

« The medical director will have shared responsibility for the quality of the program.

Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: X Yes No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Ellen Langenfeld, Director of Pharmacy Services / Gene Ma, M.D., Chief
Executive Officer

Motion:

| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the renewal of the Medical Directorship for Opioid Stewardship
Program with services provided by Ole Snyder, M.D. for a term of 12 months, beginning May 1, 2024 and ending, April
30, 2025, for an annual and total term cost not to exceed $18,000.



@
Tri-City Medical Center

TCHD BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE OF MEETING: MARCH 28, 2024
SOFTWARE SUPPORT PROPOSAL

her: Soft
Type of Agreement Medical Directors Panel X S ware
Support
- Renewal - Sam
Status of Agreement New Agreement X G LS €
Rates Rates
Vendor’'s Name: Infor (US), Inc.
Area of Service: Finance & Information Technology
Term of Agreement: 12 months, Beginning June 1, 2024 - Ending May 31, 2025
| Annual/TermCost
$459,384
Description of Services/Supplies:
s Software support for Lawson System Foundation, as well as the following sub-systems:
o Financials Asset Management
o Financials Account Payable
o Financials General Ledger
o Payroll
e Additionally, this agreement covers TCMC's interface engine {Cloverleaf).
e This represents an increase of $26,337 to the previous agreement.
Document Submitted to Legal for Review: X Yes No
Approved by Chief Compliance Officer: Yes N/A No
Is Agreement a Regulatory Requirement: Yes X No
Budgeted Item: X Yes No

Person responsible for oversight of agreement: Mark Albright, Chief Information Officer

Motion:
| move that the TCHD Board of Directors authorize the agreement with Infor (US), Inc. for software support for a term of
12 months beginning June 1, 2024 and ending May 31, 2025 for a total cost for the term of $459,384.



Q) Tri-City
c@ !

‘ Medical Center
MEDICAL STAFF

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF INITIAL CREDENTIALS REPORT
March 13,2024

Attachment A
INITIAL APPOINTMENTS (Effective Dates: 3/29/2024 - 2/28/2026)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. Verification of licensure, specific training, patient care experience,
interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, current competence relating to medical knowledge, has been
verified and evaluated on all applicants recommended for initial appointment to the medical staff. Based upon this

information, the following physicians have met the basic requirements of staff and are therefore recommended for
appointment effective 3/29/2024 through 2/28/2026:




Tri-City
Medical Center

MEDICAL STAEFF

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT -1 of 1

March 13, 2024

Attachment B

BIENNIAL REAPPOINTMENTS: (Effective Dates 04/01/2024 - 3/31/2026)

Any items of concern will be “red” flagged in this report. The following application was recommended for
reappointment to the medical staff office effective 04/01/2024 through 03/31/2026, based upon practitioner
specific and comparative data profiles and reports demonstrating ongoing monitoring and evaluation, activities
reflecting level of professionatism, delivery of compassionate patient care, medical knowledge based upon
outcomes, interpersonal and communications skills, use of system resources, participation in activities to
improve care, blood utilization, medical records review, department specific monitoring activities, health status
and relevant results of clinical performance:

* AVILA, Afonso, DO/Emergency Medicine/Provisional
« BALL Lindsey, MD/Emergency Medicine /Active

«  BASERL David. MD/Oncology/Provisional

«  BERRY. lulie MD/Otol logy /Acti

. - Davi i rovisional
. Activ
¢« RUTTENBERG.T D I' ici isi 1

«  SAXON. Richard R. MD/I ional Radiology/Acti
«  SHUMATE Wendy A. MD/I | Medicine/Acti

Pagelof2



(2 Wiedidal center

MEDICAL STAFF

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
MEDICAL STAFF CREDENTIALS REPORT -1 of 1
March 13, 2024

Attachment B

UPDATE TO NOVEMBER REAPPOINTMENT:

¢« BARVALIA, Mihir, MD/Cardi
The provider is requesting TAVR, Watchman and Percutaneous device for PFO and ASD privileges and has
met criteria for the privileges WITH proctoring.

RESIGNATIONS: (Effective date 3/31/2024 unless otherwise noted)

Automatic:

«  BUTLER. lan MD/Critical Care/Provisional
«  MARION. Phillips. MP/Oncology /Provisional

Voluntary:
«  SAMEE. Ali. MD/Tel hi

MBOC:

. .
The provider is on a 35-month probation imposed by the CA Medical Board effective February 23, 2024. The
Department Chairman has reviewed and the provider's license will be monitored for any updates.

NPDB: None

Page 2 of 2



Tri-City
Medical Center

2

TRI-CITY MEDlCAL CENTER

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT - Part3 of 3
March 13, 2024

PROCTORING RECOMMENDATIONS

e  BUTLER.lan. MD Critical Care Medici

Release from Proctoring: Admit patients, Consultation, including via
telemedicine(F) and sleep tests/polysomnography,
perform history & physical examination, including via
telemedicine (F), General Critical Care and
Administration of Moderate sedation.

* FERNANDEZ Genaro. MD Interventional Cardiology
Release from Proctoring: Admission of Patient in Inpatient Services, Performance

of History and Physical Examination, including via
telemedicine, Performance of a Cardiac Consultation,
including via telemedicine, Supervision of an approved
category of Allied Health Practitioner, Basic invasive
procedures including Swan-Ganz Catheter insertion &
monitoring and Cardiac Catheterization procedures.

e FOOLADIAN. Siyavash.MD Anesthesiology

Release from Proctoring: Consultation including via telemedicine (F), Evaluate
and treat patients with anesthesia related problems,
perform history and physical examination, including via
telemedicine (F), General Anesthesia, and Invasive
Monitoring includes: Arterial line, Central line, Midline
and Pulmonary Artery catheters, Cardiac Anesthesia
Transesophageal Echocardiography (TEE).

* LAREAUX, Danjel. MD Emergency
Release from Proctoring: Deep Sedation
* LLRobin.MD
Release from Proctoring: Consultation including via telemedicine (F), Evaluate

and treat patients with anesthesia related problems,
perform history and physical examination, including via
telemedicine (F), General Anesthesia, and Invasive
Monitoring includes: Arterial line, Central line, Midline
and Pulmonary Artery catheters, Cardiac Anesthesia
Transesophageal Echocardiography (TEE).



Medical Center

TRI-CITY MEDICAL CENTER
CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT - Part 3 of 3
March 13, 2024

@ity

«  IOSHL Raj. MD Critical Care Medici
Release from Proctoring: Admit patients, Consultation, including via
telemedicine(F) and sleep tests/polysomnography,
perform history & physical examination, including via
telemedicine {F), General Critical Care and
Administration of Moderate sedation.

e PORTER. Douglas. MD Teleneurology
Release from Proctoring: Intraoperative Neurophysiological Menitoring and
Interpretation.
* SANTA MARIA. Amanda, MD Emergency
Release from Proctoring: General Patient Care

L ]
UDANL Vikram, MD
Release from Proctoring: Admit patients, Consultation, including via telemedicine
(F), Consultation, including via telemedicine (F), History
and physical examination, including via telemedicine
{F), Cranial/Skull Base Category, Spine Category and
Nervous System Category.

UPD OCTORING:
« SHEREV. Dimitri. MD/Cardiol

The provider with TAVR & Watchman privileges continues WITH proctoring,.



% : ,
(C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA

March 18, 2024
CONTACT: Donald Dawkins, CNE

Policies and Procedures Reason Recommendations
Patient Care Services
. Forward to BOD
1. Code Caleb Response Plan Policy RETIRE for Approval
. . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
2. Constavac, Reinfusion of Blood Procedure practice change for Approval
3. Electrocautery Machine Setup, Use and Safety 3 year review Forward to BOD
Procedure y for Approval
4. Emergency Cart (Crash Cart) Cardiopulmonary Arrest . Forward to BOD
Policy Practice change for Approval
5. Epidural or Intrathecal Catheter Infusion in the Non- 3 year review, Forward to BOD
Laboring Patient Procedure practice change for Approval
. . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
6. Gowning & Gloving Procedure practice change for Approval
7. High Level Disinfection Procedure 3 year review F"fgfi'sggfgo
o . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
8. HIV Testing: In an Occupational Exposure practice change for Approval
9. Labeling Medication on and off the Sterile Field 3 vear review Forward to BOD
Procedure Y for Approval
_ . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
10.Missing Patient practice change for Approval
. . . . Forward to BOD
11. Obstetrical Patients Triage Policy RETIRE for Approval
12.Pneumatic Tourniquet Use and Safety Procedure 3 year review Fagfirg ptr%\? ;'? 2
. . . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
13.Single Use Device, Reprocessing Procedure practice change for Approval
. ) . . . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
14.Skin Antisepsis, Surgical/Procedurai Policy practice change for Approval
15. Special Order Durable Medical Equipment (DME) and RETIRE Forward to BOD
Specialty Beds Policy for Approval
. . . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
e Y practice change for Approval
e e . . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
17. Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns Policy practice change for Approval
18.Wound VAC, Negative Pressure Therapy Policy RETIRE F‘;g’ﬂg;:’o\?g'j
Administrative 300 Patient Care
1. Conditions of Admission Form Delive NEW Lol
: Y for Approval
. 3 year review, Forward to BOD
2. Event Reporting 396 practice change for Approval

l Administrative 500 Compliance

Page 1




2
‘C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA

March 18th, 2024

CONTACT: Donald Dawkins, CNE

Recommendations

Policies and Procedures Reason
. . . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
1. Business Associate Agreement Policy 511 practice change for Approval
2. Controls and Monitoring of Payments to Physicians or 3 year review, Forward to BOD
Other Referral Sources 576 practice change for Approval
3. Faxing of Protected Health Information (Medical 3 year review, Forward to BOD
Records) 522 practice change for Approval
4. Hospital Issued Notice of Noncoverage of Medicare- 3 year review Forward to BOD
Covered Services (HINN) 398 for Approval
5. Important Message From Medicare and Notification of 3 year review Forward to BOD
Hospital Discharge Appeal Rights 392 for Approval
6. Notice of Privacy Practices Policy 518 p?aﬁ:: :argl\:;er:\_c’;'e Fofr::irgptrooe ,:? D

{nfection Control

1. Infection Prevention Program Plan

1 year review,

Forward to BOD

practice change for Approval
. i . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
2. Infection Prevention Risk Assessment practice change for Approval
. . . 3 year review, Forward to BOD
3. Required Reporting Policy practice change for Approval
Medical Staff
. . . Forward toc BOD
1. CME Speaker & Honoraria Reimbursement 8710 - 604 1 year review for Approval
2. Educational Planning; Needs Assessment; Objectives;
and Evaluation of a Continuing Medical Education 1 year review F%g:fg;fosg =
{CME) Activity 8710 - 600
3. Joint Providership Co-Providership 8710 - 602 1 year review Fofg:exg;;\l?a(l) D
. . Forward to BOD
4. Regularly Scheduled Series (RSS) 8710 - 606 1 year review for Approval
Pharmacy
N . 1 year review, Forward to BOD
1. Medication Error Reduction Plan (MERP) practice change for Approval
Pulmonary
1. Pulmonary - Scope of Services 3 year review Fig:?\rgpt.%?a? 2
Rehabilitation
. . Forward to BOD
1. NICU Scope & Qualifications 505 RETIRE for Approval
Surgical Services
: . . . Forward to BOD
1. Anesthesia Equipment Policy 3 year review for Approval

Page 2




)
‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

ADMINISTRATION CONSENT AGENDA

March 18, 2024

CONTACT: Donald Dawkins, CNE

Policies and Procedures Reason Recommendations
2. Block Time Policy 3 year review F‘}S’:’i’;’,}&?ﬁ 0
3. Bumping Surgery Procedures Policy 3 year review F?r::irg;%\?g ?
4. CPR in Surgical Services Policy 3 year review F?ﬁg;ﬁﬁﬁ ?
5. Food and Drink, Surgery Policy 3 year review Faxfg,;%?; v
6. Hysteroscopy Policy 3 year review F?’:ﬁgﬁﬁfg 0
7. Operating Room (OR) Committee Policy 3 year review F?Sfi{g;ﬁ,?ﬁ 0
8. Igzltilc?;t Transport to the Perioperative Environment T Fofgll\_fif gr:::) EaCI)D
9. Perioperative Documentation 3 year review Faxirg;%\?g v
10. Perioperative Standards of Practice Policy 3 year review F?OTEKS;%ES g
11. Positioning the Surgical Patient Policy 3 year review Fofonfirg,:%?a? ?
12. g;o"t:;tive Barriers; Materials for Gowns and Drapes 3 year review Fofg:z;rg pt;)o \I/aacl)D
13.Scope of Service for Surgical Services Policy 3 year review Fc;g:irg;%?;) .
14. Standard Precautions in Surgery Policy 3 year review F%U:EXS;::;?S ?
15. Surgical Patients with Implanted Electronic Devices 3 year review Fc;g::irg;;?g P
16. Surgical Supply Stocking, Rotation and Outdate 3 year review Fﬁgf?g;}g)\?;? °

Page 3




@ Tri-City Medical Center | RETIRE - no longer required
Oceanside, California with suspension of Women
and Newborn Services

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 11/11 SUBJECT: Code Caleb Response Plan

REVISION DATE(S): 02/12, 01/18, 03/16, 04/2020

Patient Care Services Content ExpertDepartment Approval: 04/4802/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02/1812/23

Nursmge LeadershlpExeeut»we-Gounell Approval 03!—18—08#2201!24
Department of Emergency Medlclne Approval 06/18

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 67/1802/24
Administration Approval: 08/1803/24

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nla

Board of Directors Approvat: 08/18




Patient Care Service
Code Caleb Response Flan
Fage 2 of 4

a. NI-G-UNHFGG— .




Patierl Care Service
Code Caleb Response Plan
Page Jof 4

mmmmmmmﬁm@d&m
f—— EQNupee-
= Responsible for the initial resuscitation effeds:
b. -—M%%mﬂ%@%ﬂ%ﬁmm




Patent Care Service
Code Caleb Response Plan
Page 4 of 4

b —Arrange for transport to the ED o MHGHascooha6-poseible



‘c‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

CONSTAVAC®, REINFUSION OF BLOOD

Purpose:

To provide guidelines for the RN regarding reinfusion of autologous blood via the
constavac reinfusion system.

Supportive Data:

The reinfusion of collected autologous whole blood carries specific contraindications
and requires specific practices

Equipment:

1. PPE
2. Constavac reinfusion system

1.
2.
3]
4

5.

6.

1.

2
3

1.

POLICY:

The operating surgeon shall identify patients who are candidates for the Constavac reinfusion
blood collection system in the operating room.

A physician's/Allied Health Professional's (AHP) order is required for blood reinfusion.

No reinfusion shall be initiated more than six (6) hours after the initiation of drainage.

The reinfusion shall be administered through blood tubing, using a forty (40) micro aggregate
filter.

Blood tubing shall be flushed using only 0.9% NaCl solution. No other solution of medication
shall be added to or administered concurrently through the same intravenous (IV) tubing.
Should the Constavac become contaminated or have a leak, reinfusion shall not be initiated.

PACU AND INPATIENT UNITS:

Upon arrival to the Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU) or the patient’s room, the registered

nurse (RN) shall assess the drain for suction and drainage.

The Constavac drain shall remain upright at all times.

The RN shall verify that the red vacuum indicator is inverted.

a. If the red vacuum indicator is not inverted, initiate drainage by setting the vacuum dial at
number Il unless otherwise indicated by the physician/AHP.

The RN shall note the type and amount of drainage in electronic health record (EHR)Gerner

with each vital sign.

When the drainage amount has reached 300 - 400 mL, the RN shall begin the first reinfusion of

autologous blood

PROCEDURE:

Initiating first reinfusion:

a. Uncoil the blood bag and tubing. Hold the blood bag tubing so that it forms & half loop at
the base of the reservoir while the bag is below the level of the reservoir.

b. Fully depress and hold down the release lever on top of the Constavac unit to transfer
blood into the blood bag.
i 75 - 100 mL of blood will automatically remain in the reservoir.

C. When transfer is complete, release the lever and use slide clamp to clamp off the blood
bag tubing as close to the blood bag as possible.

d. Once the lever is released, the red vacuum indicator will become inverted and regain

constant negative pressure.

Reinfuse utilizing the standard blood administration tubing set and a forty (40) micro

aggregate blood filter.

Record the time and amount of blood reinfused in EHRGerner.

Repeat the above process for further reinfusion when the drainage has reached 200 -

300 mL of blood within the six {6) hour time frame.

5

03/24Department
Review

Nursing
Leadership
Grosutive
Commitios

Professional
Affairs
Committee

Medical
Executive
Committee

Pharmacy &
Therapeutics
Committes

Clinical
Policies &
Procedures

Operating
Room
Committee

Board of
Directors

Admini
stration

11112, 0817,
01/23

02113, 02118,
nfa

1212, 0917,
01/23

12209977 | 12117, 02124 n/a 01/18, 02/24 02113, 02/18




Patient Care Services
Constavac, Reinfusion of Blood

Page 2 of 2

g-h. Ifless than 100 mL blood collected within 4 hours, discard the system or use the

system for drainage only.
2. Wound Drainage:

a. Six (6) hours after initiation of system discontinue blood tubing and reinfusion portion of
the Constavac system.

b. Cut the reinfusion tubing approximately two (2) inches from the reservoir, discard bag
and blood tubing in a red bio hazardous waste bag and cap the end of the tubing using
red cap.

C. Measure wound drainage output directly on the reservoir. Mark the time and amount of
output on the canister and record in EHRGerRer.

3. Change the reservoir when the air filter becomes saturated, as necessary to maintain system, or
when canister is % full.

a. Using aseptic technique, clamp evacuator tubing on each side of the quick connect.

b. Twist quick connect to separate evacuator tubing from the canister.

c. Discard Y-connector portion of evacuator tube from the new unit.

d. Attach quick connect of the new unit to quick connect of evacuator tube attached to the
patient.

e. Set the vacuum level at prescribed setting, and unclamp tubing.

f. Ensure that vacuum indicator is inverted.

D. REFERENCE(S):
1. CBC Hl Constavac Blood Conservation System Operating instructions. (7/2019) Retrieved

+

January 17,2023 from www.3TMedical.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/0225-028-707-
cbe-ifu-rev-v-1.pdf




=)
(c‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

ELECTROCAUTERY MACHINE SETUP, USE AND SAFETY

Purpose:

To outline nursing responsibilities in the set-up and safe operation of the electrocautery
machine.

Equipment:

Electrocautery machine )

Adult dispersive electrode (grounding pad)

Safety holster

Cautery pencil (hand activated) and accessory tip(s)
Foot pedal — Monopolar

Foot pedal — Bipolar

Scratch pad

PROCEDURE:

1.

The electro surgery unit (ESU), dispersive electrode, and active electrode selected for use shall

meet the following performance and safety criteria:

Use according to manufacturer’s instructions for use (IFU).

Design shall minimize unintentional activation.

Cord shall be of adequate tength and flexibility.

The machine shall be inspected by the surgical/procedural team before each use.

The ESU shall be appropriately grounded for each use.

The ESU and all reusable parts shall be cieaned according to manufacturer's IFU.

Personnel shall check the entire circuit if higher than normal power settings are

requested during the surgical procedure.

Each ESU shall be assigned an identification number and shalt have routine scheduled

preventive mainténance performed, per Engineering Policy: Preventive Maintenance.

Ensure the electrocautery machine has a current Bio-Medical Engineering Preventative

Maintenance (PM) sticker.

i. Position the machine near sterile field. The machine, cord, and accessories shall be kept
away from fluids and protected from spills.

i. Containers of liquids should not be placed on energy-generating devices, as
liquids may enter the device and cause unintentional activation, device failure, or
an electrical hazard.

if. Foot pedal accessories should be encased in a fluid-resistant cover when there
is potential for fluid spills.

> @~e0aooTy

2. Personnel shall demonstrate competency with the ESU prior to use:

a. Personnel shall be instructed in the proper operation, care and handling of the ESU
before use.

b. The device manufacturer's IFU shall be readily available to users.

3. Follow fire safety precautions while using an ESU, per Patient Care Services (PCS) procedure

Fire Prevention and Management in Invasive Procedure Areas.

4 The ESU, active electrode, and dispersive electrode shall be used in a manner that reduces the
potential for injury, including the following safety measures:

a. Do not use in the presence of flammable agents (alcohol-based prep solutions and other
flammable agents must be allowed sufficient time to dry and fumes to dissipate before
draping and/or use of an ESU).

b. Use caution during head and neck surgery when using an active electrode in the
presence of combustible anesthetic gases.

C. Test safety features (i.e., lights, activation sounds) before each use.

d. Check the cord, plug and footswitch for integrity before each use.

Pas}l:r'\‘r:ci:m Pgllllgli:: l& Nursing o':::::?g :.:‘;2::3%; E‘::::::" o | Admini Pm;:;::l::"a' Board of
CEc;l:::;t %'::‘0 ':;:tr:: Leaderahip Committes Committee Committee stration Committee Ll
6/08, 04111, 02111, 0113, 0311, 113, 111, 21 04/11, 2114,

0113, 078, | 8nd 0219 | 0918 D39, %;’112% - 0511;{132'124 o 06/19




Patient Care Services
Electrocautery Machine Setup Procedure

Page 2of 4

e.

f.

Verbally confirm the power settings with the operator before activation, and operate at

the lowest power settings possible to achieve the desired surgical effect.

Plug the ESU into an isclated electrical circuit.

Do not place other electrical equipment on top of or immediately next to the ESU. Allow

space between the ESU and other electrical equipment, to avoid interference and

potential inadvertent activation of the machines.

Sponges used near the active electrode tip should be moist to prevent unintentional

ignition.

Electrosurgery shouid not be used in the presence of gastrointestinal gases.

Electrosurgery should not be used in an oxygen-enriched environment.

i. The lowest possible oxygen concentrations that provide adequate patient
oxygenation shouid be used.

ii. Surgical drapes should be arranged to minimize the build-up of oxidizers under
the drape.

iii. The active electrode should be used as far from the oxygen source as possible.

Select and use a dispersive electrode (i.e., grounding pad) according to manufacturer's IFU.

ap oo

Inspect the grounding pad for damage prior to use.

Never cut pad to fit or alter grounding pad in any way.

Never use grounding pad when only bipolar cautery is being used.

Open grounding pad package as close to the time of use as possible and confirm the
manufacturer's expiration date has not passed. The longer the pad package is open, the
greater the potential for drying of the dispersive electrode's adhesive and conductive gel.

Select grounding pad site.

a.
b.

C.

—h

Place the grounding pad after the patient is in the final position for surgery/procedure.
Ensure the grounding pad site is clean and dry, over a large, well-perfused muscle
mass, intact skin, and as close to the operative site as possible.

Ensure grounding pad maintains uniform contact with the patient’s body throughout the
procedure.

Metal jewelry (including body piercings, subdermal implants, and transdermal or
microdermal implants) that is between the active and dispersive electrode should be
removed.

Place the grounding pad away from a warming device whenever possibie.

AVOID the following areas when selecting a site for grounding pad placement:

i. Over excessively hairy areas.

ii. Over scar tissue

iii. Over metal implants

iv. Qver bony prominences and potential pressure points
A Over skin folds

vi. Wet areas {pooled fluids)

vii. Areas distal to tourniquets

viii. Over tattoos, which may contain metallic dyes

The following corrective measures shall be performed for poor contact of a single use electrode:

~0oooTo

Apply a new grounding pad

Remove oil, lotion, moisture or prep solution

Remove excessive hair

Change sites

Never use tape to hold the single-use dispersive electrode in place.

If the patient is repositioned intraoperatively, the nurse should verify that the dispersive
electrode is in full contact with the patient's skin.

If two ESU’s will be used simultaneously during a procedure, a dispersive electrode should be
used for each ESU.

a.
b.

The dispersive electrodes should be placed as close as possible to the surgical site
The dispersive electrodes should not overlap.



Patient Care Services
Electrocautery Machine Setup Pracedure

Page 3 of 4

10.

1.
12.

13

14.

15.

16

17,

18.

c The dispersive electrodes should be placed equidistant from the surgical site when itis a
single site.

Plug grounding pad into cautery machine and turn on machine, per manufacturer's IFU.

a. Adjust the volume to ensure audible alerts when the cautery is in use.

b. Ensure connections are intact, clean, and make effective contact with the ESU.

The active electrode shall:

a. Fasten directly in the ESU in a stress-resistant receptacle (adapters shall be
manufacturer approved and not compromise safety features)

b. Be inspected on the field for damage prior to use.

C. Be inspected in a clean, dry, well-insulated safety holster when not in use, and used
according to manufacturer's IFL.

d. Be impervious to fluids.

e. Be disconnected from the ESU if allowed to drop below the sterile field.

f. Have a tip that is secure and easy to clean, and the tip shall never be altered, including
cut, bent, or used with an insulating sheath made from inappropriate matenials (i.e.,
rubber catheters).

g Be cleaned whenever there is visible eschar, which impedes the desired current flow,

causing the entire unit to function less effectively and serving as a fuel source for fire.
The ESU shall be used with foot pedal or hand-control forceps according to manufacturer's IFU.
If an active monopolar electrode is being used in a fluid-filled cavity, the fluid used should be an
electrically inert, near isotonic solution (i.e., sorbitol), unless the equipment manufacturer’s
written directions for use instruct otherwise.
Set ESU with desired power settings.
Adjust settings per physician preference.
a. Refer to manufacturer's IFU for adjusting
Energy-generating device cords should be secured to the sterile drapes with a plastic or other
non-conductive, non-piercing device, in a manner which does not crush or damage the cord.
Do not secure ESU cords to drapes with a metal instrument.
Be aware of potential patient safety hazards associated with implanted electronic device (IED)
(i.e., pacemaker, implantable cardioverter defibrillator [ICD], implantable hearing devices,
implantable infusion pumps, deep brain, vagal nerve, or spinai cord stimulator) and take
precautions to protect the patient from injury;

a. Patients with pacemakers shall have continuous electrocardiogram (ECG) monitoring
when an ESU is being used.
b. Additional precautions for patients with pacemakers include, but are not limited to:

i. Make the distance between the active and dispersive electrode as short as
possible, and place both as far from the pacemaker as possible.

il Ensure that the current path from the surgical site to the dispersive electrode
does not pass through the vicinity of the heart.

iii. Keep all ESU cords away from the pacemaker and the leads.

iv. Have a defibrillator available.
v. Check with the pacemaker's manufacturer regarding its function during the use of
an ESU.
C. Manage ICD's according to manufacturer's IFU and Surgical Services Policy: Patients

with AICD tmplant.
After completion of the case, turn off the ESU, dispose of single use items appropriately, clean
all reusable parts to the ESU, inspect accessories and parts for damage, function and
cleanliness, and carefully remove the dispersive electrode pad from the patient by peeling it
back stowly.
Documentation shall include:
a. Type of ESU
b ESU identification number
() ESU settings (minimum and maximum ranges)
d Location of dispersive electrode



Patient Care Services
Electrocautery Machine Setup Procedure

Page 4 of 4
e. Description of skin at dispersive electrode site pre- and post- procedure
f. Lot number of dispersive electrode
19, If injury occurs related to the ESU, the event must be reported to the manufacturer and/or the

Food and Drug Administration (FDA) to comply with the Safe Medical Devices Act {refer to
Administrative Policy: Equipment Medical Device Reporting Sequester - 201 ).

a. Immediately remove the ESU from service.

[} Send the ESU, active and dispersive electrodes, and their packaging to Biomedical
Engineering Department.

C. Enter a work order.

d. Complete an incident report, including the ESU identification number and event
information.

B. RELATED DOCUMENT(S}:

1. Administrative District Operations Policy: Equipment Medical Device Reporting Sequester 8610-
201
2. Engineering Policy: Preventive Maintenance
C. REFERENCE(S):
1. Conner, R. {(2018). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice, 2018 Edition. Denver, CO:

Association of PeriOperative Registered Nurses.



‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

12/01 SUBJECT: Emergency Cart (Crash Cart),
Cardiopulmonary Arrest

REVISION DATE:  06/03, 10/04, 11/06, 10/07, 06/08,

08/09, 08/12, 07/16, 03/19, 0412/22

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 08/2210/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: $0/2201/24
Nursing Leadership Approval: 112202/24
Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: nfa
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 142202/24
Administration Approval: 42/2203/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval. n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12122

A. POLICY:

1. Emergency Carts (crash carts) shall be checked at least daily for integrity and expiring products
by a licensed healthcare provider or designee on the unit. Verification of the crash cart checks
will be documented by date and signatures in a logbook kept on top of the cart.

2. The licensed heaithcare provider or designee checking the crash cart will ensure missing or
expired items are replaced immediately. If items cannot be replaced in a timely manner, the
crash cart should be replaced by the Sterile Processing Department (SPD).

3 Crash carts shall be stored in secured locations.

4, A crash cart may be left on a unit that is closed if properly secured.

ot Crash carts secured on a closed unit do not require checking until the unit is re-opened.

A licensed healthcare provider or designee will write “Unit Closed” in the logbook for the dates
when the unit was closed.

6. SPD shall immediately replace any cart used during a Code Blue-Gede-Galeb or Code Pink
with an Emergency Cart that has been checked for integrity and expiring products.

a. The replacement cart shall be deemed ready for use upon arrival to the unit.

b. After a code, a licensed healthcare provider or designee shall ensure the crash cart and
the contents of the crash cart are secured per Securing Emergency Cart Guidelines.

c. Contact SPD to pick up the used crash cart.

d. Place the used locked crash cart in a location that is visible at all times to a healthcare
provider until it is picked up by SPD.

d-7. If expired items or lock discrepancy identified during a crash cart check, contact SPD for
a replacement cart.

#8. The Code Blue Committee shall make recommendations for content changes based on code

evaluations and recommendations from the American Heart Association.

B. PROCEDURE FOR CHECKING CODE BLUE, CODE PINK AND CODE CALEB CRASH CARTS:

1.

All documentation of cart checks will be completed on the department specific Emergency
Equipment/Supplies Checklist. All fields must be complete by the healthcare provider checking
the chart, documenting their signature on the checklist form.
implement the following when completing emergency cart checklists
a. Check the integrity of all locks/tags. If any lock/tag is broken, call SPD to replace the
cart.
i. Adult cart document:;



Patient Care Services
Emergency Cart (Crash Car). Cardicpulmonary Arrest

Page 2 of 2
1) Lock number on the locking bar on the crash cart.
i Pediatric cart document:
1) Medication drawer expiration date and lock number
2) Intravenous (IV) drawer expiration date and lock number
3) Red Airway Bag expiration date and lock number
iii. Neonatal cart document:
1) Medication drawer expiration date and lock number
2) IV drawer expiration date and lock number
b. Check the medication sticker and document medication expiration date.
i. Ensure the sticker number matches the lock number. Netify Pharmacy-of SRD-to
c} Check non-medication supply sticker(s) and document the expiration dates.
d. Check IV solution sticker and document expiration date.
e. Presence and function of suction equipment (except for neonatal cart).
i. Suction unit shall be checked unplugged for adequate function.
ii. Battery level of suction unit will be checked while unit is unplugged to ensure
adequate charge.
f. Presence of Resuscitation Code Record and Evaluation/Debriefing form on clipboard
appropriate to type of cart {(adult, pediatric, neonatai).
g. Resuscitation algorithms appropriate for type of cart (adult, pediatric, neonatal)
h. The inventory lists are available on the cart.
i. The list is maintained and updated by SPD
i. Appropriate supplyShpask of electrocardiogram electrodes.
j. Presence of resuscitation bag (Ambu) and supplies appropriate for type of cart (adult,
pediatric, neonatal).
i Check the oxygen mask to ensure the seal is sufficiently inflated.
k. Presence of oxygen tank (except for neonatal cart).
i. Replace tank if gauge reads 1000 p.s.i. {pounds per square inch) or less.
I Presence of extension cord/multi-outtet cord.
m. Presence of backboard {except for neonatal cart).
n. For Pediatric/Broselow Cart only:
i. Scissors
il Two (2) Alaris Pumps
3. For units with Automatic External Defibrillators (AED) see Patient Care Services Policy:
Automated External Defibrillator Checks, Philips
a. replace the pads immediately.
C FORM(S):
1. Tri-City Medical Center Crash Cart Checklists — Age Specific
D RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy. Rapid Response Team

2. PCS Procedure; Defibrillator Checks

4;3. Securing Emergéncy Cart Guidelines



)
@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: EPIDURAL OR INTRATHECAL CATHETER INFUSION IN THE NON-LABORING
PATIENT

Purpose: To outline nursing management for the adult inpatient with an indwelling epidural or
intrathecal catheter for narcotic administration.

Equipment: Portless Epidural/lntrathecal Administration Set

Transparent dressing

Alaris infusion pump

Epidural/Intrathecal insertion kit

Epidural/intrathecal anesthetic/analgesic solution as ordered by anesthesiologist
Blood pressure cuff

Pulse oximeter

Oxygen delivery equipment & suctioning equipment readily available at bedside
Narcan® (Naloxone})

Kelly clamp

Narcotic administration record/Assessment Record

Medication lock box

Medication lock box key

DEFINITION(S):

1. Epidural Infusion: A continuous infusion into the epidural space.

2. Epidural Bolus: An intermittent injection via the indwelling epidural catheter.
3. Intrathecal Infusion: A continuous infusion into the intrathecal space.

4. PCEA infusion: patient controlled epidural analgesia.

POLICY:

1. The anesthesiologist or physician and the assigned Registered Nurse (RN) share the
responsibility for the observation and monitoring of patients receiving epidural or intrathecal
anesthesia.

2. The pharmacy department is responsible for the preparation of the epidural anesthetic/analgesic
solution.

3. Only the anesthesiologist or physician may insert the epidural or intrathecal catheter. The lot

number and brand of the kit will be documented on the procedure form by the nurse assisting
with the procedure.
a. The nurse assisting with the procedure will provide positioning assistance and emotional
support to the patient during the epidural initiation procedure.
4, The patient will not be transferred to the next level of care until the epidural setup is connected,
and the Alaris pump has been programmed and verified by two (2) RNs.
5, All epidural infusions must be on a dedicated infusion pump with only one module attached, and
the intravenous (IV) solution contained in a medication lock box.
6. Electronic channel label shall be selected via guardrails or channel labels.
{7 Ensure patient has IV access.
a. IV access shall be maintained for at least eight (8) hours after last dose of epidural
medicine or discontinuance of epidural/intrathecal catheter.

PROCEDURE :

1. Obtain physician's order for epidural or intrathecal solution.

2. Verify correct patient per Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Identification, Patient

3N Set-up:

a. Bag Infusion Delivery:
Nursinge
Patient Care Clinical Pharmacy & Medical . Professional
Services Content Policies & L‘eadersﬂhlp AD :e"’:t::;?;:d Therapeutics Executive :t:"a"t‘ll:r': Affairs gﬁ:;?o‘:;
Expert Procedures c it ay Committes Committee Committee

04/07, 0609, 07/11, 08/15, 0811, 1016, 05119, 02/07. 11116 10011, 07110, | 11111, 0117 1111,
07/15, 01/16. 05/16, 11/18, 05/16, S 05115, 02124 11118, Ty i 0117
08/17, 02/23 02/19, 02/23 | 03/19, 03/23 ' 0619, 02/24 08/19




Patient Care Services
Epidural or Intrathecal Catheter Infusion in the Non-Laboring Patient Procedure

Page 2 of 4

i Spike the epiduralfintrathecal solution, or bag with the yellow striped portless
tubing after verification of correct dose with 2™ RN, prime the tubing, and thread
the tubing through the epidural pump according to manufacturer’s instructions.
1) The epidural will be connected to the infusion tubing and Alaris pump on

the sterile field if medication is available.

ii. Attach the medication lock box.

iii. Lock the box containing the epidural/intrathecal solution with the medication lock
box key stored in the Pyxis.

b. Syringe Delivery Device for Patient Controlled Epidural Analgesia (PCEA)

—_
Initiation:
a. Program the pump, using Guardrails, to the dosing parameters ordered by the

anesthesiologist or physician with 2™ RN to verify settings.

i For PCEA, the nurse will confirm epidural solution concentration and pump
settings as ordered by anesthesiologist or physician (i.e. rate mL/hr, bolus
amount/ml). Lockout must be documented in patient care record and verified by 2

RN's.
b. Start the infusion.
C. Activate the lockout on the Alaris pump controls, located on the back of the infusion
device
d. Return the medication lock box key to Pyxis
e Document on electronic health record (EHR) with two (2) RNs.
Maintenance:
a. Administration of bolus or increase:;

i. Boluses must be given through infusion pump, do not break the closed system.

ii. Program infusion rate on pump per anesthesiologist or physician’s order verified
with second RN.

iii. After the bolus, reprogram pump to continuous infusion rate as ordered by
anesthesiologist or physician. Verify with 2nd RN.

iv. Document on EHR

b. Instruct patient, significant other/family:

i Type of pain management,

ii. Frequency and nature of monitoring:

. Avoid touching or manipulating catheter or tubing.

iv. Avoid excessive moving around or overstretching upper extremities.

V. Do not get insertion site wet.

vi. Notify RN if catheter is accidentally removed or if any part becomes
disconnected.

vi. Notify RN if signs of nausea, vomiting, pain, itching, pruritis, severe headache,

neck pain, backache, bladder fullness, numbness or tingling or decreased
movement or strength in lower extremities.
C. Changing Infusion Bag:

i. Hang pre-mixed solution containing the same medication as ordered by the

anesthesiologist/physician after verifying with a 2™ RN.
d. Changing the Syringe:

i Insert the pre-mixed syringe containing the same medication as ordered by the

anesthesiologist/physician after verifying with a 2" RN.
Assessment:
a. Assess for complications that may be associated with epidural initiation.

i. Local anesthetic toxicity: Assess for drowsiness, light-headedness, tinnitus,
circumoral paresthesia, metallic taste in mouth, slurred speech, blurred vision,
unconsciousness, cardiac dysrhythmia, and cardiac arrest. Notify
anesthesiologist or physician immediately if any of these symptoms are noted.
initiate cardiopulmonary resuscitation as needed.



Patient Care Services
Epidural or Intrathecal Catheter Infusion in the Non-Laboring Patient Procedure

Page 3 of 4

ii. High Spinal: Assess for numbness or weakness of the upper extremities,
dyspnea, weak speech or inability to speak, apnea and loss of consciousness.
Notify anesthesiologist or physician immediately if any of these symptoms are
noted. Initiate cardiopulmonary resuscitation as needed.

iii. Hypotension: Position patient in lateral position, notify anesthesiologist or
physician, and administer intravenous fluid bolus if ordered.

b. Assess and document sedation level, pain level, pulse oximetry, blood pressure, heart
rate, and respiratory rate every one (1) hour until epidural or intrathecal catheter is
discontinued.

(ok Assess epidural or intrathecal catheter or tubing:

i, Every four (4) hours, verify the portless tubing is connected to the epidural or
intrathecal catheter.

ii. Every shift, verify catheter, infusion tubing, epidural or intrathecal pump, and
epidural or intrathecal solution are properly labeled.

d. Assess insertion site;

i Every four (4) hours, verify catheter site is clean, dry and intact without signs of
edema, drainage or infection.

e. Monitor sensory and motor function of lower extremities every four (4) hours, and before
and after catheter removal.
f. Monitor for the following possible side effects every four (4) hours, and see physician

orders for appropriate intervention as needed:
i. Change in level of consciousness

ii. Nausea and vomiting

iii. itching, pruritis

iv. Urinary retention
V. Loss of motor function, strength, and sensation of lower extremities
vi. Before and after ambulation
vii. Before and after epidural catheter removal
g. —If disconnection from the catheter tubing is suspected, cover with sterile gauze, and

notify Anesthesiologist. Do not use alcohol or attempt to reconnect.

D. PROCEDURE FOR SYRINGE DELIVERY DEVICE FOR PCEA:

1.
2.

S

@ h

LN

10.

Obtain physician’s/AHP’s order for epidural or intrathecal solution

Obtain solution filled syringe from Pharmacy and connect the yellow striped portless tubing to
the syringe after verifying correct dose with second (2" RN. Prime tubing.

For PCEA, the nurse will confirm epidural solution concentration and pump settings as ordered
by anesthesiologist/ or physician (AHP) (i.e. rate mL/hr, bolus amount/ml). Lockout must be
documented in patient care record and verified by two (2) RN's.

Insert the syringe into the Alaris pump

Program the Alaris pump, using Guardrails, to the dosing parameters ordered by the
physicianfAHP and verify settings with 2nd RN.

Start the infusion.

Engage the lockout feature on the Alaris pump.

Return the medication lock box key to Pyxis.

Document on the electronic health record (EHR) with two RNs for Patient controlled anagesia
{(PCAs) and epidurals,

Provide positioning assistance and emotional support to the patient during the epidural initiation
procedure.

E.  REMOVAL OF EPIDURAL OR INTRATHECAL CATHETER:

1.
2.

Verify written physician order to remove catheter.

Review the patient's coaguiation status and ensure the results are within normal limits.

a. Check prothrombin time (PT) levels and platelet level where applicable. For elevated PT
levels, or platelet level less than 100,000, consult Anesthesiologist prior to removal.



Patient Care Services
Epidural or Intrathecal Catheter infusion in the Non-Laboring Patient Procedure

Page 4 of 4
b. Record neurological exam of the lower extremities every one (1) hour times two (2),
every two (2) hours times two (2), every four (4) hours times two (2) after removal of the
catheter.
3. Place patient in relaxed position.
4. Assess patient for back pain, back tenderness and baseline motor strength and sensation prior
to removal of the catheter.
5. Assess site for hematoma, drainage and signs of infection.
6. Stop infusion and clamp tubing. Document final volume readings.
7. Perform hand hygiene and don gloves.
8. Remove dressing while maintaining pressure on tubing just above insertion site. Do not use
alcohol. {Alcohol is neurotoxic to epidural space.)
9. Gently and steadily remove catheter with one slow motion while holding 2x2 gauze over the site.
If patient develops pain or parasthesia or resistance is met, stop procedure, place a sterile
dressing over site to secure epidural or intrathecal line, and notify anesthesiologist or physician.
10. Verify catheter tip is intact and rounded once catheter is removed.
1. If tip is missing:
a. Notify physician.
b. Place the catheter with the missing tip in a specimen bag and label with the patient’s
name, date of removal
c. Give the specimen bag with the tip to the Nurse LeaderAssisted-Nurse-Manager
ANMY/designesreliefcharge.
e-d. The Nurse Leader will ensure an incident report is entered in the electronic
reporting system. The specimen bag with missing tip will be sent to the Risk
Management department.
12. Place sterile dressing over the area and apply pressure for at least two (2) minutes.
13. Evaluate patient’s motor strength and sensation. Notify physician for decreased motor strength
and/or sensation.
14, Document procedure and patient response.
15. Waste unused medication per the PCS Procedure; Wasting Narcotics, Documentation in the
Pyxis Machine.
16. Return lock box and Alaris pump to sterile processing department (SPD).
17. Return medication lock box key to unit Pyxis.
F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Patient Care Services Policy: Identification, Patient

2. Patient Care Services Procedure: Automated Dispensing Machine
G. REFERENCE(S):

1. Cohen, S.P. & Dragovich, A. (2007, December). Intrathecal anesthesia. Anesthesiology Clinics,
25(4). Retrieved hitp://www.mdconsult.com

2. Grant, P.J. & Wesaorick, D.H. (2008, March). Perioperative medicine for the hospitalized patient.
Medical Clinics of North America, 92(2). Retrieved from hitp:.//www.mdconsult.com

3. Elesvier Clinical Skills. Epidural Catheter Insertion, Management and Removal. Retrieved

September 18%, 2017.



(a) Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: GOWNING & GLOVING
Purpose: To outline the process of gowning and gloving for surgery and other invasive procedures.
Surgical gowns and gloves are worn to protect patients and surgical team members from
transmission of pathogens by establishing a barrier to minimize the passage of
microorganisms, body fluids, and particulate matter between sterile and unsterile areas.
Equipment: Sterile gown and gloves
A POLICY:

1.

2.

3.

10.

11.

12.

Surgical gowns and gloves shall be selected for use based on procedure-related requirements,

end user requirements and preferences, and patient-related requirements.

Surgical gowns and gloves must provide a barrier and should be resistant to tears and

punctures.

Barrier materials used for surgical gowns should be as lint-free as possible.

Scrubbed team members should perform surgical hand antisepsis before donning sterile gowns

and gloves.

Scrubbed team members should don sterile gowns and gloves in a sterile area away from the

main instrument table.

Scrubbed team member's hands and arms should be completely dry before donning a sterile

gown.

Scrubbed personnel should select gowns of appropriate size and sleeve length.

a. Gowns shall be of adequate size to cover completely in the back and sleeves of
adequate length to prevent cuff exposure outside the glove.

b. Gowns with excessive size or sleeve length increase risk of contamination.

The front of a sterile gown is considered sterile from the chest to the level of the sterile field.

Gown sleeves are considered sterile from two inches above the elbow to the cuff,

circumferentially.

a. The neckline, shoulders, and axillary areas of the surgical gown are areas of friction and
are not considered an effective microbial barrier, therefore are considered contaminated.

b. Sleeve cuffs are considered unsterile when scrubbed personnel’s hands pass through
and beyond the cuff.

cC. The back of the surgical gown cannot be constantly monitored and is considered
unsterile.

Scrubbed personnel should inspect gloves for integrity after donning, before contact with the

sterile field, and throughout use.

The closed assisted gloving method should be used to glove team members during initial

gowning and gloving.

Scrubbed team members should wear two pairs of surgical gloves, one over the other, during

surgical and other invasive procedures with potential for exposure to blood, body fluids, or other

patentially infectious materials.

a. When double gloves are worn, a perforation indicator system should be used (i.e., a
colored pair of surgical gloves worn beneath a standard pair of surgical gloves).

Contaminated gloves should be changed as soon as possible. The preferred method of

changing contaminated gloves is assisted gloving, where one member of the sterile team

assists another. If this method is not feasible, open gloving must be used to change

contaminated gloves. If it is not possible to change gloves at the moment the break in technique

occurs, a new glove may be placed over the contaminated/damage glove until it can be

changed.

Patient
Care
Servicas
Content
Expert

Clinical Nursinge

Policies &
Procedures
Committee

Leadership
Exocutive
Cempaiites

Operating
Room
Committee

Pharmacy &
Therapeutics
Committee

Madical
Executive
Committee

Administration

Professional
Affalrs
Committee

Board of
Directors

04/94, 01713
04/18, 08123

09/09, 01113,
05/18, 09423

11/08, 01113,

0518, 10/23

0119, 02/24

nfa

01/10, 05113,

02/19, 02/24

03/19, 03/24

02/10. 613,
nfa

02/10,
06/13 0319




Patient Care Services

Gowning & Gloving Procedure

Page 2 of 3
B. PROCEDURE:
1. Gowning:
a. Scrubbed personnei:
i. Open sterile gown and gloves on surface away from the main instrument table.
. Perform surgical hand antisepsis
iii. if a wet scrub was performed, dry hands and arms with a sterile towel. Be
careful not to contaminate the sterile field or towel by dripping water onto the
sterile field or touching the towel to scrub attire or unsterile surroundings.
iv. Grasp the sterile gown, touching only the inside surface of the gown, step back
away from sterile field and allow the gown to unfold completely.
V. Insert arms into respective armholes of the gown, keeping hands inside the
sleeves, above the cuffs and keeping arms at shoulder height.
b. Circulating nurse/designee:
i. Pull gown over the shoulders of scrubbed personnel, touching only the inside of
the gown.
ii. Secure Velcro tabs and ties at the neckline and waist.
2. Closed Gloving:
a. Scrubbed personnel
i Grasp the folded cuff of the glove, keeping hands inside the cuff of the gown.
ii. Place the glove upside down on enclosed hand with the fingers pointing toward
the body, and keeping thumb lined up with the thumb of the glove.
iii. Grasp inside the glove cuff with the enclosed thumb.
iv. With opposing enclosed hand, stretch the glove up and over the sleeve cuff.
V. Advance the hand through the cuff of the sleeve, keeping the sleeve cuff
completely covered by the glove.
vi. Repeat for other hand.
vii. Pass gown tab with attached tie to another member of the team.
b. Circulating nurse/designee:

i. Hold ear gown tab attached to sterile tie while scrub person pivots. Do not touch
the sterile tie.

ii. Hold eard gown tab securely while scrub person pulls sterile tie away

iii. Scrubbed personnel will tie gown at the waist.

3. Open Gloving:

a. Scrubbed personnel wearing a sterile gown shall:
i Extend hands through cuff of the sterile gown.
ii. Grasp the inner side of the glove cuff with the opposite hand. Do not touch the
outside of the glove.
iii. Insert hand into glove and pull glove up over the entire cuff of the gown.
iv. Place gloved hand under the cuff of the opposite glove, lift and insert ungloved
hand into glove, pull the glove over the hand completing covering the gown cuff.
4, Changing a contaminated gown:
a. Circulating nurse shalt untie scrub’s gown and remove. Do not touch bare arms.
b. Scrubbed personnel repeat entire gowning and closed gloving procedure.
5. Gowning & gloving other team members:
a. Scrubbed personnel

i. Pass a sterile towel to newly scrubbed team member, if wet scrub performed
Do not contaminate seif by touching bare hands or arms of scrubbed team
member.

ii. Open gown, cuff hands under the neckline of the sterile gown, allow to
completely unfold, and place over outstretched arms of team member.

iii. Release the gown, allowing the circulating nurse to pull the gown over the
shoulders of the scrubbed team member and secure at neckline and waist.

iv. Grasp sterile glove, palm facing the ungloved team member, thumb to thumb



Patient Care Services
Gowning & Gloving Procedure

Page 30of 3

v. Stretch cuff open and grasp firmly while team member advances hand into the
glove.

vi. Repeat with other glove, then turn gown of team member, if a wrap-around
gown.

C. REFERENCE(S):

1.

2.

Rothrock, J. {2045)- (2019) Alexander's Care of the Patient in Surgery, 45* '®" Edition. St.
Louis, MO: Elsevier., pgs. 92-27

Conner—R Kyle, Erin DNP, RN, CNOR, NEA-BC 2044— (2023) AORN Guidelines for
Perioperative Practice, Sterile Technique, 284ZEdition—Denver, CO., pgs. 1016-1056:

AsseciatiorefPerDperatve-Registered-Murses-



x

(c\) Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: HIGH-LEVEL DISINFECTION
Purpose: To disinfect semi-critical patient care equipment between uses
Equipment: Personal protective equipment {gloves, eye protection, impervious gown, face shield or

simple surgical mask)

Enzymatic/detergent

Sponge or soft, lint-free cloth

Brush

High-level disinfectant (i.e., Cidex ortho-phthalaldehyde [OPA])
Tap Water

Sterile Water

70% isopropyl aicohol or equivalent

A DEFINITION(S):

1.

Critical items: According to Spaulding classification system, items that enter sterile tissue,
including the vascular system (i.e., surgical instruments, implants and needles). Critical items
shouid be sterile when used.

Semi-critical items: According to Spaulding classification system. items that come in contact

with non-intact skin or mucous membranes (i.e., vaginal and rectal probes ultrasound probes

used during percutananeous guided procedures, respiratory therapy equipment,
bronchoscopes, gastrointestinal endoscopes and accesscries). Semicritical items should be
processed by sterilization, or, at a minimum, high-level disinfection.

Non-critical items: According to Spaulding classification system, items that come into contact

only with intact skin (i.e., tourniquets and blood pressure cuffs). Non-critical items should

receive intermediate or low-level disinfection.

High-Level Disinfection (HLD): A process that deactivates all types of microorganisms with the

exception of bacterial spores and prions.

a. Used for reprocessing reusable semi-critical items.

b. May be accomplished via an automated reprocessor or manual soaking in a high-level
disinfecting agent. The method of HLD for each piece of equipment shall be selected
based on manufacturer's instructions for use (IFU).

C. The effectiveness of HLD depends on effective pre-cleaning, manual cleaning, and
rinsing to decrease the organic load and microbial content of the equipment/endoscope,
drying after ninsing to avoid dilution of HLD agent, and proper preparation and use of the
disinfectant in accordance with the manufacturer's IFU.

Pre-Cleaning: Pre-cleaning removes organic material (i.e., blood, body fluids, body soil) and

decreases the biocburden, making it much more likely that subsequent reprocessing steps will be

successful. Pre-cleaning should be performed at the point of use, before bioburden has an
opportunity to dry and before complete decontamination.

Leak Testing: Testing to detect damage to the interior channels and exterior surfaces of an

endoscope that can lead to inadequate disinfection and further damage. Leak testing is done

before immersion of the endoscope in reprocessing solutions to minimize damage to parts of
the endoscope not designed for fluid exposure.

B. POLICY:

1.

With the exception of pre-cleaning. reprocessing of endoscopes should not be conducted in
patient care areas because of the risk of patient exposure to contaminated surfaces and
devices.

Infection Medical Professional

Board of

Department
Approval

Clinical Policles
& Procedures

Nursing
Leadership

Control
Commitiee

Executive
Committee

Administration

Affairs
Commiittee

Directors

02/08, 05107,
06/09, 09/11,
0812, 04/15,
06/17. 03/20,
0823

08/12, 0615,

12116, 07117,

03/20, 10/20,
09/23

08/12, 07/15,
4117, 0717,
04120, 12/20,

10123

07115, 04117,
10/17, 03720,
04/20, 03721,

01724

1012, 07115,
0517, 1117,
05/20, 03/21,

02124

06/20. 04/21.
03/24

1112, 08115,
01/18.n/a

12112, 08/15
01118, 06/20,
04/21




Patient Care Services
High Level Disinfection

Page 2 of 8

2.

7.

Gloves should be worn during all phases of endoscope handling, including moving clean scopes
from storage to a procedure room, removing scopes from an automated endoscope reprocessor
(AER), and taking the scope into storage.
Follow manufacturer's recommendations for maximum time to elapse between steps of pre-
cleaning, cleaning, and HLD/sterilization. If the maximum allowable time is exceeded between
steps, follow manufacturer's recommendations for delayed reprocessing.
Visual inspection is an essential step to make sure the equipment/endoscope is visibly clean.
Endoscopes and reusable accessories should be visually inspected during all stages of
handling and reprocessing, before, during and after use, in addition to during and after cleaning
and before HLD.
The department leadership team has the responsibility to oversee the HLD process in their
department with consultation from Infection Prevention.
The following staff with documented competency are authorized to perform HLD, including, but
not limited to:
Sterile Processing Department (SPD) Technicians
Procedural Registered Nurses (RN's)
Respiratory Therapists
Equipment Respiratory Technicians
Ultrasound Technicians
Special Procedure Technicians
Cardiovascular Technologists
Endoscopy Technicians
Radiology Technologist
; Surgery RN's
Education, Training, and Competency Validation:
a. Initial:
i An orientation and training program will be provided to all staff prior to performing
HLD. Clinical educators, clinical managers, or any other competent staff member
will provide this training. Competency validation will be accomplished through
individual return demonstration of skills. Records of training and competency
validation will be maintained.
b. Annual:
i. All staff who perform HLD will complete an annual Computer Based Learning
{CBL) module.
ii. All staff who perform HLD will complete an annual competency.
1) Additional training will be provided on an as needed basis

C. PROCEDURE:

1.

PRE-CLEANING: Pre-clean equipment in the procedure room immediately after removal of the
equipment or insertion tube from the patient and prior to disconnecting the endoscope from the
power source, according to manufacturer's IFU. General guidelines for pre-cleaning include:

a. Don personal protective equipment (PPE), including, at a minimum, gloves, eye
protection, impervious gown, and face shield or simpie surgical mask.
b. Immediately after removing the equipment/endoscope from the patient, wipe the

insertion tube with the wet cloth or sponge soaked in a detergent solution (commercially
packaged or freshly prepared). Discard the cloth/sponge after use, according to
manufacturer's IFU.

(i Place the distal end of the endoscope into the appropriate detergent solution and suction
the detergent solution through all channels, per manufacturer's IFU. Finish by suctioning
air, according to manufacturer's IFU,

i. Duodenoscopes/Echoendoscopes: Flush and manipulate the forcep elevator per
manufacturer's IFU,

d. Flush air and water channels per manufacturer's {FU.



Patient Care Services
High Level Disinfection

Page 3of 8

Flush auxiliary water channel per manufacturer's IFU.

Detach the endoscope from the light source and suction pump.

Attach protective video caps where applicable.

Transport the soiled equipment/endoscope to the reprocessing area in an enclosed,
puncture-resistant container with a Biohazard label.

LEAK TESTING: Leak test equipment/endoscope according to manufacturer's IFU. General
guidelines for mechanicat (wet) leak testing include:

S ™o

a. Remove suction valves, air water valves, and biopsy valves, according to manufacturer's
IFU.
b. Discard those parts that are designated as disposable. The endoscope must be

completely disassembled so all surfaces may be reached for thorough cleaning,

according to manufacturer's IFU.

C. Attach the leak tester and pressurize the endoscope before submerging it in clear water,
according to manufacturer's IFU.

i Never add detergent to water before or during leak testing. Detergent will
obscure bubbles leaking from the endoscope and a leak may be missed. Follow
manufacturer's [FU to determine if it is necessary to remove other detachable
parts before leak testing.

d. With the pressurized endoscope completely submerged, flex the distal portion of the
endoscope in all directions, observing for bubbles. Check the insertion tube, distal
bending section, and universal cord for bubbles coming from the interior of the
endoscope, according to manufacturer's IFU.

e Remove the endoscope from the sink or basin. Turn off the leak tester. Disconnect the
leak tester from the video cap. Allow the endoscope to depressurize. Ensure the video
cap is secure and has not loosened with the removal of the leak tester. Continue with
the reprocessing steps when the test is complete unless a leak is detected, according to
manufacturer's IFU.

f. Remove the endoscope from service if a leak has been identified or detected, and follow
manufacturer's IFU for how to proceed.

MANUAL CLEANING: Manually clean equipment/endoscopes prior to automated/manual HLD

or sterilization, according to manufacturer's IFU. General guidelines for manual cleaning

include:

a. Don PPE.

b. Fill a sink or basin with freshly prepared solution of water and a medical grade, low-
foaming, pH neutral detergent (with or without enzymes), per manufacturer's IFU.

i. Dilute and use according to the detergent manufacturer’s IFU.

il. Fresh detergent solution should be used for each item to prevent cross-
contamination.

i, Low-foaming detergents are recommended such that the device can be clearly
visualized during the cleaning process to preclude personnef injury and to allow
for complete cleaning of lumen surfaces.

c. Ensure the video cap is secure, if applicable. Immerse the equipment/endoscope.

i Exception: Non-immersible probes shall only be immersed up to the connector
(for example see diagram below)

3




Patient Care Services
High Level Disinfection
Page 4 of §

d. Wash all debris from the exterior of the equipment/endoscope by brushing and wiping
the instrument while submerged in the detergent solution. The equipment/endoscope
should be submerged in the detergent solution when performing all subsequent cleaning
steps to prevent splashing of contaminated fluid and aerosolization of bioburden.

e. Use a small, soft brush to clean all reusable, removable parts, including inside and under
the suction valve, airfwater vaive, and biopsy port cover and openings. Use non-abrasive
and lint-free cleaning tools to prevent damage to the equipment/endoscope. It is
recommended that single-use, disposable cleaning tools be used when possible.

{ Brush all accessible endoscope channels, as well as the body, insertion tube, and the
umbilicus of the endoscope. Use a brush size compatible with each channel. All
internal and external surfaces of the endoscope and its removable parts must be
thoroughly cleaned, and all auxiliary channels {(even if not used) must be brushed and
flushed according to manufacturer’s IFU.

g. Ducdenoscopes have an elevator channel which is difficult to clean, requiring additional
steps in all phases of reprocessing. Follow manufacturer's IFU for each specific
endoscope model for additional steps at each phase of reprocessing.

h. After each passage, rinse the brush in the detergent solution, removing any visible
debris before retracting and reinserting it.

i. Continue brushing until there is no debris visible on the brush.

i. All brushes shall be disposable. Dispose of single-use brushes after each use.

j. Attach the endoscope manufacturer’'s cleaning adapters for suction, biopsy, air, and
water channels. An automated pump may be used according to manufacturer’s IFU for
flushing, in lieu of manual flushing. Refer to manufacturer’s IFU to determine if the
automated pump is compatible with the endoscope.

k. Attach the manufacturer's cleaning adapters for special endoscope channels (i.e.,
elevator channel, auxiliary channel), according to manufacturer’s IFU.

l. Flush all channels with the detergent solution to remove debris and soak the endoscope
and its internal channels per the manufacturer's IFU, for the period of time specified by
the detergent manufacturer's IFU.

m. Follow manufacturer's IFU for the recommended reprocessing time frame. If the time
frame is not achievabie, implement the manufacturer's procedures for delayed
reprocessing.

4. RINSE AFTER MANUAL CLEANING: Thoroughly rinse the equipment/endoscope after
cleaning, according to manufacturer’'s IFU.

a. Thoroughly rinse the equipment/endoscope and all removable parts with clean water to
remove residual debris and detergent.

b. Purge water from all channels using forced air.

C. Dry the exterior of the equipment/endoscope with a clean soft, lint-free cloth to prevent

dilution of the HLD agent used in subsequent steps.
5. VISUAL INSPECTION: Inspect equipment for cleanliness and integrity, including all exterior
surfaces of equipment and internal channels of endoscopes (using a borescope).

a. Visually inspect for conditions that could affect the disinfection process (e.g., cracks,
corrosion, discoloration, and retained debris).

b. Repeat manual cleaning steps if equipment/endoscope is determined not to be visually
clean.

c. Remove damaged endoscopes and accessories from service for repair or disposal,

according to manufacturer's IFU.
6. HIGH-LEVEL DISINFECTION: Perform HLD {manual or automated) according to
manufacturer's IFU.
a. Follow high level disinfectant manufacturer's IFU:
i. Use Cidex OPA directly from the manufacturer’s original container, no activation
is required, per manufacturer's IFU.
ii. Follow manufacturer’s IFU for expiration dating:



Patient Care Services
High Level Disinfection

Page 50of 8

1) Cidex OPA has a 14 day reuse life once it has been poured into a
secondary container (soaking basin/tray).

2) Record the date Cidex OPA was poured into the secondary container and
the expiration date on: the basin/tray, the lid(s) of the basin(s)/tray(s) and
on the Cidex OPA Log Sheet for each basin/tray used.

3) Any Cidex OPA that remains unused in the manufacturer's original
container is good for 75 days from the date the container is opened.
Record the date the container was opened directly on the container.

b. High level disinfectants must be tested for minimum effective concentration (MEC)
accordmg to manufacturer's IFU prior to each use.

vi.

vii.

viil.

Follow manufacturer's IFU for test strip expiration date. Cidex OPA Test Strips

expire 90 days after the test strip container is opened.

1) Label test strip container with expiration date.

2) Tightly re-cap test strip bottle after each use.

Completely submerge the indicating pad of the test strip in the Cidex OPA.

Hold the test strip in the solution for 1 second, and then remove the test strip.

1) Do not swirl the strip.

Remove excess solution from the test strip by standing the strip upright.

Read the results in 90 seconds. Do not read past 90 seconds. Pad will be

completely purple to indicate effective solution.

if any blue remains on the indicator pad apart from the top line, solution is

ineffective and must be discarded.

Results of MEC testing (Pass or Fail) must be documented on the HLD log.

Cidex OPA test strips must be tested for efficacy each time a new container of

test strips is opened. Repeat the quality control testing of the test strips at 30

days and 60 days, if the container is still in use. Results must be recorded on the

Cidex OPA Log. Testing is completed as follows:

1) Open new bottle of test strips and record lot # on Cidex OPA Log Sheet.

2) Open a container of Cidex OPA.

K} Ditute one part Cidex OPA solution with one part tap water.

a) Example: one ounce Cidex OPA to one ounce tap water.

4) Submerge 3 Cidex OPA test strips in undiluted Cidex OPA solution and 3
Cidex OPA test strips in the diluted Cidex OPA solution for 1 second.
Remove the test strips and read the results in 90 seconds.

5) The test strips that were placed in the full strength Cidex OPA should turn
purple. The test strips in the diluted Cidex OPA will either remairi the
same or have an incomplete color change. Refer to the color chart.

6) Record the test resuits on the Cidex OPA log sheet.

7) If the test strips fail the test, repeat the test with fresh Cidex OPA solution
and test strips from another bottie. if they fail, notify Materials
Management. Return the test strips to Materials Management and re-
order test strips.

b. HLD may be performed by the following methods:

Automated Endoscope Reprocessor (AER)

1) Follow manufacturer's IFU for HLD and AER operation.

2) All channel adapters shall be used according to manufacturer’s IFU.

3 For duodenoscopes and echoendoscopes, follow manufacturer's IFU for
disinfecting the elevator channel and positioning the elevator during HLD.

4) Place valves and other removable parts into the soaking basin of the

reprocessor. Unless the reprocessor has dedicated space for
accessories, reprocess these items separately.



Patient Care Services
High Level Disinfection
Page 6ol 8

iii.

5) Set the machine according to manufacturer's IFU and allow it to complete
all cycles/phases. If cycles/phases are interrupted, HLD cannot be
ensured and the full cycle must be repeated.

6) If a final alcohot rinse cycle is not included in the automated reprocessor
cycle, this step should be done manually, followed by purging ail the
channels with air until dry.

7 Remove endoscopes promptly from the AER after cycle completion. Do
not allow endoscopes to sit in the AER for long periods, such as
overnight.

Hydrogen Peroxide-Based HLD Agent (i.e., Trophon) for endocavity probes or

ultrasound probes used during percutaneous procedures according to

manufacturer’'s IFU:

1) Don PPE.
2) Load the clean and dry probe into the Trophon Probe Reprocessor
(EPR).

K Ensure that the probe is secured high in the chamber with tip of probe
above the embossed line.

4) Place the Trophon Chemical indicator into the indicator holder with red
side facing up.

5) Close the chamber door.

6) Confirm that the probe is both clean and dry, if YES, press start.

7 At the end of the seven minute HLD cycle, Trophon screen will state
“cycle complete remove and wipe the probe”.

B) Don clean gloves.

9) Open the chamber door,

10) Remove the chemical indicator and check the chemical indicator chart on
the chemical indicator carton. Discard the chemical indicator after
verifying a positive reading.

11) Remove and wipe the probe using a dry single use cloth.

12) Close the chamber door.

13) Record the HLLD cycle

Manual HLD:

1 Temperature Recording:

a) When the Cidex OPA has been poured into a secondary
container, record (on Cidex OPA Log Sheet) the temperature each
time the Cidex OPA is used. Temperature must be 68°F or higher
for manual disinfection.

2) Perform MEC testing for high level disinfectant per manufacturers’ IFU

3 Perform manual HLD according to manufacturer's IFU.
Equipment/endoscopes must be purged with air and externally dried prior
to immersion to minimize diluting the high level disinfectant.

4) Completely immerse the equipment/endoscope and all removable parts in
a container of high level disinfectant/sterilant (i.e., Cidex OPA).

a) Exception: Non-immersable probes shall only be immersed up to
the connector.

b) The container must be of a size to accommodate the item without
undue coiling or overflowing, and ventilation must be sufficient to
remove chemical vapors.

C) To prevent damage to the item, the equipment/endoscope should
not be soaked with other sharp instruments that could potentially
cause damage.

d) Flush the disinfectant into all channels of the endoscope until it
can be seen exiting the opposite end of each channel. All



Patient Care Services
High Level Disinfection
Page 7 of 8

channels must be filled with the chemical so no air pockets remain
within the channels. Complete microbial destruction cannot occur
unless all surfaces are in complete contact with the chemical.

e) Cover the soaking basin with a tight-fitting lid to minimize chemical
vapor exposure.

f) Soak the equipment/endoscope in the high-level disinfectant (i.e ,
Cidex OPA) for the time/temperature required to achieve HLD.
Use a timer to verify soaking time. Document device and time.

i) Cidex OPA requires 12 minutes minimum at room
temperature.
9) Purge all channels completely with air before removing the

equipment/endoscope from the high-level disinfectant/sterilant.

Purging the channels preserves the concentration and volume of

the chemical and prevents exposure from dripping and spilling.
7. RINSE AFTER MANUAL HIGH-LEVEL DISINFECTION:

a. Thoroughly rinse all surfaces and removable parts of the equipment/endoscope, and
flush all channels of the equipment/endoscope and its removable parts, with clean water
per manufacturer's IFU (i.e., 2 gallons per rinse).

b. Repeat rinsing with fresh rinse water for a total of 3 times.

i. Tap water is acceptable for non-endoscopic devices.

ii. Use sterile water or filtered potable water for endoscopic devices.

il Rinsing prevents exposure and potential injury of skin and mucous membranes
from chemical residue.

iv. Fresh water should be used for each item and each rinse.
V. The device should be totally immersed for a minimum of 1 minute with each
rinse.
vi. Discard rinse water after each rinse. Do not reuse water for any other purpose.
8. DRYING:
a. All channels and the surface of the equipment/endoscope must be thoroughly dried
before storage.
b In order to ensure equipment/endoscopes are thoroughly dried, they must be flushed

with 70-90% ethyl or isopropyt alcoho! prior to being dried with pressurized, filtered air

either by the AER or manually, according to manufacturer's IFU.

i Alcohol shall be stored in a closed container between uses.

Dry the exterior of the item with a soft, clean lint-free cloth.

Dry all channels per manufacturer's IFU. If forced instrument air is recommended in the

manufacturer’s IFU, follow manufacturer's recommendations to determine air pressure

limits for the particular model of endoscope.

i If forced instrument air is not recommended by the manufacturer's IFU, hang
scopes vertically to drip dry for a8 minimum determined time prior to placing
endoscopes in storage.

a. Thoroughly rinse and dry all removable parts. Do not attach removable parts (e.g.,
valves) to the equipment/endoscope during storage.

9 STORAGE:

a. Store equipment/endoscopes in a clean, well-ventilated, and dust-free area, according to
endoscope and storage cabinet manufacturer's IFU.

i. Transport and store items that are processed by HLD and stored before use in
accordance with the device manufacturer's IFU and in a manner that protects the
device from damage or contamination.

ii. Cabinets and equipment/endoscopes shall be visually inspected to ensure
cleanliness before storing.

. Use storage cabinets that are made of a material that can be disinfected.

ao



Patient Care Services
High Level Disinfection
Page 8 of 8

f

iv. Storage cabinets must be of sufficient height, width, and depth to allow flexible
endoscopes to hang vertically without coiling and without touching the bottom of
the cabinet.

v Wipe down storage cabinets with a hospital-approved disinfectant at least every
seven (7) days.

1) Endoscopes must be removed from the cabinet during storage cabinet
cleaning.

Hang endoscopes in a vertical position, with all caps, valves, and other detachable
components removed to prevent moisture accumulation and microbial growth.
Endoscopes should hang freely so they are not damaged or contaminated by physical
impact or contact with one another.

Reusable buttons and valves shall be reprocessed and stored together with the
endoscope as a unique set for tracking purposes.

Endoscopes may be stored for up to seven (7) days if they have been effectively
reprocessed according to manufacturer's IFU and are stored in a way that keeps them
completely dry and free from environmental and human contamination.

i. On the 7" day of storage, endoscopes must be reprocessed.

ii. Endoscopes shall have a tag indicating date reprocessing is due.

Staff should wear clean gloves when handling processed endoscopes.

8 Disposal of Cidex OPA.

a.

Add a neutralizing agent to Cidex OPA in accordance with the manufacturer's IFU pnor
to disposal.

B. REFERENCE(S):

1. AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.

2. Cidex OPA manufacturer’s instructions for use.

3. Society of Gastroenterology Nurses and Associates, Inc. (2018). Standards of Infection
Prevention in Reprocessing Flexible Gastrointestinal Endoscopes. Chicago.



(@Tri-(:ity Health Care District
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
POLICY

ISSUE DATE: 04/89

SUBJECT: HIV Testing: in an Occupational

Exposure
REVISION DATE: 03/97;, 03/00;, 5/03;, 11/06;, 9/10,
06/15, 12/20
Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 06/2008/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 0#2009/23
Nursinge LeadershipExecutive-Comrnittee Approval: 08/2010/23
Infection Control Committee Approval: 08/2001/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 44/2002/24
Administration Approval: 42/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 12/20
A. PURPOSE:
1. To provide a mechanism for human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) testing in the event of an
occupational exposure.
B. DEFINITIONS:
1. Disclosure - includes all releases, transmissions, disseminations or communications whether they
are made orally, in writing or by electronic transmission [Health & Safety Code Sections
120980(k)].
2, Exposed individual - any individual health care provider, first responder, or any other person

(including any employee, volunteer, or contracted agent of any provider) who is exposed, within
the scope of his or her employment, to the blood or other potentially infectious materials of a

source patient.

3. First responder - police, firefighters, rescue personnel, and any other person who provides
emergency response, first aid care, or other medically related assistance, either in the course of
the person's occupational duties or as a volunteer.

4, Health care provider - include the following persons and entities:

a. Licensed and certified health personnel, including physicians, nurses and other health
personnel who work in hospitals, clinics, health dispensaries and facilities. Employees,
volunteers or contracted agents of Knox-Keene Health Care Service plans. Professional

students of any of the above.

5 HIV test - any clinical test, laboratory or otherwise, used to identify HIV, a component of HIV, or
antibodies or antigens to HIV [Health & Safety Code Section 120775].

6. Informed Consent - nature of the procedure; the risk, complications and expected benefits or
effects of the procedure; any alternatives to the treatment their risks and benefits.

7. Significant exposure - direct contact with the blood or other potentially infectious materials in a

manner that according to the California Division Occupational Health & Safey (CAL-OSHA)

guidelines is capable of transmitting HIV.

8. Attending physician of the source patient - any physician who provides health care services to the
source patient and includes any of the following:
a. The private physician of the source patient.
b. The physician primarily responsible for the patient who is undergoing inpatient treatment

in a hospital.

9. Attending physician’s designee - a registered nurse or Allied Health Professional (AHP) that has



Patient Care Services
HIV Testing: In An Qccupational Exposure

Page 2 of 3

10.

11.

been designated by the attending physician of the source patient.

Available blood or patient sample - blood or other tissue or material that was legally obtained in
the course of providing health care services and is in the possession of the physician or other
health care provider of the source patient prior to the exposure incident.

Certifying physician - any physician consulted by the exposed individual for the exposure incident.
A certifying physician must have demonstrated competency and understanding of the applicable
guidelines or standards of the CAL-OSHA. The law does not specify how this competency may
be demonstrated.

y POLICY:

1.

California law [Health and Safety Code Sections 120260-120263] provides a narrow exposure
notification and information mechanism to permit health care personnel and other first responders
who have experienced a significant exposure to a patient’s blood or other potentially infectious
materials, to learn of the patient's HIV status. The exposed individual may have a source patient's
blood, tissue or other material tested for HIV even though the patient refuses to be tested. The
testing may be done provided the blood, tissue or other material was obtained prior to the
exposure. [See Administrative Policy Notification to Pre-Hospital Personnel Exposure to
Infectious Disease 530]
A person who has experienced an exposure to potentially infectious materials while rendering
occupational or health care related services must request, in writing, evaluation by a physician
within 72 hours of the exposure to determine if the exposure was significant.
The physician must evaluate and certify the significant exposure, including the nature and extent,
in writing within 72 hours of the request. Exposed individuals, including physicians may not certify
their own exposures as significant.
Regardless of the HIV status of the source person, the exposed individual will be given
counseling regarding the transmission of HIV, the limitations of HIV testing, need for follow-up
testing, and precautionary procedures to be followed. Tri-City Medical Center Employee Health
Department will be responsible for the counseling of the exposed individual.
To establish baseline information, the exposed individual must be tested for HIV and the results
of that test must be confirmed as negative before testing the source patient for HIV without the
source patient's consent.
The certifying physician must provide certification that an exposure is significant to the source
patient's attending physician. The certification must be in writing within 72 hours of certifying
the exposure. The certifying physician must also request information on the HIV status of the
source patient and the availability of blood or other patient sample.
The source patient's attending physician must respond to the certifying physician’s request for
the information within three working days.
If the source patient is known to be HIV positive, the attending physician must attempt to
obtain the source patient's consent to release this information to the exposed individuals.
a. If the source patient refuses or cannot be contacted, an attending physician of the
source patient may advise the exposed individual of the source patients HIV status as
soon as possible after certification.
b. Consent for release of information is not required where the exposed individual is a
treating health care provider.
c The hospital will attempt to obtain consent from a legal representative of an
incompetent or deceased patient, however if the legal representative refuses or cannot
be contacted or if there is no legal representative, this law may authorize the hospital to
disclose the HIV status if known. Where authorization to disclose HIV status is unclear,
hospital legal counsel should be consulted.
If the source patient's HIV status is not known, and blood or other patient samples are available,
and if the exposed individual has tested negative on a baseline HIV test, the source patient is
given the opportunity to consent to HIV test. Within 72 hours after receiving written certification of
a significant exposure, the attending physician of the source patient must do all of the following:
a. The attending physician must make a good faith effort to notify the source patient, or



Patient Care Services
HIV Testing: In An Occupationat Exposure

Page 3 0of 3

10.

11.
12.

13.

14.

the patient’s authorized legal representative, of the significant exposure. This effort
includes, but is not limited to, an effort to locate the patient by telephone or certified
first class mail. The efforts to contact the source patient must be documented in the
source patient's medical record.

b. If the source patient or legal representative is contacted, the attending physician must
attempt to get the voluntary written informed consent to the HIV test.

c. The exposed individual is prohibited from directly seeking consent to HIV testing from
the source patient.

d. If the source patient or the legal representative cannot be contacted after a good faith

effort, it may be treated as if the source patient has refused to be tested.

If the source patient or authorized legal representative refuses consent for an HIV test, available

blood may be tested and the exposed individual informed of the test results.

a. An inability of the source patient to provide informed consent constitutes a refusal of
consent provided all of the following conditions are met:

i. The source patient has no legal representative authorized to consent on his behalf.

i, The source patient is incapable of giving consent.

iii. In the opinion of the attending physician, it is likely that the source patient will be
unable to grant informed consent within the 72-hour period during which the
physician is required to act pursuant to Section 3.8 herein.

if the source patient is deceased, consent for HIV testing is deemed granted.

The exposed individual's employer will pay for the cost of HIV testing and counseling. Exposed
individuals who are not employees of the health facility or heaith care providers are financially
responsible for the cost of their own post-exposure evaluation, follow-up counseling and the cost
of testing and counseling of the source patient. (Health & Safety Code Section 121135(f)).

The source patient or authorized legal representative must be given the option as to whether or
not he or she is advised of the HIV results.

a. if the source patient refuses to consent to HIV test and refused to learn of the results of
the test, the patient must sign a form documenting the refusat.

b. HIV test results may be placed in the source patient’s medical record only if the patient
has given written consent to be informed of the test results.

c. if the source patient or legal representative refuses to be informed of the test results, the

HIV test results may be provided to the exposed individual only in accordance with the
then applicable CAL-OSHA regulations.
d. The source patient’s identity must be “encoded” in the HIV test result record.
If the exposed individual is informed of the source patient’s HIV test results pursuant to the law,
the exposed individual must be counseled regarding confidentiality laws protecting HIV test
results, protecting the identity of the source patient and the penalties for violating the law.

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1.

Administrative Policy: Notification to Pre-Hospital Personnel; Exposure to Infectious Disease 530

E. REFERENCE:

1.
2.

3.

Current California Hospital Association Consent Manual

California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 5193. Bloodborne Pathogens.
https.//iwww.dir.ca.gov/title8/5193.htm!l _(reviewed 8/23)

California Code, Health & Safety Codes: H&SC 120260-120263, 120775, 120980, & 121135
(reviewed 8/23)




@ Tri-City Medical Center Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE: LABELING MEDICATIONS/SOLUTIONS ON AND OFF A STERILE FIELD

Purpose: To outline the process for the administration, handling, labeling and documentation of
medications dispensed to the sterile field.

Patient Care Services Policy, Multi-Dose Vials, IV.HH
Patient Care Services Policy, ldentification, Patient, IV.A

Supportive Data

Equipment: 1. Alcohol swab 5. Marking pen
2. Vialor IV bag decanter 6. Medication
3. Diluent 7. Medicine cup or basin
4, Labels 8. Syringe and needle
PROCEDURE:
1. Verify physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) order or preference card prior to obtaining
medications for a surgery/procedure.
2. Confirm patient allergies prior to obtaining medications for a surgery/procedure or dispensing
them to the sterile field.
3. Prepare medications using aseptic technique and according to manufacturer’s instructions.

a. Perform hand hygiene prior to medication handling/preparation.

b. In the Operating Room (OR)/procedure room, prepare medications in a designated area
that is free from clutter (i.e., mayo stand, prep stand) and disinfect the preparation area
prior to use.

(5 Disinfect the rubber septum on all vials using alcohol and allow to dry prior to vial
access.

d. Muitidose vials should be used for only one patient when prepared at the point of use

(i.e., in the OR/procedure room) per Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Medication
Administration.

4. Verify medication dosage calculations prior to administration.
a. High risk medications (e.g., heparin} shall be double-checked by two licensed healthcare
providers.
5. Medications and solutions shall be verbally and visually concurrently verified by the scrub and

circulating nurse prior to dispensing to the sterile field. Verification shail include:

a. Medication/solution name
b. Strength
(o Dose
d. Expiration date
6. Deliver medications and solutions to the field in a sterile manner, by use of a transfer device

(i.e., vial/lV bag decanter or needle and syringe).

a. Do not pull out vial rubber stoppers and pour medications from vials. This practice

results in contamination of the medication as it is poured from the vial.
7. identify and label all medications and solutions on the sterile field.

a. The scrub and circulator shall verbally and visually verify medications and solutions prior
to dispensing to the sterile fieid, including medication/solution name, strength, dose and
expiration date.

b. Verify each medication individually and complete preparation steps, delivery to the
sterile field, and labeling BEFORE another medication is prepared.

c. Label all medication/solution containers {i.e., syringes, medicine cups, pitchers, aseptos
and basins).

d. Label all medications and solutions (e.g., water, saline, Lugol’s solution, radiopague
dyes, antibiotic irrigation, betadine, chlorhexidine, acetic acid) when the

Nursing
ot Policiee & Loagerena T"h":ri.?if.‘{.& Evamidel || Alnistration Pm:\::;irg"a' Lt
Procedures c i Committee Committee Committee
04194, 02/08, . e 04:94: o.;s:oo.
oo | G | Shit | oveow | SULGE | oewa | 0| G




Patient Care Services Pracedure Manual
Labeling Medications/Saolutions On and Off a Sterile Field Procegure

Page 2 of 2

.

12.

13.

medication/solution has been removed from original packing or does not have the
original manufacturer’s label on the container.

e. Write the name of the medication, strength, amount (if not apparent from the container),
and diluent (if applicable) on the label.

Verify the medication name, strength, and dose verbally when passing a medication to the

physician/AHP performing the procedure.

Discard any solution or medication that is found uniabeled.

Verify all medications and solutions (including appropriate labels} on and off the field when there

is a change of personnel during a surgery/procedure.

a. Medications and solutions shall be verified by both the on-coming and off-going
personnel,
b. Hand-off report shall also include names and total amounts of medications already

administered during the procedure.
Containers of all dispensed medications (i.e., ampules, vials and |V bags) shall be saved until
the end of the procedure.
All medications dispensed to the sterile field shall be documented by the circulating nurse in the
electronic health record (EHR).
a. Surgery documents medications in the SurgiNet Operative Record.
b. Medications dispensed to the sterile field but not used are documented as “not used”
All labeled containers on the sterile field and their contents shall be appropriately discarded at
the conclusion of the procedure.

B. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

2.

Patient Care ServicesRGS Policy: Medication Administration
Patient Care Services Policy: High Risk/High Alert/Look Alike Sound Alike

C. REFERENCE(S):

1.

Conner, R. (2018). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice, 2018 Edition. Denver, CO:
Association of PeriOperative Registered Nurses



@Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 03/90 SUBJECT: Missing Patient
REVISION DATE: 9/91; 12/96; 6/99; 5/03; 4/06 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-305
6/09; 6/11, 04/15
Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 04/2007/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 05/2002/24
Nursing Leadership Approval: 06/2003/24
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
| Administration Approval: 072003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 08/20

A PURPOSE:

1.

To define the process and responsibilities regarding missing patients.

B. POLICY:

1.

2.

In the event that a patient cannot be located, an immediate search will be conducted by Clinical

and Security personnet

To initiate a search, the Charge Nurse/designee will contact:

a. Nursing Leader/Administrative Supervisor

b. Security - Inform Security of all patient identifying information including:

i. Whether the patient is on a 5150 hoid or 72 hour hold
i Whether the patient is on conservatorship of any kind, is confused, and/or at risk
for harm

C. The Leader of the Unit/Service, Chief Nurse Executive and, if after hours or on
weekends, the Administrator On Call.

Nursing will coordinate an immediate search of patient's unit.

a. This search will include: the surrounding stairwells, (entire flight up, and entire flight
down), surrounding bathrooms/showers, treatment rooms, waiting rooms, supply rcoms
and elevator areas.

Security will, simultaneously, conduct a search of the hospital grounds utilizing the Security:

Missing Patient Search Checklist.

a. Areas included are: All waiting rooms, lobbies, gift shops, designated-smoking-areas;
cafeteria, all restrooms within immediate area of patient’s unit (other than on patient
floor) and exterior grounds

The Security Department will contact other designated employees including but not limited to:

Facilities Services; Lift Feam-and Public Branch Exchange (PBX) as necessary.

Open communication between Security and Nursing Leader or designee will be maintained

throughout the entire search.

if the patient is located, notify PBX immediately. PBX will contact Security via radio and the

Nursing Leader or designee by phone.

a. Search will be continued by all personnel until such time they are requested to
discontinue
b. Patients shall be returned to the unit if they are on a hold, under conservatorship, are

confused, or a clear risk to themselves or others. (If unsure whether a patient may leave
AMA or is at risk, detain the patient until a determination is made with the assistance of



Patient Care Services
Missing Patient, 8610-305

Page 2 of 2
8.
9.
C.

Nursing, Social Services, -or a Hospital Administrator On Call)
If the patient is not located within a reasonable amount of time;:
a. Nursing Leader
8i.  wiWIl contact the Glinical-Risk Managementr
aii. The-Nursing-eaderwWill delegate the task of contacting listed relatives for
information regarding possible whereabouts of patient
biii. The-Nursing-LeaderwWill ensure MD notification (and psychiatrist if one i1s
involved).
e-b.  The Security Department will be responsible to notify the appropriate law enforcement
agencies as indicated. Examples of high-risk patients include: frail, elderly, those on a
mental health hold, and confused patients.

C. Social Services will be contacted as indicated.
if the patient is not located, the Nurse Leader/designee will:
a. Complete appropriate note in the electronic health record (EHR)

d-b. Ensure patient is discharged in the EHR.

FORMS/RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1.

Missing Patient Search Checklist - Security



( ) Tri-City Medufal Center | RETIRE - no longer required
Oceanside, California with suspension of Women
and Newborn Services

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 07/11 SUBJECT: Obstetrical and Postpartum
Patients in the ED
REVISION DATE: 03/12, 04/16
Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 032211123
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/2212/23
Nursing Leadership Approval: 06/2201/24
Department of OB/GYN Approval: 08/22 n/a
Department of Emergency Medicine Approval: 1042201/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: FH2202124
Administration Approval: 142{2203/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval: 12/22




Patient Care Services
Obstetrical and Postparium Patients in the ED
FPage 2 of 4




Patient Care Services
Obstetrical and Postparium Patients in the ED
Page 3 of 4




Patient Care Services
Obstetricat and Postparium Patients in the ED
Page 4 of 4

Is the patient
pregnant?

Has she given birth in the
last 8 weeks ?

Is the patient 2 20 weeks
in pestation?

Obtain Vital Signs and
1efer 10 Preeclampsia
Warnimg Tool

Obtain Fetal Heart
Tones and Vital Slgns

Triage & Treat in ED
per ED protocols

Triage & Treat in ED
pet ED protocols

Vital Signs

Normal

Vital Signs
Abnormal

Vitals/Heart

Vitals/Heart
Tones Narmal

Tones Abnormal

ED Triage RN to

Notity ED MD notify LD Charge
RN
ED MD to ED Tiiage RN
Physiological Yellow Triggers Red Triggers directly notify to notify OB
Parameters {2 or more} {1 or more} OB MD MD
SBP (repeat in 315min) <90 or >140-159* 2160*
DBP {repeatin 15min) >a0* 2110*
MAP <65 or >110 <55
HR <40 or 110-120 »>120
RR <12 or 25-30 >30
02 Saton RA <95% <93%
Oliguria: mifhr for 22 tws 35-49 <35

Severe Red Triggers

Altered mental status

Maternal agitation, confusion or

UNTESPONSIVeness

Neurologic

Unrelenting, severe headache unresponsive to

medication

Visual Disturbances

Blurred or impaired vision

Physical

Shortness of breath or epigastric pain

*If Yellow or Red BP triggers, recheck BP within 15 minutes

IF O2 Sat <93% or RR >24 CONSIDER PULMONARY EDEMA



(c‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

PNEUMATIC TOURNIQUET USE AND SAFETY

Purpose:

To outline nursing responsibilities for the safe use of pneumatic tourniquets.

Supportive Data:

Pneumatic tourniquets are frequently used for procedures involving the extremities.
A tourniquet is a fabric-covered cylindrical bladder inflated by compressed gas or
ambient air. It applies circumferential pressure on arterial and venous circulation,
resulting in a relatively bloodless surgical field to promote visualization of structures
during the procedure. Limb exsanguination is achieved by elevating and/or
wrapping the limb, distally to proximally, with an ACE or esmarch rubber bandage
before tourniquet inflation. Pain from the tourniquet is one of the most common
complications related to pneumatic tourniquet use. Other possible complications
include cardiovascular, respiratory, cerebral circulatory, and hematological effects
related to the metabolic changes that result from ischemia caused by pneumatic
tourniquet use, as well as temperature changes, postoperative swelling of the
affected limb, and arterial injury.

Equipment; Pneumatic tourniquet machine
Tourniquet cuff (appropriately sized for patient)
Padding
POLICY:

1.

Pneumatic tourniquets and accessories should be inspected, tested and maintained by Biomed
at the recommended time intervals according to manufacturer's recommendations.

2. The physician/Allied Health Professional (AHP) performing the procedure/caring for the patient
determines if a tourniquet will be used for the procedure, after considering the risks and benefits
to the patient, position and placement on the extremity.

3 The Registered Nurse {RN) shall assess the patient preoperatively for risks and potential
contraindications related to the use of a pneumatic tourniquet, including, but not limited to: nerve
injury, skin injury (e.g., blistering, bruising, or necrosis}, impaired circulation or peripheral
vascular compromise, previous revascularization of the extremity, extremities with a dialysis
graft, compartment syndrome, deep vein thrombosis (DVT), extremity infection, tumor distal to
the tourniquet and pain.

4. Prior to tourniquet cuff placement, the RN shall assess the patient’s skin integrity at the intended
tourniquet site, as well as size and shape of the extremity and peripheral pulses distal to the
cuff.

a. The width of the tourniquet and size should be individualized to the size and shape of
the patient's limb.

51 Procedures involving pneumatic tourniquet control on two extremities should have the
tourniguet tubing labeled to clearly identify which tubing belongs to which cuff and which is
associated with each component of the tourniquet system.

6. Tourniquet cuff should be applied to the verified operative extremity in a location with adequate
muscle mass to preserve nerves and vessels.

7. Tourniquet inflation pressure is determined by the physician/AHP and shall be established
based on the systolic blood pressure, age of the patient and circumference of the extremity.

a. Inflation should be kept to the minimum effective pressure.

8. Tourniguet time will be kept to a minimum and deflation managed to minimize risks to the
patient.

9. Pneumatic tourniquets should be inflated and deflated under the direction of the surgeon/AHP
and the anesthesiologist.

10. The surgeon shall be kept informed of the duration of tourniquet time. When prolonged
tourniguet time is needed, it is recommended that the tourniquet be released for reperfusion of

Patient Care Clinical
Services Policies & Nursin Oparating Pharmacy. e Medical Profess.ional Board of
Comont | Procadunes | Lostoah | comonri, | "Comnse’ | Gomeen | ™" | comtes | Decers
08/94,
ggﬁg:og;:zzé 05/12.0018. | 520118 | 07118, 02024 n/a 0os Gora | 1011803124 07112, n/a PUAS




Patient Care Services
Pneumatic Tourniquet Use and Safety Procedure

Page 2 ot 3

11.

12.

133
14.

the limb after two (2) hours of tourniquet inflation time, allowing blood to circulate for 15 minutes.
The tourniquet may then be reinflated.

Pneumatic tourniquet activation indicators and pressure displays should be visible and audible
alarms should be sufficiently loud to be heard above other sounds in the OR/procedure room.
After deflation, the tourniquet and padding should be removed from the extremity to allow full
circulation to return to the extremity.

The patient should be monitored for pain and temperature while the tourniquet is inflated.

The patient should be monitored postoperatively for the following:

Vital signs, including oxygen saturation and temperature

Skin condition under the tourniquet (i.e., temperature, color, integrity)

Pulses distal to the tourniquet cuff

Surgical wound site (i.e., dressings, drains)

Biood loss

2000D

B. PROCEDURE:

1

o

10.

1.

12.

Prior to tourniquet use, the RN shall ensure the entire tourniquet system is complete, clean, and

functioning according to the manufacturer's instructions for use (IFU).

a. If a pneumatic tourniquet is not working properly or is damaged, it should be removed
from service immediately and reported to Biomed for maintenance.

Turn on the pneumatic tourniquet machine and allow the machine to perform automatic system

checks, according to the manufacturer's IFU.

Select the proper size tourniquet cuff. Tourniquet cuffs should overlap a minimum of three (3)

inches and a maximum of six (6) inches.

a. A tourniquet cuff that is too short can loosen after inflation.

b. A tourniquet cuff with excess overlap can pinch skin folds.

Verify the correct surgical site prior to tourniquet cuff application.

Apply padding (i.e., low-lint soft padding, such as a limb protection sleeve, or two layers of

stockinette) around the limb at the intended tourniquet cuff site, according to manufacturer's

IFU.

a. Padding should be smooth and wrinkle-free.

Apply the tourniquet cuff over the padding, according to manufacturer's IFU, ensuring the cuff

tubing is positioned on or near the lateral aspect of the extremity.

a. Latera! placement of the cuff tubing may help avoid pressure on nerves of the extremity
and prevent kinking of the tubing.

Keep the patient’s skin dry under the tourniquet cuff. Avoid pooling of prep solutions or

irrigation under the cuff,

Avoid rotating the cuff after application. If the cuff must be repositioned, it shall be removed and

reapplied in the desired location.

Connect tubing from the pneumatic tourniquet machine to the cuff, according to manufacturer's

IFU.

Program pressure settings as ordered by the physician/AHP. Program and operate the

tourniquet according to manufacturer's |FU.

Completely remove the deflated cuff and any underlying padding immediately following final cuff

deflation.

Examine extremity after the tourniquet is removed for color, warmth, and the presence of a

palpable pulse.

DOCUMENTATION:

1.

Document tourniquet information in the Electronic Health Record (EHR), including the following
information:

a. Tourniquet equipment [D number (i.e., serial number)

b. Cuff pressure

C. Time inflated and deflated



Patient Care Services
Pneumatic Tourniquet Use and Safety Procedure

Page 3 of 3
d. Location of tourniquet cuff
e. Skin condition under the cuff before tourniquet cuff application and after tourniquet cuff
removal
f. Name of person applying the tourniquet cuff
g. Name of person removing the tourniquet cuff

2. Surgery RN's document tourniquet use in the Operating Room (OR) Record.

D. REFERENCE(S):
1. Rothrock, J. C. (2015). Alexander's Care of the Patient in Surgery (15" edition). St. Louis, MO:

Elsevier.
2. Conner, R. (2018). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice, 2018 Edition. Denver, CO:
Association of PeriOperative Registered Nurses.



(c\)) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 10/05 SUBJECT: Single Use Devices, Reprocessing of
REVISION DATE: 06/09 POLICY NUMBER—IV-KK
Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 09/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 06/0912/23
Nursing Leadership Approval: 01/24
Infection Control Committee Approval: 01/24

i i § ks =0
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 70802/24
Administration Approval: 03724
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 08/0903/24
Board of Directors Approval: 08/09
A. PURPOSE:

A-1. To define and identify responsibilities and policies for the reprocessing and reuse of single-use

A-B.

B-C.

medical devices in order to provide and ensure safe and quality patient care.

DEFINITIONS:

1.

Medical Device Reprocessing: The decontamination, cleaning, functional testing, inspection,
packaging and sterilization of devices that have been labeled by the original manufacturer as
single use.

2. Cleaning: The process of removing all visible foreign material from the devices.

3. Contractor: For purposes of this policy, the vendor that has contracted with this facility to
perform the reprocessing function.

4. Disinfection: The cleaning and use of germicidal agents to eliminate pathogenic microorganisms
on inanimate objects.

5. Expired: Devices that are unopened and have exceeded the shelf life recommended by the
manufacturer.

6. Invasive devices: Devices used in invasive procedures, entering the vascular system or other
internal body systems.

7. Non-invasive devices: Devices that are contaminated by contact with a patient, but the contact
was a non-invasive procedure.

8. Open/Unused: Opened but unused devices are single-use, disposable devices whose sterility
has been breached or compromised, or whose sterile packages were opened but the devices
were not used on a patient; that is, they have not been in contact with blood or body fluids.

9, Reprocessing: Reprocessing includes all of the steps performed to make a contaminated
reusable or single-use device patient-ready. The steps may include cleaning, functional testing,
repackaging, relabeling and sterilization.

10. Sterilization: Sterilization is the application of a terminal process designed to remove or destroy
all viable forms of microbial life, including bacterial spores, to an acceptable sterility level.

11. Testing: The process of visually inspecting and functionally testing devices to ensure they meet
all product specifications.

12. Used: Devices that have been in contact with, or exposed to, a patient during patient care.

POLICY:

1.

The Clinical Value Analysis Team has approved the reprocessing of select devices that are
labeled single-use and/or disposable. The reprocessing service is contracted with a vendor
(ASCENT) (Medline or Stryker) that is Food and Drug Administration (FDA) registered and



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Reprocessing of Single Use Devices —P-Kk

Page 2 of 4

operates in accordance with FDA regulations, including Quality System Regulations (QSR} with
design controls {QSR}-and Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP), as well as the most current
FDA regulations

These devuces come under two clas5|f cat|ons Used and OpenIUnused

The reprocessing service shall include all of the following elements:

a. Collection and shipping of devices to the reprocessor
b. Decontamination and cleaning

(o) Inspection and functional testing

d. Packaging

e. Sterilization

f.

Return to facility

G-D. PROCEDURE:

1.

2.

10.

Policies related to Standard Precautions must be followed in the handling and preparation of used

single-use medical devices for shipment to the contractor.

According to the contractor's protocols, each device shall have a tracking number applied to

record how many times the device has been reprocessed;-with-the-exception-of-openiunused

dexises

Each device shall undergo the protocols designed and implemented by the contractor for the

following with the exception of open/unused devices:

a. Decontamination and cleaning of devices sent from client facilities for reprocessing.

b. Functional testing process of the reprocessing service.

Each device shall have a label attached to the packaging that will identify the contractor as the

reprocessing company.

a. in addition, the label shall indicate the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) and
device description

All reprocessed devices shall be packaged and labeled in accordance with the contractor's

protocols.
a. The contractor's packaging shall try to be consistent with the original manufacturer’s
packaging.

The devices shall be returned to the facility after having undergone and passed the sterilization,

inspection and testing protocols.

a. A device shall come to the end of service when it has undergone the number of
reprocessing cycles in accordance with regulatory requirements as tracked by the
contractor.

A device will may-be rejected and not returned to the facility for having failed to pass the

quality inspection and testing protocols.

A report shall be forwarded to Supply Chain Management that indicates which items are available

for purchase and returned -to the facullty

If devices that are not on the Facility Device Identification List are sent to the contractor, the

contractor wnll properly dlspose of the devnce apppe;mate-depaﬁment—shaﬂ-be—made-aw&%ei

The contractor shall prowde contamers for the collectlon of devnces to be reprocessed These
containers will comply with all regulations applicable for collecting and shipping devices for

reprocessing.

a. The collection containers shall be clearly identified as being for reprocessing and shall
have the contractor name prominently displayed.

b. The Clinical Value Analysis Team or its designees shall designate collection locations and

provide storage and preparation areas for this function.



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
| Reprocessing of Single Use Devices —IV-Ki

Page 3 of 4
C. It is the contractor's responsibility to ensure adequate collecting and shipping are being
performed in accordance with agreed-upon scheduling protocols and transportation
vendors.
d. The contractor shall provide shipping boxes that comply with applicable regulations.

i. The shipping system shall include transportation vendor approvals and preprinted
shipping labels.
e. Terms agreed upon for this function are in the Service Agreement.

43-11. The Clinical Value Analysis Team or its designees shall be notified of any corrective actions,
product complaints or preventive actions via the electronic event reporting systemRL
Ealuthens.

+4-12. This policy is applicable to all areas encompassed within the practice of reprocessing single-use
devices. Tri-City Medical Center does not reprocess single use or disposable devices with the
exception of the designated reprocessing contractor(s).

| B-E. REPROCESSING CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS:

1. The reprocessing contractor shall be registered with the FDA.

2. The contractor shall meet applicable federal regulations and guidelines of the FDA, GMP, QSR
with design controls, International Standards Organizations (1SO), Occupational Safety and
Health Administration (OSHA) and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). In addition, the
contractor shall meet all applicable guidelines of AAMI, The Joint Commission, the California
Department of Public Health, and the agency regulating medical waste.

3. The contractor shall clean, decontaminate, inspect, functionally test, package, sterilize, and return
reprocessed devices to the facility in a timely manner so as not to affect the quality of patient
care.

4, The contractor shall maintain a Quality Assurance Program of tracking devices used to determine
the number of reprocessing cycles undergone by each device.

a. Final approval for the number of cycles shall be established jointly by the contractor and
health care facility within FDA regulatory requirements.

6-5. The contractor shall provide an adequate supply of collection containers for the collection and
shipping of devices to the reprocessing facility.

76. Collection containers shall be provided for Open/Unused and Used devices, and these
containers will be clearly marked to indicate the contents are for reprocessing.

EF. HOSPITAL REQUIREMENTS:

T

1. Each department shall work with the contractor representatives to ensure compliance with
collection of devices for reprocessing and appropriate utilization of reprocessed devices that are
returned to the facility or department.

| FG. CLINICAL VALUE ANALYSIS TEAM RESPONSIBILITIES:

1. The Clinical Value Analysis Team shall determine which devices will be reprocessed.

2. The committee shall be involved with future directions and reports on the progress and summary
success of the reprocessing program.

3. It is the responsibility of the Clinical Value Analysis Team or designees to determine safe reuse

practices and establish a policy for reprocessing.



Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Reprocessing of Single Use Devices —-iK

Page 4 of 4
a. The Clinical Value Analysis Team or its designees shall maintain policies and procedures.
4, Approval of any matters regarding the practice of reprocessing single use devices must come
from this committee.
5. Records, reports, policies, procedures or successful implementation suggestions shall be under

the direction of the Clinical Value Analysis Team and shall only be available for dissemination
among hospital departments upon committee approval.

G-H. REFERENCES:
1. APIC Text, 2005, Reprocessing of Single-Use Devices

2. www.fda.gov
3. www . ascenths.com/ (Ascent Healthcare website)




2
(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
POLICY
ISSUE DATE: 0711 SUBJECT: Skin Antisepsis, Surgical/Procedural,
Patient

REVISION DATE: 03/14, 09/17, 12/20
Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 05/2008/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Approval: 06/2009/23
Nursing Leadership Approval: 0742010/23
Operating Room Committee Approval: 08/2002/24
infection Control Commiittee Approval: 09/2001/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 1+1/2002/24
Administration Approval: 42/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12/20

A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for surgical/procedural site skin antisepsis.
B. POLICY:

1.  The surgical/procedural site and the surrounding area shall be free of dirt, debris, alcohol-based
hair or skin products, lotions, deodorant, emollients, and cosmetics before surgical/procedural
preparation.

a. For surgery on the hand or foot, the nails on the operative extremity should be clean and
natural, without artificial nail surfaces (i.e., acrylics, nail extensions).

2. The surgical/procedural site shall be assessed before skin preparation.

a. Presence of lesions, rashes, warts or other skin conditions at the surgical/procedural site
shall be documented and the surgeon shall be notified.
b. Jewelry or body piercings should be removed before skin preparation.
31 Hair at the surgical/procedural site should be left in place whenever possible. If the presence of

hair will interfere with the surgical procedure/procedure and removal is necessary, the following
precautions shall be taken:

a. Hair removal shall be performed as close to the time of surgery/procedure as possible.
b. Hair removal at the surgical/procedural site shali be performed according to physician
orders.
C. Hair removal shall be done in a manner that preserves skin integrity.
i Clip hair at the surgical/procedural site in a manner that minimizes injury to the
skin.

ii. Whenever possible, remove hair in a location outside the operating room.

i, If removing hair outside the operating room is contraindicated or not feasible,
remove hair in the operating room/procedure room in a manner that prevents
dispersal of hair into the environment, such as by wet clipping or by closely
gathering hair with a hair collection device (i.e., suction or adhesive device).

iv. Electric or battery-powered clippers with a disposable or reusable head that can
be disinfected between patients is preferred.
V. Razor use is strongly discouraged, but if used wet shaving is preferable to dry

shaving.



Patient Care Services

Skin Antisepsis, Surgical/Procedural. Patient

Page 2 of 3

vi. A sterile razor may be used by the surgeon to remove hair from the scrotum for
scrotal procedures and implant cases involving the scrotum. The surgeon shall
be provided a sterile razor and supplies to complete a wet shave.

4, The surgical/procedural site and surrounding area shall be prepared with a Food & Drug
Administration (FDA) approved antimicrobial agent in accordance with manufacturer's written
instructions for use (IFU).

a. Selection of antimicrobial agents shall be based on patient allergy or sensitivity, incision
location, procedure type, skin condition, and physician preference.

b. Skin antiseptics shall be packaged in single-use containers and shall be used in the full
concentration as packaged by the manufacturer; do not dilute skin antiseptics prior to
use. '

c. The surgical/procedural site shall be prepared by personnel who are knowledgeable
about the patient and have demonstrated competency in skin preparation technigues
i. Preps shall be performed by a Registered Nurse {RN) or Physician/Allied Health

Professional (AHP).

1) Advanced Care Technicians (ACTs), Nursing-Assistants-Anesthesia
Technicians or Surgical Technicians may prep under the direct
supervision of an RN or Physician/AHP.

d. Confirm the surgical/procedural site before performing preoperative skin antisepsis.

i. The surgicaliprocedure site mark should remain visible after prep application.

e. Preoperative skin antiseptic agents shall be applied using sterile technique, proceeding
from the incision site to the periphery, and according to manufacturer's IFU.

i. Perform hand hygiene before applying preoperative skin antiseptic.

ii. Wear sterile gloves and use sterile supplies when performing preoperative
patient skin antisepsis.

iii. Arms may be covered during performance of preoperative skin antisepsis.

iv. Items that touch the patient's skin after preoperative skin antisepsis should be
sterile to prevent introduction of microorganisms at the surgical/procedural site.

V. Apply the skin antiseptic to an area large enough to accommodate potential
shifting of the surgical/procedural drapes, extension of the incision, potential
additional incisions, and potential drain sites.

vi. Discard the prep applicator after contact with a peripheral or contaminated area.

vii. Highly contaminated areas (e.g., anus, colostomy) near the surgical/procedural
site should be isolated with a sterile barrier drape.

viii. If a highly contaminated area is part of the procedure, the area with a lower
bacterial count is prepped first, followed by the area of higher contamination.

ix. An intestinal or urinary stoma within the surgical/procedural field should be
cleansed gently and separately from the rest of the prepped area.

X. When prepping the anus, vagina, or a stoma, sinus, ulcer, or open wound, the
sponge should be applied once to the area and then discarded.

Xi. Vaginal preps for procedures that include the abdomen should be performed in a
manner to prevent splashing of antiseptic agent expelled from the vagina onto
the prepped abdomen,

1) Vaginal preps, inclusive or exclusive of Foley catheter insertion, are
started and finished by the same RN. The vaginal prep sponges are
removed from the vagina prior to disposal of prep supplies/Foley catheter
supplies, to prevent unintentional retention of the vaginal prep sponges.

5. Patient skin antisepsis shall be done in a manner that preserves skin integrity and prevents
injury.

a. Antimicrobial agents shall not be allowed to pool beneath the patient, tourniquets,

electrocardiography (ECG) electrodes, positioning equipment, or electrosurgical
dispersive pad. Remove any material near the patient that is in contact with the skin
antiseptic solution and replace as necessary.



Patient Care Services
Skin Antisepsis. Surgical/Procedural, Patient

Page 3 of 3

b. Place a fluid-resistant pad under the patient's buttocks during preoperative skin
antisepsis for patients in the lithotomy position. Remove the pad after the antiseptic is
dry and before sterile drapes are applied.

c. Apply the antiseptic with care (i.e., gentle friction} on fragile tissue, burns, open wounds,
or malignant areas.

6. Skin antiseptics shali be stored in the original, single-use container, according to manufacturer's

IFU.

7. Special considerations for flammable (i.e., alcohol-based) antiseptic solutions include:

a. Prevent the flammable skin antiseptic solution from pooling or soaking into linens or the

patient's hair by:

i. Use sterile towels to absorb drips and excess solution during application.

ii. Remove materials that are saturated with the skin antiseptic before the patient is
draped.

iii. Wick excess solution with a sterile towel to help dry the surgical/procedural prep
area compietely.

b. Allow sufficient time for the flammable skin antiseptic solution to dry completely and
vapors to dissipate before the surgical/procedural drapes are applied and any
heatfignition source is used.

i. Heat/ignition sources include: electrosurgery, cautery, laser, burrs, drills,
defibrillators, and light cords.
ii. Verify in a “time out” before starting the procedure that a flammable skin
antiseptic was used to prep and confirm dry time was met.
8. Skin preparation agents shall not be warmed prior to application.
9. Assess the patient’s skin for injury after surgery.
10. Patient skin preparation, hair removal, and skin condition shall be documented in the

Perioperative/Procedural record.

C. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Patient Care Services Policy: Sterile Technique

D. REFERENCE(S):
1. AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver



RETIRE - the process for ordering
specialty beds needs updating.
Once new process identified, add
PATIENT CARE SERVICES as a related document to the Skin
and Wound Policy

2
@9 Tri-City Medical Cent
Oceanside, California

ISSUE DATE: 03/02 SUBJECT: Special Order Durable Medical
Equipment and Specialty Beds

REVISION DATE: 02/04, 11/06, 07/09, 11/12, 02/13 POLICY NUMBER:—N-S

Department Approvai: 11H14701/24
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 14114701/24
Nursinge LeadershipExecutive-Gouncil Approval: 42/1702/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 01/1802/24
Administration Approval:

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 02/18

Board of Directors Approval: 02/18




£
(L] [ e

@’) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE:

06/10 SUBJECT: Surgical Attire

| REVISION DATE: 02/12, 06/17, 06/20

Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 0312006/23
Clinical Policies and Procedures Approval: 03/2007/23
Nursinge LeadershipExecutive-Gommittee Approval: 04/2008/23
Operating Room Committee Approval: 04/2002/24
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 05/2002/24
Administration Approval: 06/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nla
Board of Directors Approval: 06/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To provide guidelines for attire worn within the semi-restricted and restricted areas of the
surgical environment and invasive procedure areas, for patient and personnel safety.

B. DEFINITION(S):

| 1.

Restricted areas: Areas which are accessible only from semi-restricted areas. Wearing of
surgical attire is required and masks are required in the presence of open sterile supplies or
scrubbed personnel. Restricted areas include the Operating Rooms (OR’s) and sub-sterile
rooms.

Semi-restricted areas: Areas which are accessible from unrestricted, other semi-restricted, or
restricted areas. Wearing of surgical attire is required. Semi-restricted areas include corridors
leading to the Operating Rooms, sterile storage rooms, peripheral support areas, and sterile
processing areas.

Unrestricted areas: Areas which are accessible from the exterior of the building, other
unrestricted areas or semi-restricted areas. Wearing of surgical attire is not required.

Health care-accredited laundry facility: An organization that processes health care linens
and has successfully passed an inspection of its facility, policies and procedures,
training programs and relationships with customers.

C. POLICY:

1.

Clean surgical attire shall be worn when entering the semi-restricted and restricted areas.
a. After each daily use, scrub attire shall be laundered at a health care—-accredited laundry
facility.
b. Laundered surgical attire shall be stored in a manner that prevents contamination.
C. Scrub attire that has been penetrated by blood, body fluids, or other potentially infectious
materials must be removed immediately or as soon as possible, and replaced with clean
attire.
Remove surgical attire before leaving Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC).
e. Personal elethingapparel worn under scrub attire {i.e., a t-shirt worn under the scrub top)
must be completely covered by the surgical attire and shall be laundered daily.
i. Personal elethingapparel is home-laundered, however, personal clethingapparel
contaminated with blood, body fluids, or other potentially infectious materials
must remain at TCMC for laundering at a health care accredited laundry facility.

o



Patient Care Services

Surgical Atlire

Page 2 of 3

Scrub attire shall be made from fabric that is tightly woven and low-linting.

Arms may be covered during performance of pre-operative patient skin antisepsis.

i Use care not to contaminate the prep with a loose-fitting long sleeve.

If worn, cover apparel (i.e., lab coats) should be clean.

Visitors entering the semi-restricted or restricted areas (e.g., law enforcement officers,
parents, biomedical engineers) should don either clean surgical attire or a single-use
jumpsuit (i.e., bunny suit) designed to completely cover perscnal apparel.

All personnel entering the surgicalfinvasive procedure area must wear an identification
badge/tag per Administrative Policy: Identification of Employees and Non-TCHD Employees
436.

—F @~

a. Identification badges shall be cleaned with a low-level disinfectant daily, and when the
badge becomes soiled with blood, body fluids, or other potentially infectious materials.

b. Identification badges shall be worn pinned to scrubs; identification tags (stickers) shall
be placed directly on scrubs. Lanyards should not be worn.

c. Identification badges/tags shall be worn above waist level.

d. Decorative pins shall not be worn on scrubs.

Cover the scalp and hair with hospital provided surgical bouffant cap or skull cap when
entering the semi-restricted and restricted areas.

a. Remove head coverings at the end of the shift or when they are contaminated.

b. Personal home laundered hair and scalp covers shall:

i. Be laundered daily

ii. Be completely covered with a hospital provided surgical bouffant cap.

iii. Remain at TCMC to be laundered by a health care-accredited laundry
facility if contaminated with blood, body fluid or other potentially infectious
material.

Cover a beard when entering the restricted areas and while preparing and packaging items in
the clean assembly section of Sterile Processing Department (SPD).
Wear clean shoe covers when entering the semi-restricted or restricted areas.

a. Wear protective footwear that provides protection from falling or rolling objects. Open
toed shoes shall not be worn.

b. Fluid-resistant shoe covers or boots must be worn when gross contamination can
reasonably be anticipated.

c. Shoe covers are single-use personal protective equipment (PPE) and shall be removed

immediately after use. After removal, discard the shoe covers and perform hand
hygiene. Shoe covers may not be worn outside of the surgical suite/invasive procedure

area.
Den a clean mask before each procedure.
a. All personnel entering the semi-restricted or restricted areas of the surgical

suitefinvasive procedure area shall wear a mask when scrubbed personnel or open
sterile supplies are present.

b. Select the mask that provides the best fit for the individual. The mask should completely
cover the mouth, nose, and chin and fit snugly in a manner that prevents gaps at the
sides of the mask.

i. Masks with ear loops may not provide secure facial fit and are not intended for
use as surgical masks.

c. Replace the mask and discard it whenever it becomes wet or soiled.

d. Remove the mask last when worn in combination with other PPE, including a gown,
gloves, or eye protection.

€. Do not wear used masks hanging around the neck.

ef. Remove the mask last by touching only the ties without touching the front of the mask.
Discard it in a waste receptacle and perform hand hygiene.

Jewelry (i.e., rings, watches, and bracelets) shall not be worn on the hands or wrists in patient

care areas.



Patient Care Services

Surgical Attire
Page 3 of 3
a. For additional guidelines on jewelry, accessories and piercings, refer to TCMC
Administrative Policy Dress and Appearance Philosophy.
8. All perioperative team members should maintain healthy fingernail and hand skin condition
a. Fingernails should be maintained short and natural. Fingernail tips should be no longer
than 2mm (0.08 inch).
b. Nail lacquer or enhanced nail lacquer (gel polish) may not be worn while
performing the scrub role.
b-c.  Artificial fingernails or extenders may not be worn in surgicalfinvasive procedure areas
ed. For additional guidelines on nail polish, refer to TCMC Administrative Policy Dress and
Appearance Philosophy.
g Personal items should be cleaned prior to bringing them into the semi-restricted or restricted
areas.
a. Bags (i.e., backpacks, briefcases) that are not able to be cleaned should be contained in
a plastic bag or be stored in the unrestricted area.
b. Cell phones, tablets, laptops and other personal communication or hand-held electronic

devices should be cleaned before they are brought into the OR/invasive procedure area.
Perform hand hygiene after device cleaning.

D RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Administrative Policy: Dress and Appearance Philosophy 415

2. Administrative Policy: Identification of Employees and Non-TCHD Employees 436

E. REFERENCES:
1. AORN-re—{2020)- Surgical Attire, Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver, CO.,
AORN Inc., 2023, 1089-1103.
1+2. Hand Hygiene, Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver, CO., AORN Inc., 2023, 268-
307,



)
(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

QOceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 3/02 SUBJECT: Utilization of Staff, Staffing Patterns
REVISION DATE:  6/03; 8/05; 5/06; 8/08; 6/09; 7/12 POLICY NUMBER: VII.A
11/16
Patient Care Services Content Expert Approval: 02/2006/23
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/2002/24
Nursing Leadership Approval: 05/2003/24
Medical Staff Department or Division Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
| Administration Approval: 06/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 05/20
A. POLICY:
1. Staffing patterns shall follow mandatory state regulations. In addition, patient acuity shall be
assessed to ensure appropriate staffing levels.
2. The Nursing Leadership has accountability for staffing and work schedules.
3 Nursing staff to assist the-Registered-Nurse{RN; in the provision of patient care may be utilized
as follows:

a. Administrative Supervisor (AS):

i. Assumes responsibility for supervision of staff as a representative of
Administration.

ii. Assumes administrative authority for the level of patient care and standards of
care.

iii. Acts as liaison between all hospital staff, patients, families, physicians, directors,
and administration for routine administrative decisions for their shift.

iv. Manages internal and external supplemental staff—ir-the-absence-of-the-Director;

b. Charge Nurse/designeeignee:

i. Works under the direction of -Nursing Leadership.

i Oversees direct and indirect patient care assignments.

ii. Ensures patient care assignments are in writing and based on the following:

1) Patient - Level of care (intensity of care needs, treatments, and
medications, as determined by the Patient Classification System).
2) Environment: unit geography, location of assigned patients in relation to

each other, and safety.
3) Technology: hemodynamic equipment, respiratory support equipment,
and frequency of required monitoring activities.

4) Supervision: staff competence, skills/abilities, staff mix, and workload
ablllty

5)

8)

7 Regular staff members are responsable for overseelng students per dlem

registry staff, and orientees.



Patient Care Services
Utilization of Staff. Staffing Patterns

Page 2 of 3

e-f.

g-h.

R-i.

M.

iv. Document patient assignments each shift and include the following:
1) Name of -Charge Nurse/desigres-
2) Name of RN responsible to supervise and/or orient any RN or non-RN

personnet performing patient care, students, registry or traveler staff, or
private duty nurses.

3) Name of each caregiver by licensure category and specific assignments
listed by individual patient.

4) Assigned break coverage for each licensed staff member to ensure
minimum staffing ratios are maintained at all times.
a) Documentation of break coverage shall include specific time of

break relief
b) The same Ilcensure or hlgher is requured for break rellef coverage.
V. : s 63 :

Registered Nurse (RN}):

i Works under the direct supervusnon of the nNursmge ILeadership or
designee,

il Plans, supervises, and evaluates the care of all patlents by using the nursing
process.

Procedural Nurse;

I. RN whose primary responsibility is to assist with invasive procedures.

1) Additional duties may be assigned by the Nursing Leadership Ghnical
Manager/designee based on the hospital needs.

ii. if census and activity is low throughout the day, staff may be flexed.

Licensed Vocational Nurse {LVN):

-l Licensed personnel who work under the clinical direction of the RN,
nNursinge ILeadership or designee to provide a basic level of general
nursing care.

Unit Secretary (US):

i. A clerical worker who enters information into the computer system and assists
with reception dutjes.

ii. The US works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by thea charge
nurse-er-chnical-manageron-duty—nNursinge iLeadership or designee.

Monitor Technician:

i A trained personnel who has demonstrated competency in recognition of cardiac
arrhythmias.

ii. Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by the an-ANM-of
desighes-on-duty—nNursinge ILeadership or designee.

chNA/Advanced Care Technician (ACT)Nursing-Assistant:

i A trained personnel who has been taught to perform tasks involving direct care
services for patients.

ii. Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by thea nNurse
I.eadership or designee. a-Charge Nurse—ordesighee-on-duby-

Technicians:

i. A trained personnel who demonstrates competency in caring for patients in
designated area of specialty.

ii. Works under the direction of the RN and is supervised by -the Nursing
LeadershipAhM or designee on duty.

Psychiatric Liaison:

i. A trained personnel (for example licensed MFT/LCSW) who is primarily
responsible to complete patient assessments and provides crisis intervention,
including admission/transfer to an appropriate level of care as necessary in the
Emergency Department.




Patient Care Services

Utilization of Staff Staffing Patterns

Page 3 of 3

4. Volunteers, student nurses, patient-acquired private duty staff, externs, and-patientsafety
technicians-may be utilized per policies.
5. Shift-To-Shift Staffing (if applicable)

a.

Acuity Measurement - A Patient Classification assessment is conducted once per shift

for patients in all nursing units.

i. Laber-&-Delivery-clinisal-pProcedural areas and the -8&-Emergency
Department are excluded and utilize census only numbers.

The Charge Nurse /designee Nursing Leadership ensures all Patient Classification are

completed for their units by 1400 designated timeframes (for example 1500 and 6206-

0300).

The Charge Nurse /designee thea-completes the staffing needed for the next shift based

on the acuity of the patients, minimum staffing ratios and the expected patient volume.

i. This information is communicated to the-Staffing-Office to the nursing unit
leadership and to the Administrative Supervisor.:

The Administrative Supervisor or designee will communicate to outside agencies

for staffmg needs

After all TCMC available resources have been effectively utilized, the Charge

Nurse/designee shall evaluate staffing the units using the staffing matrix. FcMGtoel-

i. Staffing needs or staffing reductions due to periods of decreased census and
patient requirements shall be coordinated by the Staffing-Office-Managers:
Direstors; Nursing Leadership and/or Administrative Supervisors. This includes
ensuring rotations are fair and equitable and specialized unit needs are covered.

B. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Allied Health Students in the Patient Care Areas
2. PCS Policy: Nursing Students in Patient Care Areas
&) PCS Policy: Volunteers, Patient Care Services Departments



(C‘) Tri-City Medical Cente
Oceanside, California

RETIRE - follow Online Skills
Negative-Pressure Wound Therapy

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 6/06 SUBJECT: Wound V.A.C. (Vacuum Assisted
Closure), Negative Pressure
Therapy Policy

REVISION DATE: 12/08, 06/11; 11/14

Patient Care Services Content Expert: 03/2001/24

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 05/2001/24

Nursing Leadership Approval: 06/2002/24

Medical Staff Department or Division Apprval: nia

Pharmacy and Therapeutics: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval. 06/2002/24

Administration Approval: 07/2003/24

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa

Board of Directors Approval: 08/20




Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Wound VA C. (Vacuum Assisted Closure). Negative Pressure — V.01
Page 2 of 8




Palient Care Senices Policy Manual
Wound VA C. {(Vacuum Assisted Closure), Negative Pressure — 1V D1
Page 3 of 8




FPaterd Care Services Policy Manual
Wound VA G (Vacuum Assisted Closure). Negative Pressue — IV D1

Page 4 of 8
. VALC. . Elo tinstillat ) _— byC ina R
(OR}PestAnesthesia-Gare Unit (PAGU} -Wounrd/Ostomy-registered-rurses




Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Wound VA C. (Vacuum Assisled Closure). Negative Pressure — IV 0.1

Page 5 of 8
p}— The V.A C Ulta has presetsetingsforthetneision management
which is 125 mmHg cantifueds
%—mmmmmmmmmdﬂma

a—smmmammmmmm#mﬁeﬁ
tormore than 2 hours in any 24-Reurperod-tvery by checking therapy historyythe
dressing must be removed and replasad-
b #aVAGMEWHM@me




FPatent Care Services Policy Manual
Wound VA C (WVacuum Assisted Closure), Negative Pressure - 1V 01
Page 6 of &

p——%l%&pﬂd&%%th&hﬂ&m
(8 —Do-not cut the TR AC. pad off or-insed-tubinginicthe foamthis-will cause unit
toalamwhemumad-enr




Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Wiund VoA C. (Vacuum Assisted Closure). Negative Pressure — 1V 001
Fage 7 ol 8




Patient Care Services Policy Manual
Wound VAT (Vacuum Assisled Closure). Negative Pressure - IV.01
Page 8 of B

-  Ensure clamps are open.
—— Gheck that the canisier is pushed fully-te-theonit
i Ensure that T R A G pad is neot clogged Cuteutold T RALC pad Lasuie hole
in drape is cut the size of a guanter. Then replicewithpew TR A C pad
&  ewballery
- Check all connections to ensure balteryshargeris-connested-to wall plug and o
the-backofthe W.A G unit.

Standards of Care
W Fer V.A G Ulta with VeraFle {instilatientherapy)
1} Dosument—instillation-{irrigation solution - in-the-electronic- medication




@) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE
Patient Care

ISSUE DATE: NEW SUBJECT: Delivery-ofthe-Conditions of
Admission Consent Form Delivery

REVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBER: 8610-NEW

Administrative Content Expert Approval: 10/23

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 10/23

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a

Administration Approval: 03/24

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a

Board of Directors Approval:

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To ensure the standard Conditions of Admission (COA) form is appropriately communicated and
signed by the patient or their authorized representative at time of admission to Tri-City Medical
Center (TCMC). The COA form serves as the initial consent for treatment at Tri-City Medical
Center and other consents may be obtained depending on the context of care.

B. POLICY STATEMENT:

1.

Consent is necessary prior to any treatment or procedure, except in emergency situations. All
facility admissions require the COA form signed by the patient or their authorized representative
at the time of each hospital outpatient visit or bedded admission encounter.

For recurring hospital outpatient accounts, this form is required to be obtained at the initial visit of
a treatment pian and/or after periods of more than 90 days between services for ongoing
treatment.

The contents of the COA form are reviewed by patient access staff with the patient and/or the
patient's authorized representative during the admission process.

The patient's or authorized representative’s signature is obtained confirming consent for care,
receiving a Patient Rights and Responsibilities, knowledge of billing information, and receipt of
the Notice of Privacy Practices. The patient or their representative may be referred to appropriate
administrative or clinical staff with questions about the COA form.

Changes to the COA form are not permitted.

Patient Access staff are responsible for explaining the contents of Conditions of Admission form
and obtaining appropriate signatures, and proper labeling and scanning the form into the
electronic health-medical record (EHMR) (if appropriate).

In the event a signature cannot be obtained at admission, a TCMC staff member will indicate the
reason on the COA and follow-up will occur to ensure that each patient's healthmedical record
contains a signed Conditions of Admission form.

C. DEFINITIONS:

1.

Workforce Member: Employees, Medical Staff, Allied Health Professionals (AHP}),
volunteers, trainees, Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose



Admimstrative Policy Manual — Patient Care
Conditions of Admissicn Consent Form Delivery
Page 2 of 3

conduct, in the performance of work for Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD), is under the
d|rect control of TCHD whether or not they are pald by TCHD.

D. PROCEDURES:

1. Obtaining consent for COA form:
a. The following steps are performed at the time of registration. These steps may also be
performed on the unit if the patient 1s admitted directly to a room.
| bd.  During admission, a Patient Access staff member reviews the Condition of

Admission form with the patient or the patient's authorized representative.
| e-b. Points to emphasize during COA review:
i. Consent to receive medical care from the providers at Tri-City Medical Center.
i, If a staff member is accidently exposed to your blood or body fluids, you give
consent to be tested for certain viruses so caregivers can be quickly treated.
iii. The physicians are independent contractors. The hospital participates in the
training of healthcare personnel.

iv. TCMC is not responsible for personal items or valuables.
V. Weapons, drugs, tobacco, and prohibited behaviors are not permitted on TCMC
property.
vi. Medical information may be disclosed to your insurance plan(s} for payment.
vii. The patient may receive bills from other providers associated with their care at a
Tri-City Medical Center facility.
vili The Notice of Privacy Practices brochure is offered to the patient and/or their
representative to keep.
iX. Patient Rights and Responsibilities information is offered to the patient and/or their
representative.
X. Changes to the COA form are not permitted.
Xi, The patient or their authorized representative signs COA form.
2. If no signature can be cbtained at admission
a. If patient is unable to sign COA form and no authorized representative can be reached at
admission, then TCMC staff members will indicate the reason on the COA.
b. Patient Access staff will make multiple attempts to communicate the content of the COA

form and have the patient sign and/or reach their authorized representative for signature.
Such attempts are documented in the Encounter Notes in the EHMR.

ct During the attempts to gain a signature, Patient Access will continue to seek a signature
until such time the patient is discharged. If patient is discharged without COA signed,
clinical information in the chart should reflect the urgency of the admission and the
patient’s inability to receive COA communication throughout their encounter.

d. Access staff may also seek assistance of the clinical unit staff to help obtain the COA
signature.
<} Patient or patient's authorized representative guidelines
a. In the event that a patient is not able to sign upon admission or is a minor who cannot

consent for themselves, follow California Hospital Association (CHA) Consent guidelines
to determine if the person with the patient meets criteria as a legal representative.

4, Follow CHA Minor Consent Guidelines to determine if a minor presenting for services is able to
consent for themselves or consent is needed from an authorization representative.
5. if verbal consent is received from the patient or their authorized representative it must be

documented on the COA form including the date, time and reiationship to patient. The COA will
| be witness by two TCMC employees and documented in the Encounter Notes in the EHMR
system.

E. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
| 1, Conditions of Admission (COA) form



Administrative Policy Manual - Patient Care
Conditions of Admission Consent Form Delivery

Pagi 30of 3
2. Patient Care Services Policy: Patient Rights and Responsibilities
3. Administrative Policy: Notice of Privacy Practices 518
4 Administrative Policy: Non-Retaliation for Reporting Compliance issues or Suspected

Misconduct 560

F. REFERENCE(S):
1. 45 C.F.R. parts 160 and 164

2. California Civil Code Section 56 et. seq.
3. California Health & Safety Code Section 1232221
4. California Hospital Association Consent Manual



(@»Tri-(:ity Health Care District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE

PATIENT CARE
ISSUE DATE: 06/11 SUBJECT: Event Reporting
REVISION DATE(S): 08/15, 04/19 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-396
Administrative Patient Care Content Expert Approval: 40/4807/23
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 02/1910/23
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/1902/24
Administration Approval: 04/1803/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 04/19

A. PURPOSE:

1.

Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) has a software system to track, trend, and respond to events
that may have an impact, or potential impact, on patients, visitors, employees, and or medical
staff. Reporting and responding to these occurrences is a process engaged to objectively and
systematically monitor and evaluate quality and appropriateness of patient care. This helps to
identify areas or events of concern and timely resolve quality and risk issues on an ongoing
basis. This will improve the quality of patient care, patient safety, and potentially reduce health
care costs and liabilities. These reportable events include unusual occurrences, adverse events,
near misses, and sentinel events.

B. DEFINITIONS:
1.

6-5.

Adverse Event. An occurrence that causes the death or serious disability of a patient,
personnel, or visitor, and as listed in Section 1279.1 of the California Health and Safety Code.
Events listed in this section of law represent only a portion of events that should be entered into
the on-line event reporting system.

Near Miss Event: an unplanned event that did not result in injury, illness, damage or death but
had the potential to do so. Only a fortunate break in the chain of events prevented the event
from occurring.

Sentinel Event: an unexpected occurrence involving death or serious physical or psychological
injury or the risk thereof. The phrase “or the risk thereof’ includes any process variation for
which recurrence would carry a significant chance of a serious adverse outcome.

Software System Event Reporting: An online system designed to collect data/information
regarding events that may have an impact or potential impact on patients, visitors, employees,
medical staff. This software is for, but not limited to, reporting of employee injuries, patient
compliments and complaints, medication errors, clinical misadventures, and near misses. The
event report is legally privileged information and typically exempt from discovery pursuant to
applicable law.

Unusual Occurrence: Any event that deviates from regular operations or standards and results
in, or could have resulted in (near miss), an adverse cutcome for patients, staff, or visitors.
Workforce Member. Employees, Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals, volunteers,
trainees, Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose conduct, in the
performance of work for TCHD, is under the direct control of TCHD whether or not they are paid
by TCHD.

C. POLICY:



Administrative Patient Care
Event Reporting Policy 8610-396

Page 2 of 3

1.

All workforce members at TCHD are responsible for participating in the identification of
reportable events including near miss events and reporting via the event reporting software.

a. The employee who is most closely involved or discovers an event or concern, should
complete an event report with as much detail about the event as possible.

b. Medical Staff members can initiate an event report by contacting the Medical Staff office
Quality Coordinator or by entering the event themselves utilizing the event reporting
software.

c. All non-TCHD employees (i.e. travelers, registry, and contracted service individuals) will
report events up through their chain of command for entry in the event reporting
software.

The event report should:

a. Be timely, objective, informative, and factually describe what happened as well as any
follow-up that was done.

b. Not be left unattended, copied, shared with a patient, e visitor or anyone who does not

have the need to know, filed or referenced in the employee’s personnel file, or removed

from premises without the express consent of either the Risk or Legal Department.

(o3 Not be a part of the medical record and shall not be referenced in the medical record at
any time. The event may be recorded in the medical record as appropriate.

Events that should be immediately brought to the attention of the Risk Managementr and or

AdministrativeHouse Supervisor as necessary include but are not limited to:

a. Sentinel events and other high level concerns.

i. If the event occurs after office hours or on weekends, the Administrator on-call
will determine whether or not to contact Risk Management.

ih. Entry of the event report should not delay or interfere with appropriate clinical
care or intervention.

iii. Department leadership will perform an investigation on any occurrence that is
identified as a potential risk. Risk Management will assist with complex
investigations including root cause analyses. Documentation of this follow-up will
be entered into the event reporting software.

b Any events involving actual or alleged criminal activity including, but not limited to,
abuse, neglect, battery, assault, sexual misconduct, or mistreatment of patient or staff,

i. A police report should also be filed as appropriate.

i, Risk Management or their designee will convene a team of individuals as
necessary to investigate, take action and follow-up.

1) Mandatory reporting will be done in collaboration with the Regulatory
Department.
When an event occurs, the workforce member will:
a. Perform the necessary interventions to support and optimize the patient's clinical
condition
b. Notify the patient’s attending physician.

i. Notification of the physician and any new orders as a result of an event will be
documented in the patient's electronic health record (EHR)

c. Preserve any information related to the event including physical evidence
d. Document the facts regarding the event both in event reporting system and the EHR as
indicated

All event reports are automatically routed to the leadership of the area in which the event
occurred and simultaneously to Risk Management for assessment. Risk Management routes
the file to any additional appropriate recipients who did not receive the file via automated
routing.

a. If the Medical Staff Quality Coordinator believes that the event requires peer review or
other Medical Staff action, the Coordinator may share a summary of the event, but not
the event report itself, with the appropriate Medical Staff officer, committee, or
department in accordance with Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation/Peer Review
Process 8710-509



Administrative Patient Care
Event Reporting Policy 8610-396

Page 3of3
D. PROCEDURE:
1. Log into the software on the TCHD Intranet to report an event.

b-a. Complete aII mandatory mformatron f elds The mandatory f elds have a green asterisk
next to them.

e-b.  Additional documents may be attached/uploaded to the file in a section labeled
attachments found on every reporting template.

d-c. After completing all required fields, left click the green “"Submit Button” in the lower right
hand corner of the template. Staff will receive a file number which has been assigned to
the event.

2. File managers’ responsibilities:

a. The Director or designated manager must acknowledge receipt of the file and follow-up
within 72 hours of receipt. The file should be closed out within 7 days of entry with the
exception of events requiring complex or extensive investigation.

3. Risk Management responsibilities:

a. Risk Management will coordinate necessary actions after the completion of the
investigation.

b. Risk Management may initiate a hold on the billing associated with an adverse clinical
event until such time as a determination may be made as to whether or not the patient
and or their insurance should be billed for the care at issue. Events that trigger a billing
hold must be resolved within 45 days for timely action by financial services.

c. Risk Management is responsible for forwarding physician-specific events to the Medical
Staff office. The Medical Staff office determines whether or not the event will be subject
to one or more means of formal review.

d Event report data will be analyzed and monitored to identify patterns or trends in order to
optimize patient safety and the delivery of consistently high quality patient care. Proper
analysis will result in corrective action instituted to reduce the probability of occurrence
or recurrence. Employees and medical staff are encouraged to recommend
improvements related to events reported in the software.

e. If Risk Management determines an event requires a Root Cause Ana|y5|s (RCA), Risk
Management will convene a team for that purpose. The RCA process will include
thorough event investigation, group analysis of the event, and creation of an action plan
to reduce risk and measure progress.

E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Administrative Policy: Assault and Battery Reporting Process 8610-241
2. Administrative Policy: Disclosure of Unanticipated Adverse Outcomes to Patients/Families
8610-275
3. Administrative Policy: Mandatory Reporting Requirements 8610-236
4. Medical Staff Policy: Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation/Peer Review Process 8710-509
5. Patient Care Services Policy: Assault Victims/Domestic Violence Reporting Requirements
6. Patient Care Services Policy: Patient Complaints and Grievances
7. Patient Care Services Policy: Reporting Suspected Child Abuse/Neglect
8. Patient Care Services Policy: Reporting Suspected Dependent Adul/Elder Abuse/Neglect
g. Reporting of and Responding to Unusual Occurrences
F. REFERENCE(S}:
1 California Evidence Code 1156
2. The Patient Safety and Quality Improvement Act of 2005
3. California Health and Safety Code 1279.1
4 Catifornia Hospital Association Consent Manual (2023204%)



(@)Tri-City Health Care District
QOceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE

COMPLIANCE
ISSUE DATE: 10/02 SUBJECT: Business Associate Agreement
REVISION DATE: 12/02; 06/06; 07/09, 06/15 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-511
Administrative Compliance Content Expert Approval: 03/4801/23
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 03/1803/23
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 05/4803/24
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Administration Approval: 03/24
Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Approval: 18/48 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 10M19

A PURPOSE:

1.

The purpose of this policy is to outline the criteria for a business associate and establishes
criteria for disclosing protected health information to a business associate, including the
required content of a Business Associate Agreement.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

Business Associate: A person or organization who, on behalf of Tri-City Healthcare District
(TCHD), performs certain functions or activities or services that require the Business Associate
to create, receive, maintain or transmit protected health information (PHI) on behalf of TCHD or
where TCHD needs to disclose PHI to Business Associate for services.

Business Associate Agreement (BAA): An Agreement, Contract or Addendum to an applicable
Contract or Services Agreement between TCHD and a Business Associate that outlines the
specific obligations of the Business Associate related to the Use or Disclosure of TCHD PHi.
Covered Entity: Includes health care providers like TCHD that transmit health information in
electronic form in connection with certain standard transactions (e.g. claims processing,
reference laboratories). See HHS.gov. for further definitions:

Covered Entities and Business Associates | HHS.qov

Data Use Application: Describes the purpose, controls and safeguards agreed to by the
Business Associate and Covered Entity.

Designated Record Set: Those documents whether maintained in paper, film or electronic
formats, that comprise the individual patient's medical record as approved by the Medical
Executive Committee, that comprises the individual patient’s billing records, and any documents
used in whole or in part by TCHD to make decisions about individuals, including copies from
another heaith care provider's Designated Record Set.

Protected Health [nformation (PHI): Individually identifiable health information transmitted or
maintained in paper, electronic, or other form that is created or received by TCHD and

a. Relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an
individual.

Relates to the provision of health care to an individual

Relates to the past, present, or future payment, and

Identifies the individual or

With respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used,
to identify the individual

Services Agreement/and or Contract: An agreement between TCHD and a third party whereby
the third party performs a function, activity or service on behalf of TCHD. Services Agreements

cooo




Administrative Compliance
Business Associate Agreement Policy 8§610-511

Page 2 of 3

that require TCHD to disclose PHI for such functions, activities or services require Business
Associate Agreements and/or Addendums.

Workforce Member: Employees, Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals (AHP),
volunteers, trainees, Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose
conduct, in the performance of work for (TCHD), is under the direct control of TCHD whether or
not they are paid by TCHD.

C. POLICY:

1.

A Business Associate is subject to civil and criminal penalties under Sections 1176 and 1177 of
the Social Security Act and is directly liable for compliance with the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) Privacy and Security Rules.

TCHD and each Business Associate shall protect the privacy and provide for the security of PHI
disclosed to Business Associate in compliance with the HIPAA Regulations.

If TCHD enters into a Services Agreement with a party that is a Business Associate under
HIPAA, TCHD will enter into a BAA with such party before disclosing PHI to it.

TCHD will require that Business Associates ensure that agreements with subcontractors that
receive, maintain or transmit PHI on behalf of the Business Associates for purposes of Business
Associates’ BAAs with TCHD are subject to the same requirements as those in TCHD's BAA.
TCHD also complies with and requires its Business Associates to comply with applicable state
taws and regulatory requirements that may be more stringent than HIPAA, such as those
requiring notification of breaches of PHI.

D. PROCESS:

1.

As part of the HIPAA Regulations, the Privacy Rule requires TCHD to enter into a contract

containing specific requirements with Business Associate prior to the disclosure of PHI. These

requirements include, but may not be limited to the following:

a. In conjunction with TCHD, Business Associate must establish the permitted Uses and
Disclosures of PHI by the Business Associate. HIPAA permits the use of PHI for proper
management and administration.

b. Business Associate must refrain from using or disclosing the PHI other than as permitted
by the BAA or as required by law.

c. Business Associate must use appropriate safeguards to prevent Use or Disclosure of the
information other than as provided for in the BAA.

d. Business Associate shall have implemented a security program that includes

administrative, technical and physical safeguards designed to prevent unauthorized Use
or Disclosure of electronic PHI as required by the Security Rule set forth in subchapter C
of Part 45,

e. Business Associate must report to the-DistricstTCHD any Use or Disclosure of PHI not
provided for in the BAA or any unauthorized or unlawful access, any security incident
and/or breach of PHI.

f. Business Associate must ensure that agents and subcontractors that receive PHI from
the Business Associate agree to the same restrictions and conditions that apply to the
Business Associate.

g. Business Associate shall cooperate with TCHO in fulfiliing requests by individuals for

access to their PHI that are approved by TCHD. if Business Associate maintains PHI
received from TCHD in a Designated Record Set, Business Associate must make
available that information in order to comply with an individual's right to access, inspect,
and copy their health information.

h. If Business Associate maintains PH! in a Designated Record Set, it must also provide
that information in accordance with an individual's right to have the-DistrictTCHD make
amendments to PHI.

i. Business Associate must provide information required to make an accounting of
disclosures of PHI, where such disclosures were made for purposes not related to
treatment, payment, and healthcare operations.



Administrative Compliance
Business Associate Agreement Policy 8610-511
Page 3 of 3

j- Business Associate must agree to make its intemnal practices, books and records related
to the Use and Disclosure of PHI received from or created for TCHD available to the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) for the purpose of determining
TCHD's compliance with HIPAA.

k. Business Associate must return or destroy all PHI in any form at the termination of the
Agreement, unless there is a determination that return or destruction is infeasible
pursuant to the HIPAA Regulations.

I The Business Associate Addendum shall authorize termination of it by TCHD if TCHD
determines that the Business Associate has violated a material term of the Business
Associate Agreement and/or Addendum.

2. The Legal Department or designee responsible for Services Agreements will determine the
need for a BAA. These individuals will determine if the proposed agreement meets the following
criteria:

a. The outside entity or individual is not a TCHD Workforce Member;

b. The outside entity or individual will perform a service or activity “for” or “on behalf of” the
District, and

c. The services or activities of the outside entity or individual involve creating, receiving,
maintaining or transmitting PHI.

d. Ascertain whether the contract involves a covered entity.

3. A TCHD-approved standard HIPAA Business Associate Agreement and Addendum, or a
version thereof, must be executed.

4. When required, Business Associate and TCHD will also execute a Data Use Application.

o The Legal Department or designee responsible for Services Agreements, will ensure that a
HIPAA Business Associate Agreement and/or Addendum is executed concurrently with
execution of each new Services Agreement between TCHD and a party that is identified as a
Business Associate and before any PHI is disclosed by TCHD or used, created or transmitted
by the Business Associate on behalf of TCHD.

6. The executed HIPAA Business Associate Agreement and/or Addendum is filed with the original
Services Agreement in TCHD's Administrative Offices.
7. 3—Best practice is to conduct annual review of BAA in order to keep up to date on rules and
regulations by the Privacy Officer.
E. FORM(S):
1. Business Associate Agreement

2. HIPAA Business Associate - Data Use Application

F. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. Instructions - Data Use Application

G. EXTERNAL LINK(S):
1. Covered Entities and Business Associates | HHS .gov - htips./www hhs gov/hipaa/for-
professionals/covered-entities/index.html

H. REFERENCE(S):
. 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 164.524

45 CFR Section 164.526
45 CFR Section 164.528
45 CFR Section 164.530
45 CFR 160.103.

DA LN



@? Tri-City Medical Center

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Business Associate Agreement (“BAA") is made a part of any and all

agreements entered into by and between Tri-City Healthcare District, a healthcare district
organized under the Local Healthcare District Law of the State of California, and .
Business Associate (‘BA"). This BAA shall become effective on the date executed below.

SECTION 1. RECITALS

A.
B.

D.

TCHD is a “Covered Entity” as defined under 45 C.F.R. §160.103.

TCHD and BA are entering into or have entered into, and may in the future enter into,
one or more agreements (each an “Underlying Agreement’) as a BA of TCHD. This
BAA shall only be operative in the event and to the extent this BAA is incorporated into
an Underlying Agreement between TCHD and BA.

TCHD and BA desire to protect the privacy and provide for security of PHI used by or
disclosed to BA in compliance with the HIPAA Rules (Privacy, Security, Breach
Notification and Enforcement Rules).

This BAA is binding on all TCHD clinics (collectively known as “TCHD").

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS

A

G.

Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) includes the following entities: Tri-City Medical
Center and outpatient clinics, Tri-City Wellness Center outpatient clinics, Tri-City
Primary Care and Orthopedic Specialists of North County.

Business Associate (BA) is a person or organization who, on behalf of TCHD, performs
certain functions or activities or services that require the Business Associate to create,
receive, maintain or transmit PHI on behalf of TCHD or where TCHD needs to disclose
PHI to Business Associate for the services as defined under 45 C.F.R. §160.103.
Business Associate Agreement (BAA) shall have the same meaning as an Agreement,
Contract or Addendum to an applicable Contract or Services Agreement between
TCHD and a BA that outlines the specific obligations of the BA related to the Use or
Disclosure of TCHD PHI.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), the regulations
promulgated thereunder by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (45
C.F.R. Paits 160, 162 and 164) (HIPAA Regulations), the Health Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 (HITECH Act), California
Civil Code §56 et seq., §1798,29 and §1798.82, and other applicable laws and
regulations. The purpose of this BAA is to satisfy certain standards and requirements
of HIPAA Regulations, including 45 C.F.R. §164.504(e), the HITECH Act, including
Subtitle D, part 1, as they may be amended from time to time, and similar requirements
under California law.

Protected Health Information (PHI) as defined in the HIPAA Regulations as that which
is created, received, maintained, or transmitted by BA or any Subcontractor on behalf
of TCHD and shall also include “medical information” as defined by California Civil
Code §56.05.

Designated Record Set are documents, whether maintained in paper, film or electronic
formats, that compromise the Individual's medical record, billing records, and any
documents used in whole or in part by TCHD to make decisions about Individuals
including copies from another healthcare provider's designated record set.
Unsuccessful Security Incident shall mean pings and other broadcast attacks on a
firewall, port scans, unsuccessful iog-on attempts, denials of service, or other similar

Business Associate Agreement (2023) 1



attempted but Unsuccessful Security Incident, or a combination thereof, so long as no
such incident results in unauthorized access, Use or Disciosure of PHI.

H. Capitalized Terms used in this BAA and not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings set forth in the HIPAA Rules, which definitions are incorporated in this BAA
by reference.

SECTION 3. OBLIGATIONS OF BA

A. Comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to TCHD in carrying out
such obligations, to the extent BA carries out any obligations of TCHD under the
Privacy Rule. BA also agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of California
state privacy laws and regulations that apply to TCHD in carrying out such obligations,
to the extent BA carries out any obligations of TCHD under California Civit Code §1798
et seq., California Civil Code §56 et seq., and California Health and Safety Code
§1280.15 and §1280.18, as applicable, unless otherwise mutually agreed to by BA
and TCHD.

B. Not use and disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by the Underlying
Agreement or as Required by Law. A BA is directly liable under certain provisions of
the HIPAA Rules and subject to civil and, in some cases, criminal penalties for making
Uses and Disclosures of PHI that are not authorized by its contract or Required by
Law.

C. Use appropriate safeguards, and comply where applicable with 45 C.F.R. §164
Subpart C with respect to ePHI, to prevent the Use or Disclosure of PHI, including
implementing of the HIPAA Security Rule with regard to ePHI, other than as provided
for by the Underlying Agreement(s) and the BAA. A BA is also directly liable and
subject to civil penalties for failing to safeguard ePHI in accordance with the HIPAA
Security Rule (Omnibus Rule).

D. Notify TCHD's Chief of Compliance and Privacy Officer, in writing, promptly, but in no
event more than five (5) business days, after BA becomes aware of any Use or
Disclosure of the PHI not permitted or required by the BAA or Underlying
Agreement(s), including Breaches of unsecured PHI as required by 45 C.F.R.
§164.410 (each, collectively an “Incident”), provided, however, that the Parties
acknowledge that this Section constitutes notice by BA to TCHD of the ongoing
existence and occurrence of Unsuccessful Security Incidents. BA shall be deemed to
be aware of any such Incident, as of the first day on which it becomes aware of it, or
by exercising reasonable diligence, should have been known to its officers, employees
or subcontractors. The notification to TCHD shall include, to the extent possible, each
Individual whose unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by BA to have
been, accessed, acquired, used or disclosed during such Incident. BA will handle
Breach notifications to affected Individuals, the HHS Office for Civil Rights (OCR),
California Department of Health Services (CDPH), and potentially the media, on behalf
of TCHD. BA shall take prompt corrective action to remedy such Incident, and,
promptly, shall provide to TCHD in writing: (i) the actions initiated by the BA to mitigate.
to the extent practicable, any harmful effect of such Incident; and (ii) the corrective
action BA has initiated or plans to initiate to prevent future similar Incidents.

E. Ensure that any Subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit PHI on
behalf of the BA agree to the same restrictions, conditions, and requirements that
apply to the BA with respect to such PHI.

F. If BA maintains PHI in a Designated Record Sect, BA shall make the PHI in the
Designated Record Set available to TCHD pursuant to 45 C.F.R. §164.524 within ten
(10) business days from the date requested.

G. If BA maintains PHI in a Designated Record Set, BA shall make any amendments
directed or agreed to by TCHD pursuant to 45 C.F.R. §164.526, or take other
measures as necessary to satisfy TCHD obligations under 45 C.F.R. §164.526.

H. Maintain and make available to TCHD, within ten (10) business days, the information

Business Associate Agreement (2023) 2



required to provide an accounting of disclosures, as necessary to satisfy TCHD's
obligations under 45 C.F.R. §164.528.

Make its internal practices, books, and records, relating to the Use and Disclosure of
PHI available to the Secretary for purposes of determining TCHD's compliance with
HIPAA, HITECH and their implementing regulations. 45 C.F.R. §164.504 (e)(2)(ii)(]).

SECTION 4. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY BA

A.

BA may only use or disclose the Minimum Necessary, as set forth in 45 C.F.R.
§164.502(b), to perform the services set forth in the Underling Agreement or as
Required by Law.

BA may not use or disclose PHI in a manner that would violate Subpart E of 45 C.F.R.
Part 164 if done by TCHD.

BA may use and disclose PHI for the proper management and administration of BA or
to carry out the legal responsibilities of the BA, provided the Disclosures are Required
by Law or BA obtains reasonable assurances from the person or entity to whom the
information is disclosed, that the information will remain confidential and used or
further disclosed only as Required by Law or for the purposes of which it was disclosed
to the person or entity, and the person or entity notifies BA of any instances of which
it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has been breached.

Except as otherwise limited in this BAA, BA may use PHI to provide Data Aggregation
services as permitted by 45 C.F.R. §164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).

BA may de-identify PHI in accordance with the standards set forth in 45 C.F.R.
§164.514(b) or create a Limited Data Set and use or disclose: (1) de-identified
information in @ manner consistent with and permitted by HIPAA; and (2) Limited Data
Set information in a manner consistent with and permitted by HIPAA subject to a
separate “data Use Agreement” to be entered into by the Parties.

SECTION 5. OBLIGATIONS OF TCHD

A

B.

TCHD shall not share any information with BA in violation of California Civil Code
§1798 et seq.

TCHD shall notify BA of any limitation(s) in its, or an applicable, Notice of Privacy
Practices in accordance with 45 C.F.R. §164.520, to the extent that such limitation
may affect BA's Use or Disclosure of PHI.

TCHD shall obtain any consent or authorization that may be required by the Privacy
Rule, or applicable state law, prior to furnishing BA with PHI. TCHD shall notify BA of
any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an iIndividual to use or disciose PHI,
to the extent that such changes may affect BA's Use or Disclosure of PHI.

TCHD shall notify BA of any restriction to the Use or Disclosure of PHI that TCHD has
agreed to in accordance with 45 C.F.R. §164.522, to the extent that such restriction
may affect BA’'s Use or Disclosure of PHI.

TCHD shall not request BA to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be
permissible under the HIPAA Rules if done by TCHD, except as permitted pursuant to
the provisions of Section 5 of this BAA.

SECTION 6. TERM AND TERMINATION

A,

The term of this BAA shall commence as of the BAA Effective Date, and shall terminate
when all of the PHI provided by TCHD to BA or created or received by BA on behalf
of TCHD, is destroyed or returned to TCHD. If it is not feasible to destroy or return PHI,
BA shall extend the protections to such information in accordance with Section 6(C).

Termination for Cause. Either Party may termination this BAA, if upon either Party's
knowledge of a material Breach by the other Party of this BAA, such Party provides
written notice to the breaching Party detailing the nature of the Breach and providing

Business Associate Agreement {2023) 3



an opportunity to cure the Breach within thirty (30) business days. Upon the expiration
of such thirty (30) day cure period, the non-breaching Party may terminate this BAA if
the Breach Party does not cure the Breach or the cure is not possibie.

C. Upon termination of this BAA for any reason, with respect to PHI received from TCHD,
or created, maintained, or received by BA on behalf of TCHD, BA shall destroy or
return to TCHD, at TCHD's option, all such PHI that BA still maintains in any form and
retain no copies of such PHI.

D. To the extent return or destruction of TCHD PHI is not feasible, BA shall: (1) retain
only that PHI that is necessary for BA to continue its proper management and
administration or to carry out is legal responsibilities; and (2) continue to use
appropriate safeguards for such TCHD PHI and comply with Subpart C of 45 C.F.R.
Part 164 with respect to ePHI to prevent Use and Disclosure of the PHI, other than as
provided for in this Section, for as long as BA retains the PHI

SECTION 7. GENERAL

A. Amendments. This BAA may be modified, or any rights under it waived, only by a
written document executed by the authorized representatives of both Parties. The
Parties agree to amend this Agreement from time to time as is necessary for
compliance with requirements of the HIPAA Rules and any other applicable law.

B. Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this BA shall be interpreted to permit compliance with
the HIPAA Rules and Regulations.

C. Survival. The obligations of the BA under Section 6(C)-(D) shali survive the termlnatlon
of this BAA and any Underlying Agreement(s).

D. Counterparts. This BAA may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original, and all of which together shall constitute one and
the same instrument.

E. Governing Law. This BAA is governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with,
the laws of the State of California without respect to the conflict of laws provision
thereof that would require the application of the laws of any other jurisdiction.

F. Assignment. TCHD shall not assign this BAA without prior written consent of BA, which
shall not be reasonably withheld.

G. Severability. If any part of a provision of this BAA is found illegal or unenforceable, it
shall be enforced to the maximum extent permissible, and the legality and
enforceability of the remainder of that provision and all other provisions of this BAA
shall not be affected.

H. Notice. All notices relating to the Parties’ legal rights and remedies under this BAA
shall be provided in writing to a Party, shall be sent to the address set forth in the
Services Agreement, or to such other address as may be designated by that Party by
notice to the sending Party, and shall reference this BAA.

|. Entire Agreement, This BAA is the complete and exclusive Agreement between the
Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, superseding and replacing all prior
agreements, communications, and understandings (written and oral) regarding the
subject matter hereof.

J. Nothing in this BAA shall confer any right, remedy, or obligation upon anyone other
than TCHD and BA.

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

Business Associate Agreement (2023) &



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Business Associate
Agreement to be effective when signed by authorized representatives of both Parties.

For TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT For BUSINESS ASSOCIATE

By: By:

Name: Susan Bond Name:
Title: General Counsel Title:
Date: Date:

Business Associate Agreement (2023) 5



Q

Tri-City Medical Center

ADVANCED neam cane ror

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT




13— Contractual -Arrangements shall refer to all other contracts, memeranda of
wRderstanding or-agreement - of any-smar instruments o erah arrangemends
estabhiching—the—-oxchange of goods or services betwaesn HOSPITAL—and
O TRALTOR

%mmummmm forth-in- 45-@.5.&-@464.4544{@}4#:‘;5

M—U&aw%ﬁs&%%&%ﬁ#m#&m#mm
HOSPITAL only as-permitted or reguired by this Agreement or as—atherwise
Reguired by Law [164.502(a)d)i)}—and (i), 184 504{e}2)();
164-504(eH2){iiHA)} - This-includes. but is-not limited to. CONTRACTOR being
stk b

[§]



——the Disclosures-are Required by Law, or

b — - CONTRACTOR has—recewvedfrom—the—third—pary feasonable
assurances—thatthatentity will treat PHI as CONTRACTOR

abse-nt-theenpheuamnensahmai HOSPITAL.










mmmmmmaamm
CONTRACTOR an-epporunity to cure sald breach upen mulually agiecable
terme. CONTRACTOR must provide an acceplable and effective planteeure
said breach to the satisfaction of HOSRITAL within 10 days of +feseiving
mmmmmmmmmm













Q

Tri-City Medical Center
ADVANCED neartv care. For Y@U

HIPAA Business Associate - Data Use Application
Principal Recipient of Protected Health Information
Company Name and Contact:
Address:
Phone # Fax #
E-mail:

This Application is executed as part of the Business Associate Agreement, to reflect additional
specifications relating to the Use or Disclosure of the Designated Data Set of Protected Health
Information (PHI). This Application may be amended from time to time as needed.

1. The purpose of the information and how the Designated Data Set of PHI will be used
to accomplish that purpose:

2. The specific purpose for the use and disclosure of this data:
3. Identification of who is intended to use and receive the data:
4, Safeguards that prevent unauthorized use or disclosure:

5. The plan (how and when) to destroy the Designated Data Set of PHL:




Q

Tri-City Medical Center
ADVANCED HeautH CARE...FOR Y@U

6. Additional Terms. [This section may include specifications for disclosure format,
method of transmission, use of an intermediary, use of digital signatures or PKI, authentication,
additional security or privacy specifications, de-identification or re-identification of data and other
additional terms.]

T Person Completing This Application:

Signature:

Print Name:

Title:

Date Signed:

Revised: 10/19



Q

RETIRE - no longer needed

Tri-City Medical Center

ADVANCED neactr cane. FoR

HIPAA BUSINESS ASSOCIATE ADDENDUM




' by-th
and, in such cases, m#mmﬁmmmmcan@w

(- mmmmmmwmmmmpamwmm%
operations purposes # the Individual has requestes id
WM%%WM%%

aubgeeue«theaeeeunmg WQ%GERMW






mmmmmwcmmmmmmm
Addendum

teh—Gontrastor acknowledges and agrees that Hoespital may be requited by RHIPAA Laws to
report a-Breach to the Secretary of the U 5 Deparment of Health and Human-Bervices
and-Unantherzed-arUnlawiful Access Use of Disclesore-of PHIte-the-State-










Q

Tri-City Medical Center
ADVANCED neam care. For Y@U

Instructions — Data Use Application
Tri-City Healthcare District ("Hospital”)

Hospital may Disclose a Designated Data Set of Protected Heaith Information (PHI)
according to a Business Associate Agreement, if Hospital obtains satisfactory
assurance that the recipient of the PHI will Use or Disclose the information only for
limited purposes.

Please complete the Data Use Application, explaining your receipt and use of Hospital
PHI, by answering the following questions:

State the purpose of the information and how the Designated Data Set of PHI will be
used to accomplish that purpose.

Provide the specific purpose for the Use and Disclosure of this data.
ldentify who can Use and receive the data.

Provide an adequate assurance of safeguards that prevent unapproved Use or
Disclosure.

Identify your plan (how and when) to destroy the Designated Data Set of PHI.

Revised 10/19



@)Tri-City Healthcare District
QOceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE Policy-Manuat
COMPLIANCE

{ISSUE DATE: SUBJECT: Controls-and-Menitoring-of

p ts to Phvsici ou
Referral Sources Processing of
Payments to Physicians and
Referral Source Vendors

REVISION DATE(S): 09/16 POLICY NUMBER: 8750-576
Department Approval-Date(s}: 061612/22
Administrative Policies and Procedures Approval-Date(s): 06/1601/23
Medical Executive Committee Approval-Date(s): 07446 nia
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval-Date(s): 08/4603/24
Administration Approval: 03/24
Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval-Date{s}): 08/46 n/a
Board of Directors Approval-Date{s): 09/16
A. PURPOSE:
1. To identify and establish a procedure for the processmg of payments to physucuans and

103

GENERAL POLICIES:

1. Prior to issuing a payment to a new vendor or other third—party payee (a "Vendor”), Tri-City
Mealthcare District's (TCHD's) Chief Financial Officer (CFQ), Chief Operatiors-Medical Officer
(CMGO), and Chief Compliance & Privacy Officer (CCPO) shall identify whether the Vendor is
a Referral Source. Accounts Payable shall establish a written procedure for review and approval
of all payments including Referral Source payments to ensure that payments made to Referral
Sources are consistent with all laws, regulations and District policies.

DEFINITION{(S):

1. Referral Source - Aany individual or entity in a position to make or influence referrals to, or
otherwise generate business for TCHD. Examples include physicians, medical device
companies, pharmaceutical companies, ambulance companies, emergency services providers,
etc.

SCOPE OF POLICY:
1. This policy applies to:
a. TCHD and its wholly-owned subsidiaries and affiliates, and
b. Any other entity or organization in which TCHD or an Affiliate owns a direct or indirect
equity interest greater than 50%:—and.

PROCEDURE:
1. New Vendors:



| Administrative-Rolicy-Manual - Compliance

Page 2 of 3

cesProcessing of Payments to Physicians and Referral Source Vendors

New Vendors shall complete an Accounts Payable Vendor Addition Form, which, among
other information, identifies whether the vendor is a Referral Source. FheTCHD’s CFO,
CMOO, and CCPO, or their designees, are required to approve and sign all Vendor
Addition Forms to ensure, among other things, that all Vendors are appropriately
categorized as Referral Sources or Non-Referral Sources. Accounts Payable requires
the completion and approval of the Vendor Addition Form prior to adding a new Vendor
tfo the Accounts Payable system or releasing any payment to a Vendor.

Auditing and-Monitoring:

a.

The CFCO, or designee, shall audit adherence to this policy in its routine audits.

Responsible Person

a. The TCHD CFO is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of controls for the
processing of payments as outlined in this policy even if the CFO has delegated the
review requirements of this policy to another member of the Finance staff.

Enforcement

a. All employees whose responsibilities are affected by this policy are expected to be

familiar with the basic procedures and responsibilities created by this policy. Failure to
comply with this policy will be subject to appropriate performance management pursuant
to all applicable policies and procedures, up to and including termination. Such
performance management may also include madification of compensation, including any
merit or discretionary compensation awards, as allowed by applicable law.

F. RELATED DOCUMENT({S):

1.

Referral Source Payment Type Form



Administrative-Pelicy-Marnual - Compliance

Page 3 of 3

0000000000000 000000000000D000000000000

sProcessing of Payments to Physicians and Referral Source Vendors

REFERRAL SOURCE PAYMENT TYPE FORM

Billing Services for Physician
Certificate of Insurance Provided
CME (for physician)

Compliance Training (for physician)
Computer Equipment Agreement

Continuing Education Presentation (by physician)

Cost of Insurance

EHR and ERx Technology Subsidy
Entertainment {event tickets, golf, etc.)
Equipment Lease Agreements

Free Meals at Hospital

Free Parking at Hospital

Gift Certificates

Gifts (non-monetary compensation)
Hospital Based Service Agreements
Joint Venture Agreements

Medical Office Space Provided
Medical Staff Leadership Stipend
Medical Staff Appreciation Dinner
Medical Supplies Provided

Payment for Peer Review Services
Physician Consulting Agreements
Physician Lease Agreements
Physician Medical Director Arrangements
Physician Marketing Assistance
Physician On-Call Agreements
Physician Recruitment Assistance
Physician Services Agreements
Physician Serving on TCHD Board
Professional Courtesy Discount
Reimbursement of Expenses

Room Rental Fee

Smart Devices

Soliciting Charitable Donation From Physician

Space Lease Agreement
Staffing Support for Physician Practice
Uninsured Care Arrangements



@) Tri-City Healthcare District
Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY
COMPLIANCE
ISSUE DATE: 03/03 SUBJECT: Faxing of Protected Health
Information {(Medical Records)
REVISION DATE:  05/09, 07/14 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-522

Administrative Content ExpertBepartment-Review Approval: +H1711/20
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: $2/47#11/22

Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 03/24
Administration Approval: 03/24
Audit Compliance and EthicsProfessional- Affairs Committee Approval: 01418 n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 01/18

A. PURPOSE:
1. To ensure confidentiality of patient protected health information transmitted via fax machine.

B. DEFINITIONS:
1. Protected Health Information (PHI): Individually identifiable health information
transmitted or maintained in electronic and/or other format that is created or received by
TCHD, and
a. Relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an
individual; or

b. Relates to the provision of health care to an individual; or

c. Relates to the past, present, or future payment; and

d. Identifies the Individual or with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to
believe the information can be used to identify the Individual.

32, Minimum Necessary: Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) or a business associate taking
reasonable efforts to use, disclose, and request only the minimum amount of PHI needed
to accomplish the purpose.

B-C. POLICY:

1. It is the policy of Tri-City Healthcare-District {TCHD} to limit the faxing of patient-irformatiorPHI
and outline standard procedures to ensure that patient confidentiality is maintained.

2. Faxing of patientinformationPHI is to be limited to emergency situations (patients currently
being seen in a physician's office or another health care facility), minimum necessary,-and
those situations dealing with direct patient care (i.e. discharge planning, medical consultation,
patient transfer, etc.)

3. The faxing of information-PHI for or to a patient who is not currently an inpatient is to be

handled by the Medical Records/Health Information Department.




Adrministrative Policy - Compliance
Faxing Protected Health Information—8646-522
Page 2 of 2

c-D.

B.E.

6-4. Departments which-that utilize the Cerner system to fax results/reports to physician
offices or have fax machines preprogrammed to transmit irfermation-PHI to a designated
office/unit are to ensure that test documents (non-patient related) have been transmitted and
received without error prior to implementation of faxing documents without an accompanying
transmittal sheet. (e.gi-e. ABG results to staff physician offices, sSurgery sScheduling to pRre-
oOperative teaching, etc.)

a. Annual review of the automated system fax number database is to be completed by the
department and documented.

a-b.  Annual review of the Cerner automated system fax number database is to be
completed by the Information Technology (IT) Department with support by Health
Infomlatlon Management (HIM) as needed.

5. A transmsttal form is to be compteted on all manual fax transmlttals The transmittal form must
include at minimum the following:

a. Patient Name

b. Medical Record number of the patient

C. Date of Service

d. Name of Person to whom information is being faxed

e. Date and time of fax transmission

f. Specification of record component being faxed

g. Name of person faxing the information

h The protection clauses relating to further disclosure. Departments may create transmittal
forms pertinent to their unit, which cover these required elements.

a-6. The fax machine is to be set to generate a confirmation sheet that will be scanned to Cerner
(Disclosure) upon completion of the transmission. This confirmation sheet is to be filed and
maintained as part of the patient's permanent medical record under the face sheet. In cases
where the confirmation sheet does not reflect the transmittal sheet information, confirmation of
the transmission is to be recorded on the transmittal form.

b-a. If a confirmation sheet is not generated by the fax machine the person initiating the fax
transmission is to contact the receiving party when possible to confirm receipt of the
patient's information. Verbal confirmation of receipt of the information is to be recorded
on the transmittal sheet, which is then to be filed on and maintained as part of the
patient's permanent medical record.

e-b. If atransmittal and/or confirmation sheet is not utilized when faxing it is required that the
following information be documented in the Progress Notes.

i. To whom the information was faxed.

i Identification of the specific information that was faxed.

iii. Written statement, which reflects receipt of the fax by the party to whom it was
sent.

8.7. Every effort is to be taken to assure that information reaches its destination and is kept
confidential in accordance with Administrative Policy: Confidentiality 455.

a. Should an employee/physician be informed that the intended party did not receive the
faxed information, it is required that this be documented on the “transmittal”" form and a
Quality-Review-Repor{QRR)jthe incident is to be submitted-reported to the Chief
Compliance and Privacy Officer-.

FORM(S):

1. Medical Record Department Fax Transmittal Sheet 8700-1027

RELATED DOCUMENT{S):

1.

Administrative Policy: Confidentiality 455



@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy
Patient Care

ISSUE DATE: 04/18 SUBJECT: Hospital Issued Notice of
Noncoverage of Medicare-Covered
Services (HINN)

REVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBER: 8610-398
Department Review: 10H4704/23
Administrative Policies & procedures Committee Approval: $8/4704/23
Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 0214803/24
Administration Approval: 03/24

Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval: 0418 n/a

Board of Directors Approval: 04/18

A PURPOSE:
1. To explain the CMS ruling regarding the Notice of Medicare Provider Non-Coverage for the
Medicare beneficiaries.

B. POLICY:
1. It is the policy of the hospital to provide Medicare beneficiaries with appropriate forms for an
expedited and efficient appeal process when faced with Hospital |ssued Notice of Noncoverage
of Medicare-covered services (HINN).

C. PROCEDURE:

1. Hospitals give HINNs to beneficiaries when issues of noncoverage arise for hospital-level
inpatient care. The HINN may be given prior to admission, at admission, or at any point during
the inpatient stay. It may be issued by hospital staff or utilization review committees based on
Medicare instructions, including: coverage guidelines, notices, bulletins, or other written guides
or directives from intermediaries or Quality improvement Organizations (Q10s). After the
hospital issues a notice of noncoverage, the beneficiary or theirkis/her representative is
considered to have knowledge that services are not covered and is liable for customary
charges. The hospital is not required to issue a HINN when it does not plan to bill the
beneficiary or histhertheir representative. Potential liability may arise when the hospital
determines that certain inpatient services are never covered by Medicare. It may also arise
when an inpatient stay, either in whole or in part, or a specific, severable service during an
otherwise covered stay: Is not considered reasonable and necessary, Can be provided safely in
another setting is custodial in nature.

2. Types of HINNS:

a. HINN 1 — Preadmission/Admission HINN: the hospital may issue a
preadmission/admission HINN when the hospital has determined at the time of
preadmission or admission that a beneficiary’s stay will be a non-covered stay.

i. Preadmission HINN -- The beneficiary or hiethertheir representative is liable for
customary charges for all services furnished if he/she enters the hospital after
receipt of a preadmission HINN.

. Admission HINN -- Determine liability as follows:

1} HINN lIssued on the Day of Admission — The beneficiary or kishertheir
representative is liable for customary charges for all services furnished



Admiristrative — Patiert Care
Hospital issued Notice of Noncoverage of Medicare-Covered Services [HINN)
Page 20f 3

after the admission HINN is received. However, to hold a beneficiary or
histhertheir representative liabile for charges on the day of admission, the
hospital must issue the admission HINN no later than 3:00 p.m. on the
day of admission. If the hospital does not meet these requirements, the
beneficiary or his/hertheir representative is protected from liability until
the day following receipt of the admission HINN (e.g., a HINN issued for
an admission after 3:00 p.m: or a late evening admission).

2) HINN lIssued After the Day of Admission — The beneficiary or histhertheir
representative is liable for customary charges for all services furnished
beginning the day following the date of receipt of the admission HINN.

a) Timing for Preadmission/Admission HINN Request & Review-

When a beneficiary or histhertheir representative requests review

of a preadmission or an admission HINN, the QIO will review any

records pertaining to health care services furnished. This includes
records pertaining to any inpatient hospital services provided or
proposed to be provided to the Medicare beneficiary whether or
not, in the hospital's view, the services are covered.

i) Immediate Review — If the beneficiary or kisthertheir
representative disagrees with the hospital preadmission
notice, he/she may request your review, by telephone or in
writing, within 3 calendar days of receipt of the HINN. If
admitted, the beneficiary or kisfhertheir representative
may request your review at any point during the stay. In
either situation, the QIO will review the case within 2
working days following the beneficiary's or histhertheir
representative's request, and issue either a denial notice or
a notice explaining that the care would be, or is, covered.

i) Review after Discharge or When Beneficiary Was Not
Admitted to Hospital — The beneficiary or histhertheir
representative may request review within 30 calendar days
after receipt of the notice. The QIO completes this review
within the timeframe specified for any retrospective review
— 30 calendar days. Once the QIO review is completed,
either a deniai notice or a notice explaining that the care
would be, or is, covered is issued. In all cases of
appropriately requested reviews, Q1Os will formally
determine if the hospital notification was valid, if the
hospital's findings were valid, and if beneficiaries will be
liable should they remain in the hospital. If the right to
reconsideration is exercised, final notification does not
occur until the reconsideration is complete.

b. HINN 10 — Hospital Requested Review (HRR): When a hospital determines that a
beneficiary no longer requires an acute level of inpatient care, but the attending
physician does not agree, the hospital may request a QIO review of the medical
record—known as a hospital requested review (HRR). Hospitals must notify the
beneficiary that the review has been requested. The QIO review of the hospital’s
determination considers whether or not continued inpatient care is needed (42 CFR
405.1208(b)(1), effective July 1, 2005).

c. HINN 11 is used for non-covered items or services provided during an otherwise
covered inpatient stay. The notice may be used to hold beneficiaries liable for certain
non-covered services. The item or service at issue must be a diagnostic or therapeutic
service excluded from Medicare coverage as medically unnecessary and the beneficiary
must require continued inpatient hospital care.



Administrative — Patient Care
Hospital Issued Notice of Noncoverage of Medicare-Covered Services (HINN)

Page 3 0of 3

d. HINN 12 is a liability notice to be used in association with the Hospital Discharge Appeal
Notices to inform beneficiaries of their potential liability for a non-covered continued stay
after the appeal is completed or the time frame for requesting an expedited review is
past. The compliance with this notice does not fall under the review authority of the QIO.
(Refer to IMFM Policy)

i, HINN 12 is de5|gned to inform patients who remain in the hospital without
seeking timely review of their liability for services provided after the date of the
proposed discharge. Timely review (by midnight of the date of the proposed
discharge) would limit the patient’s liability to applicable deductibles and
coinsurance until noon of the day after the discharge date on which the QIO
notifies the patient of its agreement with the hospital. Failure to seek timely
review appears to subject patients who remain in the hospital to liability for all
Part A inpatient services provided after the date of the proposed discharge,
unless the QIO determines otherwise.

e. Beneficiary Payment Responsibility
i. HINNs do not address every aspect of beneficiary responsibility for payment.

Beneficiaries remain liable for applicable deductible and coinsurance amounts,
and for charges for convenience items or services never covered by Medicare,
even in periods where covered care is also delivered. Hospitals are not required
to issue HINNs when the beneficiary will not be billed/liable.

D. RELATED DOCUMENT{(S):

1.

Administrative Policy: Important Message From Medicare and Notification of Hospital Discharge
Appeal Rights 392

E REFERENCE(S):

1.

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Services (2017, April 13). Beneficiary Notices Initiative (BNI)
Retrieved from https:/www.cms.gov/iMedicare/Medicare-General-

Information/BNl/index. html?redirect=/bni/

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Services. Details for Title 100-04: Medicare Claims Processing
Manual. Retrieved from https://www.cms.qov/Requlations-and-
Guidance/Guidance/Manuals/Internet-Only-Manuals-IOMs-
ltems/CMS018912.htmI?DLPage=1&DLSort=0&DL SortDir=ascending

Center for Medicare & Medicaid Services. Details for Title 100-10: Quality Improvement
Organization Manual. Retrieved from https.//www.cms.qov/Regulations-and-
Guidance/Guidance/Manuals/Internet-Only-Manuals-|OMs-
Items/CMS019035.him|?DLPaqe=28DLSort=0&DL SortDir=ascending

CMS Manual System (2005, October 14). Correction to Change Request 3949, Section 50.3.3
in IOM to Add 23x Type of Bill. Retrieved from https.//www.cms.qov/Requlations-and-
Guidance/Guidance/Transmittals/downloads/R712CP.pdf

Criteria for determining that a beneficiary knew that services were excluded from coverage as
custodial care or as not reasonable and necessary, Title 42 CFR 411.404 (1989).
Preadmission/Admission HINN. Medicare Claims Processing Manual, Transmittal 982




(@) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy
Patient Care

ISSUE DATE: 03/10 SUBJECT: Important Message from Medicare
and Notification of Hospital
Discharge Appeal Rights

REVISION DATE: 03/10 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-392

Department Review: 08/4704/23

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 084704/23

Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 02/1803/24

Administration Approval: 03/24

Audit, Compliance and Ethics Committee Approval: 04/18 nfa

Board of Directors Approval: 04/18

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To comply with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) regulatory requirements
that hospitals notify Medicare or Medicare Advantage plan beneficiaries who are hospital
inpatients about their hospital discharge rights.

B. DEFINITION(S):

1.

Important Message from Medicare (IMFM) CMS-R-193: A hospital inpatient admission notice
given to all beneficiaries with Medicare, Medicare and Medicaid (dual-eligible), Medicare and
another insurance program, Medicare as a secondary payer.

2. Quality Improvement Organization {(QIO):

a. QIO enacted by Federal statute “to improve the efficiency, effectiveness, economy and

quality or services delivered to Medicare Beneficiaries”.
3. Representative:

a. A representative is defined broadly to include individuals authorized to act on behalf of
the beneficiary, someone acting responsibly on behalf of an incapacitated or
incompetent beneficiary; or someone requested by the beneficiary to act as his or her
agent.

4, Detailed Notice of Discharge (CMS-10066):

a. Hospitals must deliver the Important Message from Medicare to inform Medicare
beneficiaries who are hospital inpatients about their hospital discharge appeal rights.
Beneficiaries who choose to appeal a discharge decision will receive a more detailed
netice.

C. POLICY:

1.

Tri-City Healthcare District {TCHD) must issue the IMFM within two (2) days of admission and
must obtain the signature of the beneficiary or his/her representative. TCHD must deliver a copy
of the signed notice to each beneficiary not more than two (2) days before the day of discharge.
Follow-up notice is not required if delivery of the initial IMFM falls within two (2) calendar days of
discharge, if the beneficiary is being transferred from one inpatient hospital setting to another
inpatient hospital setting, or when a beneficiary exhausts Part A hospital days. TCHD must
retain a copy of the signed notice.

D. PROCEDURE:

1.

initial Notice:



Administrative — District Operations
Important Message From Medicare and Notification of Hospital Discharge Appeal Rights Page 2 of 6

a. TCHD personnel must provide the IMFM at or near admission but no later than two (2)
calendar days from the day of admission or at preadmission, but not more than seven
(7) calendar days before admission, and obtain the signature and signature date of the
patient or representative to indicate receipt of notice.

b. The original is given to the patient with a copy retained by the hospital.
2 Follow-Up Notice:
a. The follow-up IMFM must also be provided to the patient as soon as possible prior to

discharge, but no more than two (2) days before.

i. When a discharge seems likely in one (1} to two (2) days, the follow-up notice
should be given to the patient, so the patient has ample time to review and act on
it.

il If the follow up notice s delivered on the day of discharge, the patient must be
given at least four (4) hours prior to discharge to consider their rights.

b. TCHD must document delivery of the notice in order to demonstrate compliance with this
requirement.
C. If TCHD delivers the follow-up notice, and the beneficiary status subsequently changes,

so that the discharge is beyond the two (2) day timeframe, TCHD must deliver another
copy of the signed notice again within two (2) calendar days of the new planned
discharge date.

3 Beneficiary Refusal to Sign:

a. If the beneficiary refuses to sign the notice, the hospital should note the refusal and date
of refusal on the form and this will be considered the date of notice.
4. Medical Record Documentation:
a. TCHD should place a copy of the initial notice in the patient's medical record.

b. TCHD must document timely delivery of the follow-up copy of the IMFM in the patient
records, when applicable.
c TCHD should also document any attempted contact with beneficiary representatives,
including telephone calls, messages and subsequent certified mail.
5 Coples
a. IMFM form (Initial Notice);
i. 2 Copies:;
1. Original notice for patient s in the medical record
2 Patient's copy
b. IMFM form (Follow up Notice):
I. 2 copies:
1. Original notice for patient is in the medical record
2. Patient's copy
c. Detailed Notice:
k; 2 copies:
1. Original notice for hospital
2. Patient’s copy
in. Additional copies may be needed if the patient requests a review, as the QIO will
require a copy.
d. Prior to the patient signing and dating an IMFM and/or Detailed Notice of Discharge,
TCHD must ensure the patient comprehends the contents of the notice.
e. Notices should not be delivered in an emergency medical situation.
6 Expedited Reviews;
a. A patient has a right to request a review of the discharge decision, by asking for an
expedited review by the QIO when the hospital, with physician/Allied Health Professional
(AHP) concurrence, determines that inpatient care is no longer necessary. The process
is as follows:
i. The patient submits a request for review to the QIO no later than midnight of the
day of discharge that has been ordered by the physician/AHP.



Administrative — District Operations
important Message From Medicare and Notification of Hospital Discharge Appeal Rights Page 3 of 6

i. The request may be in writing or by telephone and must be before the patient
leaves the hospital.

1. If the request is not in this timeframe, and the patient remains in the
hospital, he or she may request a review at any time, but will be held
responsibie for the charges incurred after the date of discharge ordered.

iil. When the patient requests a review prior to midnight the day of discharge, the
patient is not financially responsible for inpatient hospital services (except
coinsurance and deductibles) furnished before noon the day after the patient
receives notification of the determination from the QIO.

V. If the QIO does not agree with the patient, the liability for continued services
begins at noon of the day after the QIO notifies the patient.
V. If the QIO does agree with the patient, the patient is not financially responsible

for continued care, until the hospital once again determines that the patient no
longer requires inpatient care, secures the concurrence of the physician
responsible for the patient or the QIO and notifies the patient with a follow-up
copy of the IMFM.

FE. REFERENCE(S):
1. CMS Transmittal 1257, May 2007, CR 5622




Administrative ~ District Operations
Important Message From Medicare and Notification of Hospital Discharge Appeal Rights Page 4 of 6

Department of Health & Human Services
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
OMB Approval vo 0938-0692

Patient Name:
Patient 1D Number:
Physician:

An Important Message From Medicare About Your Rights

As A Hospital Inpatient, You Have The Right To:

» Receive Medicare covered services. This includes medically necessary hospital services and services you
may need afler you are discharged, if ordered by your doctor. You have a right to know about these
services, who will pay for them, and where you can get them.

«  Be involved in any decisions about your hospital stay, and know who will pay for it.

= Report any concerns you have about the quality of care you receive to the Quality Improvement
Organization (QIO) listed here:

Name of QIO

Telephone Number of QIO

Your Medicare Discharge Rights

Planning For Your Discharge: During your hospital stay, the hospital staff will be working with you to
prepare for your safe discharge and arrange for services you may need after you leave the hospital. When you
no longer need inpatient hospital care, your doctor or the hospital staff will inform you of your planned
discharge date,

If you think you are being discharged too soon:
*  You can talk to the hospital staff, your doctor and your managed care plan (if you belong to one) about
your concems.

«  You also have the right to an appeal, thal is, a review of your case by a Quality Improvement
Organization (QI0). The QIO is an outside reviewer hired by Medicare to look at your case to decide
whether you are ready to leave the hospital.

@ If you want to appeal, you must contact the QEQ no later than your planned discharge date
and before you leave the hospital.

o If you do this, you will not have o pay for the services you receive during the appeal (except for
charges like copays and deductibles).

+ If you do not appeal. but decide to stay in the hospital past your planned discharge date, you may have to
pay for any services you receive after that date.

»  Step by step instructions for calling the QIO and filing an appeal are on page 2.

To speak with someone at the hospital about this notice, call

Please sign and date here to show you received this notice and understand your rights.

Signature of Patient or Representative Date/Time

Form CMS.-R-193 (Exp. 03.312020)



Adminigtrative - District Operations
Important Message From Medicare and Notification of Hospital Discharge Appeal Rights Page 5 of 6

Steps To Appeal Your Discharge

« Step 1; You must contact the QIO no later than your planned discharge date and before you leave the
hospital. If you do this, you will not have to pay for the services you receive during the appeal (except
for charges like copays and deductibles).

@ Here is the contact information for the QIO:
Name of QIC {1n bold)

Telephone Number of QIO

a You can file a request for an appeal any day of the week. Once you speak to someone or leave a
message, your appeal has begun.

a  Ask the hospital if you need help contacting the QIO.

a The name of this hospital is :
Hospital Name Provider ID Number

s Step 2: You will receive a detailed notice from the hospital or your Medicare Advantage or other
Medicare managed care plan (if you belong to one) that explains the reasons they think you are ready to
be discharged.

+ Step 3: The QIO will ask for your opinion. You or your representative need to be available to speak
with the QIO, if requested. You or your representative may give the QIO a written statement, but you
are not required to do so.

+ Step 4: The QIO will review your medical records and other important information about your case.
+ Step 5: The QIO will notify you of its decision within | day afier it receives all necessary information.

@ Ifthe QIO finds that you are not ready to be discharged, Medicare will continue to cover your
hospital services.

@ If the QIO finds you are ready to be discharged, Medicare will continue to cover your services
until noen of the day afler the QIO notifies you of its decision.

If You Miss The Deadline To Appeal, You Have Other Appeal Rights:
»  You can still ask the QIO or your plan (if you belong to one) for a review of your case:

o [f you have Original Medicare: Call the QIO listed above.
@ Il you belong to a Medicare Advanlage Plan or other Medicare managed care plan: Call your plan.

+ If you stay in the hospital, the hospital may charge you for any services you receive afler your planned
discharge date.

For more information, call 1-800-MEDICARE (1-800-633-4227), or TTY: 1-877-486-2048.

CMS does not discriminate in its programs and activities. To request this publication in an alternate

format, please call: 1-800-MEDICARE or email: AltFormatRequest@cems.hhs.gov .

Additional Information:

According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of | 995, no persons are required to respond Lo & collection of infommelian unless it displays a valid OMB control number.
The valid OMB contsol number for this information collection is 0938- 0692, The ume required to complete Lhis information collection 15 estimated to average 15
minutes per response, including the time Lo review instructions, search existing data resources, gather the data needed, and complete mnd review the information
coltection. If you have comments conceming the accuracy of the Lime cstimate(s) of suggestions for improving this form, please write to: CMS, 7500 Security
Boulevard, Attn. PRA Repons Clearance Officer, Mail Stop C4-26-05, Baltimore, Maryland 21244-1850



Administrative -~ District Operations
Important Message From Medicare and Notification of Hospital Discharge Appeal Rights Page 6 of 6

CMS-10066 Detailed Notice of Discharge Sample

Patient Name: OMB Approval No. 0938-1019
Patient 1D Number: Date Issued:
Physician:

{Insert Hospital or Plan Logo here}

Detailed Notice Of Discharge

You have asked for a review by the Quality Improvement Organization (QIO), an independent reviewer hired
by Medicare to review your case. This notice gives you a detailed explanation about why your hospital and
your managed care plan (if you belong to one), in agreement with your doctor, believe that your inpatient
hospital services should end on . This is based on Medicare
coverage policies listed below and your medical condition.

This is not an official Medicare decision. The decision on your appeal will come from your Quality
Improvement Organization (QIO).

Medicare Coverage Policies:

Medicara does not cover inpatient hospital services that are not medically necessary
or could be safely furnished in another setting. (Refer to 42 Code of Federal Regulations,
411.15 (g) and (k)).

Medicare Managed Care policies, if applicable:
{insert specific managed care policies}

Other {insert other applicable policies}

< Specific information about your current medical condition:

+ If you would like a copy of the documents sent to the QIO, or copies of the specific policies or criteria
used to make this decision, please call {insert hospital and/or
plan telephone number}

CMS doss not discriminate in its programs and activities. To request this publication in an alternative format,
please call: 1-800-MEDIC ARE or email: AltFormatRequest@cms.hhs.gov

According te the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid OMB contrel number
The valid OMB control number for tus nformstion collection 1s 0938- 1019 The lime required to complete this information collection is estimaled (o average 60
minutes per response, including the time 1o review instructions, search existing data resources, gather the data needed. and complete and review the information
collection. If you have comments conceming Lthe accuracy of the time estimate(s) or suggestions for improving Uus form. please wiite to: CMS, 7500 Security
Boulevard, Attn: PRA Reports Clearance Officer. Mail Stop C4-26-03, Ballimore. Maryland 21 244-1850.

CMS 10066 (Exp. 10/31:2019)



)
@‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLIANCE

ISSUE DATE: 12/02 SUBJECT: Notice of Privacy Practices
REVISION DATE(S): 09/05, 01/09, 06/15 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-518
Administrative Compliance Content Expert Approval: 08/1801/23

Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 12/1803/23

Organizational Compliance Committee Approval: 03/24

Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a

Administration Approval: 03/24

Audit, Compliance & Ethics Committee Approval: 02H8 nla

Board of Directors Approval: 02/19

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To establish a policy for documenting the acknowledgment of the patient's receipt of the Notice
of Privacy Practices in accordance with the Health Information Portability and Accountability Act
of 1996 (HIPAA) which gives patients the right to know the Uses and Disclosure of their
protected health information.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

2.

3.

Disclosure: Tthe release, transfer, provision of, access to or divulging of PHI outside Tri-City

Healthcare District (TCHD).

Notice of Privacy Practices (NPP): TCHD's written notice to individuals of Uses and Disclosures

of PHI as required by 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Section 164.520.

Protected Health Information (PHI): lindividually identifiable health information transmitted or

maintained in paper or electronic form that is created or received by TCHD andAND

a. Relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an
individual, oroR

b. Relates to the provision of health care to an individual, oroOR

c. Relates to the past, present, or future payment, andAND

d. Identifies the individual OR with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe
the information can be used to identify the individual.

Use: Tthe sharing, application, utilization, examination or analysis of PHi within TCHD

Workforce Member: means-employees, Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals,

volunteers, trainees, Business Visitors, Covered Contractors and other persons whose

conduct in the performance of work for TCHD is under the control of TCHD whether or not they

are paid by TCHD.

C. POLICY:

1.
2.
3.

4

In accordance with HIPAA, all patients have a right to adequate notice of the Uses and
Disclosures of PHI that may be made by TCHD.

TCHD communicates Uses and Disclosures of PHI that may be made by TCHD in its Notice of
Privacy Practices.

TCHD must make the Notice of Privacy Practices available to patients as described in this
Policy.

As provided under HIPAA, TCHD is required to abide by the terms of the Notice that is currently
in effect.

D. PROCEDURE:



Administrative Policy - Compliance
Notice of Privacy Practices Policy 8610-518

Page 2 of 2

1.

TCHD must make the NPP available as follows:

a. TCHD must make the NPP available on request to any patient.

b. Where TCHD has a direct treatment relationship with an individual, it must also provide
the NPP no later than the date of the first service delivery except for emergency
treatment situations where the NPP can be provided as soon as practicable after the
emergency treatment situation.

The NPP will also be posted on the TCHD Website and will be made available at all registration

sites, and the Medical Records/Health Information Management office. Registration or other

points of entry to TCHD including but not limited to those listed below will be the primary sites
where this process takes place. Since a patient's condition or location may preclude
documenting the acknowledgement at the time of registration or entry into TCHD, all TCHD staff
share the responsibility of ensuring acknowledgement of the Notice.

a. Homecare
b. Outpatient Rehabilitation
(% Outpatient Behavioral Health

d. Obstetrics

NPP Exception: Lab specimens are an exception to this Policy. No Notice of Privacy Practices

will be offered because specimens are covered under the Indirect Treatment Relationship

provision.

Amendment of NPP: If the NPP is revised, TCHD shall make the revised NPP available on

request on or after the effective date of the revision.

TCHD must document the patient's acknowledgment of receipt or good faith efforts to obtain the

acknowledgement.

a. The Condition of Admissions document includes a section reflecting patient's
acknowledgement that a NPP has been offered and online access is available via TCHD
wehbsite is communicated. Patients will be asked to signinitiat the Conditions of
Admission acknowtedgement referencing the most current version of the NPP, even if
they have signed an acknowledgement of a previous version.

b. If the patient receives the NPP and the acknowledgement section of the Conditions of
Admissions is not signedinitialed, TCHD personnel must document good faith efforts to
obtain it and the reason for lack of signature.

C. The Notice of Privacy Practice acknowledgment need only be documented once, unless
there is a significant content change in the Notice. Each new version of the Notice
requires the patient to signinitial a new acknowledgement.

TCHD has the right to change the NPP at any time including for the purpose of amending it to

conform to changes in the law. The effective date of the NPP is located on the first page of the

NPP.

Retention of NPP:

a. The completed Conditions of Admission acknowledgement will be kept in the patient's
medical record for the encounter for which it was signed.
b. TCHD will retain the required documentation related to the NPP for at least 6 years from

the date of creation or the date when it was last in effect whichever is later.
Training on NPP: All employees of TCHD will be trained on and knowledgeable of the contents
of the Notice because it documents how TCHD will handle Uses and Disclosures of its patients’
protected health information.

E. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1.

Notice of Privacy Practices

F. REFERENCE(S):

1.

45 Code of Federal regulations (CFR) section 164.520



NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES
Tri-City Healthcare District
4002 Vista Way
Oceanside, CA 92056
|Effective Date 0112/301/20230]

THIS NOTICE DESCRIBES HOW MEDICAL INFORMATION ABOUT YOU MAY BE USED
AND DISCLOSED AND HOW YOU CAN GET ACCESS TO THIS INFORMATION. PLEASE
REVIEW IT CAREFULLY.

If you have any questions about this Notice, please contact our Privacy Officer at (760) 940-3117538+

OUR PLEDGE TO PROTECT YOUR PRIVACY

Tri-City Healthcare District is committed to protecting the privacy of health information we create or receive about
you. Health information that identifies you (*protected health information”, or “health information™) includes your
medical record and other information relating to your care or payment for care.

Tri-City Healthcare District (the “District™ for purposes of this Notice) includes the following entities: Tri-City
Medica! Center and outpatient clinics, Tri-City Wellness Center outpatient clinics, Tri-City Primary Care,
Orthopedic Specialists of North County and other Affiliates.

WHO WILL FOLLOW THIS NOTICE

This Notice describes the District’s practices and that of:
Any health care professional authorized to update or create health information about you.
All departments and units of the District, including affiliated physician clinics.
Any member of a volunteer group we allow to help you while you are in one of the District’s facilities.
All employees, staff and other District personnel.
All affiliated entities, sttes, and locations.

All these entities, sites and locations follow the terms of this Notice. In addition, these entities, sites and locations
may share medical information with each other for treatment, payment or health care opcrations purposes described
in this Notice.

We understand that medical information about you and your health is personal. We are committed to protecting
medical information about you. We create a record of care and services you receive at the Distnict. We need this
record to provide you with quality care and to comply with certain legal requircments. This Notice applies to all of
the records of your carc generated by the District, whether made by District personnel or your personal physician.
Your personal physician may have different policies or Notices regarding the physician's use and disclosure of your
medical information created in the physician's office or clinic.

This Notice will tell you about the ways in which we may use and disclose medical information about you. We also
describe your rights and certain obligations we have regarding the use and disclosure of medical information.

We are required by law to:
o Make sure that medical information that identifies you is kept private (with certain exceptions),
o Give you this Notice of our legal duties and privacy practices with respect to medical information
about you; and
o Follow the terms of the Notice that is currently in effect

Revised 0142 20230



HOW WE MAY USE AND DISCLOSE MEDICAL INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

The following categorics describe different ways that we use and disclose medical information. For cach
category of uses or disclosures we will explain what we mean and try to give some examples. Not cvery usc or
disclosure in a category will be listed. However, all of the ways we are permitted to use and disclose information
will fall within onc of the categories.

DISCLOSURE AT YOUR REQUEST

We may disclose information when requested by you, This disclosure at your request requires a written
authorization by you.

FOR TREATMENT

We may use medical information about you to provide you with medical treatment or services. We may disclose
medical information about you to physicians, nurses, technicians, health care students, or other District personncl
who are involved in taking care of you.

For example, a physician treating you for a broken leg may need to know if you have diabetes because diabetes may
slow_the healing process. In addition, the physician may tell the dietician if you have diabetes so that we can arrange
for appropriate meals.

Different departments within the District’s facilities may also share medical information about you in order to
coordinate the different things you need, such as prescriptions, lab work and X-rays. We also may disclose medical
information about you to people outside the District who may be invelved in your medical care after you leave the
District’s facilities, such as skilled nursing facilities, home health agencies, and physicians or other practitioners.

For example, we may give your physician access to your health information to assist your physician in treating
you.

FOR PAYMENT

We may use and disclose medical information about you so that the treatment and services you receive at the District
may be billed to and payment may be collected from you, an insurance company or a third party.

For example, we may need to give information about surgery you receive at the District to your health plan so it will
pay us or reimburse you for the surgery.

We may also tell your health plan about a treatment you are going to receive to obtain prior approval or to determine
whether your plan will cover the treatment. We may also provide basic information about you and your health plan,

insurance company or other source of payment to practitioncrs outside the District who are involved in your care, to
assist them in obtaining payment for services they provide to you. However, we cannot disclose information to your
health plan for payment purposes if you ask us not to, and you pay for the services yourself.

FOR HEALTHCARE OPERATIONS

We may use and disclose medical information about you for health care operations. These usc and disclosures arc
necessary 1o run the District and make sure that all our patients reccive quality care.

For example, we may use medical information to review our treatment and services and to evaluate the performance
of our staff in caring for you.

We may also combine medical information about many hospital patients to decide what additional services the
District should offer, what services are not needed, and whether certain new treatments arc effective. We may also
disclose information to physicians, nurses, technicians, medical students, and other District personnel for review and
learning purposes. We may also combine the medical information we have with medical information from other
hospitals to compare how we are doing and sce where we can make improvements in the care and scrvices we offer.
We may remove information that identifics you from this set of medical information so others may use it to study
health care and health care detivery without leaming who the specific patients are.

Revised 0142 20230



FUNDRASING ACTIVITIES

We may use information about you or disclose such information to a foundation related to the District, to contact you
in an effort to raise money for the District and its operations. You have the right to opt out of receiving fundraising
communications. If you receive a fundraising communication, it will tell you how to opt out.

HEALTH INFORMATION EXCHANGE

We participate in both the Commonwell and San Diego Health Connect information exchanges with other healthcare
providers. This Notice is to inform our patients that our clinical team exchanges information for patient care and you
can OPT OUT of the sharing of your information by communicating your choice during the Registration process or
by sending a message to our Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer via our website (tricitymed.org) or submitting a
written request to our Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer (4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056).

HOSPITAL DIRECTORY

We may include certain limited information about you in the Tri-City Medical Center directory while you are a
patient at the hospital. This information may include your name, location in the hospital, your general condition (e.g.
good, fair, etc.) and your religious affiliation. Unless there is a specific written request from you to the contrary, this
directory information, except for your religious affiliation, may also be released to people who ask for you by name.
Your religious affiliation may be given to a member of the clergy, such as a priest or rabbi, even if they don't ask for
you by name. This information is released so your family, friends and clergy can visit you in the hospital and
generally know how you are doing.

MARKETING AND SALE

Most uses and disclosures of medical information for marketing purposes, and disclosures that constitute a sale of
medical information, require your authorization.

TO INDIVIDUALS INVOLVED IN YOUR CASE OR PAYMENT FOR YOUR CASE

We may release medical information about you to a friend or family member who is involved in your medical care.
We may also give information to someone who helps pay for your care. Unless there is a specific written request
from you to the contrary, we may also tell your family or friends your condition and that you are in the hospital.

In addition, we may disclose medical information about you to an organization assisting in a disaster relief effort so that
your family can be notified about your condition, status and location. If you arrive at the emergency department either
unconscious or otherwise unable to communicate, we are required to attempt to contact someone we believe can make
healthcare decisions for you (e.g. a family member or agent under a health care power of attorney).

FOR RESEARCH
Under certain circumstances, we may use and disclose medical information about you for research purposes.

For example, a research project may involve comparing the health and recovery of all patients who received one
medication to those who received another, for the same condition. All research projects, however, are subject to a
special approval process. This process evaluates a proposed research project and its use of medical information,
trying to balance the research needs with patients' need for privacy of their medical information.

Before we use or disclose medical information for research, the project will have been approved through this
research approval process, but we may, however, disclose medical information about you to people preparing to
conduct a research project, for example, to help them look for patients with specific medical needs, as long as the
medical information they review does not leave the District.

AS REQUIRED BY LAW

We will disclose medical information about you when required to do so by federal, state or local law.

Revised 0142.20230



TO AVERT A SERIOUS THREAT TO HEALTH OR SAFETY

We may use and disclosc medical information about you when necessary to prevent a serious threat to your health
and safety or the health and safety of the public or another person. Any disclosure, however, would only be to
someone able to help prevent the threat.

ORGAN AND TISSUE DONATION

We may release medical information to orgamizations that handle organ procurement or organ, eye or tissue
transplantation or to an organ donation bank, as nccessary to facilitate organ or tissue donation and transplantation.

MILITARY AND VETERANS

If you are a member of the armed forces, we may release medical information about you as required by military
command authoritics. We may also release medical information about foreign military personncl to the appropriate
forcign military authority.

If you arc a member of the Armed Forces, we may disclose medical information about you to the Department of
Veterans Affairs upon your separation or discharge from military services. This disclosure is necessary for the
Department of Veterans Affairs to determine if you arc cligible for certain benefits.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION

We may release medical information about you for workers' compensation or similar programs. These programs
provide benefits for work-related injuries or illness.

PUBLIC HEALTH ACTIVITIES

We may use and disclose medical information about you for public health activities. These activities generally include
the following:
o To prevent or control disease, injury or disability:;
o To report births and deaths,
To report regarding the abuse or neglect of children, elders and dependent adults:
To report reactions to medications or problems with products;
To notify people of recalis of products they may be using;
To notify a person who may have been exposed to a discase or may be at risk for
contracting or spreading a discase or condition;
To notify the appropriate government authority if we belicve a patient has been the victim of
abuse, neglect or domestic violence. We will only make this disclosure if you agree or when
required or authorized by law;
o To notify emergency response employees regarding possible exposure to HIV/AIDS, 1o the
extent nccessary to comply with state and federal laws.

HEALTH OVERSIGHT ACTIVITIES

We may disclose medical information to a health oversight agency for activities authorized by law. These oversight
activities include, for example, audits, investigations, inspections, and licensure. These activities arc necessary for
the government to monitor the health care system, government programs and compliance with civil right laws.

LAWSUIT AND DISPUTES

If you are involved in a lawsuit or a dispute, we may disclose medical information about you in response to a court
or administrative order. We may also disclose medical information about you in response to a subpoena, discovery
request, or other lawful process by someone else involved in the dispute, but only if efforts have been made to tell
you about the request (which may include written notice to you) or to obtain an order protecting the information
requested.

O 0O 00

O

Revised 0142 20230



LAW ENFORCEMENT

We may release medical information if asked to do so by law enforcement official:

o In responsc to court order, subpocna, warrant, summons or similar process;

o To identify or locate a suspect, fugitive, material witness, or missing person;

o About the victim of a crime if, under certain limited circumstances, we are unable to obtain
the person's agreement;

o About a death we believe may be the result of eriminal conduct;

o About criminal conduct at the hospital; and

o In emergency circumstances to report a crime; the location of the crime or victims; or the
identity, description or location of the person who committed the crime.

CORONERS, MEDICAL EXAMINERS AND FUNERAL DIRECTORS

We may release medical information to a coroner or medical examiner. This may be necessary, for example, to
identify a deccased person or determine the cause of death. We may also release medical information about paticnts
of the hospital to funeral dircctors as necessary to carry out their duties.

NATIONAL SECURITY AND INTELLIGENCE ACTIVITIES

We may release medical information about you to authorized federal officials for intelligence, counterintelligence,
and other national security activities authonzed by law.

PROTECTIVE SERVICES FOR THE PRESIDENT AND OTHERS

We may disclose medical information about you to authorized federal officials so they may provide protection to the
President, other authorized persons or foreign heads of state or conduct special investigations.

SECURITY CLEARANCES

We may use medical information about you to make decisions regarding your medical suitability for a security
clearance or service abroad. We may also release your medical suitability determination to the officials in the U.S.
Department of State who necd access to that information for these purposes.

INMATES

If you arc an inmate of a correctional institution or under the custody of a law enforcement official, we may disclose
medical information about you to the correctional institution or law enforcement official. This disclosure would be
neccessary
for the institution to provide you with health care;
o to protect your health and safety or the health and safety of others; or
for the safety and security of the correctional institution.

MULTIDISCIPLINARY PERSONNEL TEAMS

We may disclose health information to a multidisciplinary personnel team relevant to the prevention, identification,
management or treatment of an abused child and the child's parents, or clder abuse and neglect.

SPECIAL CATEGORIES OF INFORMATION

In some circumstances, your heatth information may be subject to restriction that may limit or preclude some uses or
disclosures described in this Notice.

For example, there are special restrictions on the use or disclosure of certain categories of information — e.g. tests
for HIV or treatment for mental health conditions or alcohol and drug abuse. Government health benefit programs,
such as Medi-Cal, may also limit the disclosure of beneficiary information for purposes unrelated to the program.

Revised 0142 20230



SITUATIONS THAT REQUIRE US TO OBTAIN YOUR AUTHORIZATION

For uscs and disclosure not described above, we must first obtain your authorization. For cxample, the following
uscs and disclosures will only be made with your authorization;

o Uses and disclosures for marketing purposcs;

o Uses and disclosures that constitute the sale of Protected Health Information;

o Most uses and disclosures of psychotherapy notes; and

o Otheruses and disclosurcs not described in this Notice.

YOUR RIGHTS REGARDING MEDICAL INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

If you have given someone medical power of attorney or if someonce is your legal guardian, that person can cxercise
your rights and make choices about your health information. We will make sure the person has this authority and can
act for you before we take any action.

You have the following rights regarding medical information we maintain about you:

RIGHT TO INSPECT AND COPY

You have the right to inspect and obtain a copy of medical information that may be used to make decisions about your
care. Usually this includes medical and billing records, but may not include some mental health information.

To inspect and obtain a paper or electronic copy of medical information that may be used to make decisions about
you, you must submit your request in writing to our Director of Healthcare Information Management Services
{HIMS). If you request a copy of the information, we may charge a reasonable fee for the costs of copying, mailing
or other supplics associated with your request.

We may deny your request to inspect and obtain a copy in certain very limited circumstances. If you are denied
access to medical information, you may request that the denial be reviewed. Another licensed health care
professional chosen by the hospital will review your request and the denial. The person conducting the review will
not be the person who denied your request. We will comply with the outcome of the review.

RIGHT TO REQUEST AN AMENDMENT

If you feel that medical information we have about you 1s incorrect or tncomplete, you may ask us to amend the
information. You have the right to request an amendment for as long as the information is kept by or for the District.

To request an amendment, your request must be made in writing and submitted to our Director of HIMS. In addition,
you must provide a reason that supports your request.

We may deny your request for an amendment if 1t is not in writing or does not include a reason to support the
request. In addition, we may deny your request 1f you ask us to amend information that:
o Was not created by us, unless the person or entity that created the information is no longer available to
make the amendment;
o Is not part of the medical information kept by or for the hospital;
o Is not part of the information which you would be permitted to inspect and copy; or
o Is accurate and complete.

Even if we deny your request for amendment, you have the right to submit a written addendum, not to exceed 250
words, with respect to any item or statement in your record you believe is incomplete or incorrect. If you clearly
indicate in writing that you want the addendum to be made part of your medical record we will attach it to your
records and include 1t whenever we make a disclosure of the item or statement you belicve to be incomplete or
incorrect.

RIGHT TO AN ACCOUNTING OF DISCLOSURES

You have the right to request an "accounting of disclosures”. This is a list of the disclosures we made of medical
information about you other than our own uscs for treatment, payment and health care operations (as those functions
arc described above), and with other exceptions pursuant to the law.

Revised 0112.20230



To request this list or accounting of disclosures, you must submit your request in writing to our Director of HIMS.
Your request must state a time period which may not be longer than six years and may not include dates before April
14, 2003. Your request should indicate in what form you want the list (for example, on paper or electronically). The
first list you request within a 12-month period will be free. For additional lists, we may charge you for the costs of
providing the list. We will notify you of the cost involved and you may choose to withdraw or modify your request
at that time before any costs are incurred.

In addition, we will notify you as required by law following a breach of your unsecured protected health
information.

RIGHT TO REQUEST RESTRICTIONS

You have the right to request a restriction or limitation on the medical information we use or disclose about you
for treatment, payment or health care operations. You also have the right to request a limit on the medical
information we disclose about you to someone who is involved in your care or the payment for your care, like a
family member or friend.

For example, you could ask that we not use or disclose information about a surgery you had.

We are not required to agree to your request, except to the extent that you request us to restrict disclosure to a health
plan or insurer for payment or health care operations purposes if you, or someone else on your behalf (other than the
health plan or insurer), has paid for the item or service out of pocket in full. Even if you request this special
restriction, we can disclose the information to a health plan or insurer for purposes of treating you.

If we agree to another special restriction, we will comply with your request unless the information is needed to
provide you emergency treatment.

To request restrictions, you must make your request in writing to our Director of HIMS. In your request, you
must tell us:

o What information you want to limit

o Whether you want to limit our use, disclosure or both; and

o To whom you want the limits to apply, for example, disclosures from your spouse

RIGHT TO REQUEST CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATIONS

You have the right to request that we communicate with you about medical matters in a certain way or at a
certain location.

For example, you can ask that we only contact you at work or by mail.

To request confidential communications, you must make your request in writing to our Director of HIMS. We will
not ask you the reason for your request. We will accommodate all reasonable requests. Your request must specify
how or where you wish to be contacted.

RIGHT TO A PAPER COPY OF THIS NOTICE

You have a right to a paper copy of this Notice. You may ask us to give you a copy of this Notice at any time.
Even if you have agreed to receive this Notice electronically, you are still entitled to a paper copy of this Notice.

You may obtain a copy of this Notice at our website: tricitymed.org
To obtain a paper copy of this Notice, contact our Registration department.

Each time you register at or are admitted to the hospital for treatment or health care services as an inpatient or
outpatient, we will offer you a copy of the current Notice in effect.

Revised 0142.20230



COMMENTS OR COMPLAINTS

We welcome your comments about our Notice and our privacy practices. If you believe your privacy rights have
been violated, you may file a complaint with:

TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER AND PRIVACY OFFICER
4002 VISTA WAY

OCEANSIDE, CA 92056

(760) 940-3117538+

Or with the: Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services
200 Independence Avenue, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20201
1-877-696-6775
www hhs.gov/ocr/privacy/hipaa/complaints/

Please be assured that no one will retaliate or take action against you for filing a complaint.

Other uses and disclosures of medical information not covered by this Notice or the laws that apply to us will be
made only with your written permission. If you provide us permission to use or disclose medical information about
you, you may revoke that permission, in writing, at any time. If you revoke your permission, this will stop any
further use or disclosure of your medical information for the purposes covered by your written authorization, except
if we have already acted in reliance on your permission. You understand that we are unable to take back any
disclosures we have already made with your permission, and that we are required to retain our records of care that
we provided to you.

CHANGES TO THIS NOTICE

We reserve the right to change our privacy practices and update this Notice accordingly. We reserve the right to
make the revised or changed Notice effective for medical information we already have about you as well as any
information we receive in the future. We post copies of the current Notice in the registration areas and on our
internet sites. If the Notice is changed, we will post the new Notice in our registration areas and provide it to you
upon request. The Notice contains the effective date on the first page, in the top right-hand corner.

To request a copy of this notice in other languages, Braille, large print, audiocassette, or on another type of
digital storage device, please call or write the Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer at the number or
address listed above.

| Rewised D142.20230



@9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

INFECTION CONTROL

ISSUE DATE: 07/02 SUBJECT: Infection Prevention Program Plan

REVISION DATE:  04/09, 05/12, 09/15, 09/18, 05/22
09/18, 01/24

Infection Control Department Approvak: 05/2201/24
Infection Control Committee Approval: 44/2201/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nl/a
Medical Executive Commiittee Approval: 042302/24
Administration Approval: 0212303/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 02/23

A PURPOSE.

1. The purpose of the Infection Prevention (IP) Program Plan is to outline the annual infection
prevention priorities of Infection Prevention and Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC). In order to
achieve, an organized systematic plan is developed based upon the annual infection control risk
assessment that provides the foundation for an effective infection prevention program.

B. GOALS:
1. Overall
a. Reduce risk of healthcare-associated infections for all patients, employees, and visitors.
2. Targeted
a. Healthcare-associated infection reduction — at least 30% reduction overall across the
infection types that are reported to CMS (MRSA bacteremia, C.difficile, CLABSI; SSI
Hysterectomy and Colon surgery; CAUTI). (Note: infection counts are based on CMS
required reporting regulations, not necessarily all hospital-wide infections)
b. H-hand hygiene compliance program
i. Incorporate patients and families
1) Develop a bundle of tools for patients and family involvement

ii. Consistently sustain >960 percent compliance across locations and job classes
1) At least 960 percent of all locations and job classes must sustain 969
percent compliance or higher (for all locations/job classes submitting at
least 4025 observations/month)
iii. Promote engagement
1) Develop tools for promoting involvement across all job categories
2) develop new incentives and rewards.

C. RISK ASSESSMENT:

1. See Annual Facility Infection Risk Assessment
2. Patient Populations at Increased Risk of Infection

a. All intensive care unit patients

b. Immunosuppressed patients (e.g., absolute neutrophil count (ANC) <1000
ot Procedures/Devices that Increase Infection Risk

a. Central venous catheters

b. Indweiling urinary catheters

c. Tubes, drains, other devices inserted percutaneously

d. Intubation and prolonged ventilator support



Infection Control

Infection Prevention Pregram Plan

Page 2 of &

MDR Gram negative bacteria

Carbapenem-resistant Enterobacteriacae

. Candida auris

ighly Communicable Diseases

Novel Influenza virus

SARS-CoV

MERS

Viral hemorrhagic fevers (e.g., Lassa fever, Ebola viral disease)
Vaccine preventable disease (e.g., Measles, Pertussis)

e. Surgical procedures
f. ECMO/NVAD
Epidemiologically important Pathogens
a. Legionella

b. Aspergillus

c. MRSA

d. VRE

e. C. difficite

f.

g.

h

H

Pooown

D. GENERAL STRATEGIES TO REDUCE INFECTION RISK:

1.

Identify risk for acquiring and transmitting infections based geographic location, community and
population served

a. Receive public health alerts on community illnesses and trends from the California
Department of Public Heaith (CODPH).

b. Act as liaison between the medical center and the public health department.

C. Attend monthly Association for Professional in Infection Control and Epidemiology

(APIC) local chapter meetings with other facilities in our area.

Identify and control outbreaks

a. Review of microbiology, immunology, molecular microbiology reports

b. Institution of prevention and control measures as indicated (e.g., isolation, co-
horting of patients and staff, improved hand hygiene, active surveillance cultures,
assessment of environmental cleaning, enhanced environmentat cleaning)

C. Exposure follow-up (in conjunction with Employee Health)

Perform surveillance for healthcare-associated infections

a. Follow CDC National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN) definitions

b. Comprehensive:inpatient-related and outpatient-detected

C. Calculation/distribution of monthly infection rates and line listing of infected
patients for each inpatientunit/service line

d. Monthly and as needed analysis of potential for cross-transmission

e. Targeted surveillance for home health/hospice infections

f. Monitor incidence of healthcare-associated device-related or procedure-related
infections

i, Catheter-Associated Urinary Tract Infections (CAUTI)
ii. Central Line-Associated Bloodstream Infections (CLABSI)
iii. Ventilator-Associated Events (VAE)
iv. Surgical Site Infections (SSI)
Conduct routine monitoring

a. Biological indicators for sterilizers

b. Endoscopes

Improve Hand Hygiene Compliance

a. Support compliance monitoring and provide feedback to staff.

b. Routinely evaluate the availability and acceptability of hand hygiene products.
et Provide just-in-time peer coaching.

d. Provide frequent and tailored education on when and how to perform hand

hygiene along with frequent visible reminders.



Infection Control
Infection Prevention Program Plan
Page 3 of 5

e. Enlist organizational leaders to serve as role models.
f. Ensure commitment of leadership to achieve and sustain compliance of > 960%.
6. Develop and Support Infection Control Liaison Program

a. Unit-based staff, outpatient care services clinical staff, and ancillary care staff (i.e.,
EVS, FNS, Patient Transport) with focused infection control training provided by
Infection Prevention.

b. Responsible for assessing their unit's compliance with infection control
policies/procedures and conducting performance improvement activities related
to infection prevention {(e.g., reducing device-associated infections, monitoring
and improving hand hygiene compliance)

ch Serves as the contact person to disseminate infection control information,
updates, and answer staffquestions

7. Ensure compliance with TJC National Patient Safety Goals
a Comply with WHO/CDC hand hygiene guidelines
b Prevent HAls due to multi-drug resistant organisms (MDROs)
i, Annual risk assessment for MDROs
il. Implement and assess prevention strategies outlined in this plan and
under NPSG 07.03.01
c. Assess compliance with evidence-based practices for prevention of central
line-associated bloodstream infections
I. Compliance with Central Line Insertions, Access, and Maintenance
Bundie

il. Standardized insertion training and checklist for providers.

ili. Chlorhexidine bathing in intensive care units, and for all patients hospital-
wide with a central line.

iv. Daily assessment for central line need

V. Provide Central Line-Associated Bloodstream Infection rate data and
prevention process measures to key stakeholders, including leaders,
licensed independent practitioners, nursing staff, and other clinicians
d. Assess compliance with evidence-based practices for prevention of surgical
site infections
i Ensure patient education provided in Pre-op visit. Use LMS for staff
education,

i, Promote standardized, evidence-based practices for patient skin
preparation prior to surgery.

iii. Ensure Peri-Operative Services and Anesthesia infection control
policies support prevention strategies.

iv, Trend surgical procedure specific infection rates and unit rates and
provide feedback to key stakeholders

e. Implement evidence-based strategies for prevention of catheter-
associated urinary tract infections
i. Staff education regarding aseptic insertion of catheter
. Insertion order must include indication for catheter
iii. Daily assessment for urinary catheter need
iv. Appropriate maintenance of indwelling urinary catheters
V. Perform periodic audits on Indwelling Urinary Catheter Maintenance

compliance and removal protocol and disseminate process measures
on compliance to unit leadership quarterly.
8. Manage HAls as Sentinel Events When Indicated

a. Review all HAls for indications of an unanticipated death or permanent loss of
function

b. Notify Risk Management of suspected sentinel event

C. Participate in root cause analysis and follow up as needed



Infection Control

Infection Prevention Program Plan

Page 4 of 5

9.

10.

11,
12.

13,
14,

15.

16.

17.

Construction Rounds and Construction Risk Assessment Meetings

a. Walking rounds with Facilities Engineering monthly to active construction and
renovation sites in the medical center and on an as needed basis.

b. Attend construction meetings held by Facilities and Contract services.

C. Review blueprints and risk assessments for all new construction and

renovations in clinical areas.
Infection Control Rounds
a. Evaluate compliance with infection control policies/practices.
b. Written recommendations to manager with their follow-up documented.
Policy Review and Revision
Committee Participation: Refer to Infection Prevention Program Policy for committee
information.
Periodic Comprehensive TB Risk Assessment
Consultation, Education/Training
a. In-services, presentations, educational material to staff, visitors/families,
medical staff, contract employees, students, and volunteers
Computer-based training modules
Educational videos
Newsletter articles
Educational materials (e.g., brochures, booklets)
On-call availability 24/7 for Infection Prevention consultation
Addltlonal Strategies to Reduce Infections for the Immunosuppressed Patient (e.g.
absolute neutrophil count {ANC<1000], agranulocytosis)

Teao0oT

a. Ideally a private positive pressure reom

b. No live plants or fresh flowers

c. Patient must wear tight-fitting surgical mask when outside room

d. Child visitor restrictions during influenza and RSV season

Additional Strategies for Home Health and Hospice

a. Trend analysis of wound infections, device-related infections {urinary catheter-
associated UTis and central line-associated bloodstream infections)

b. Promote immunizations to prevent respiratory infections: influenza and

pneumococcal pneumonia vaccines (as recommended by ACIP)
Additicnal Strategies for Qutpatient Care Services
a. Since most patient encounters with the healthcare system now take place in
outpatient settings, TCMC will maintain infection prevention programs in
Outpatient Care Services, and this will include
b. Training and monitoring of practices on:
i the basic principles of disease transmission and the methods to
prevent transmission
ii. Safe injection practices and proper use of single use and single
patient devices/ medications
iil. principles of asepsis and hand hygiene
v, OSHA Bloodborne Pathogen Standard
v, the principles of disinfection and sterilization
vi. TB and respiratory protection per OSHA

E. SPECIFIC STRATEGIES TO ADDRESS INFECTION RISKS:

1.

Based on the Facility Risk Assessment, the following strategies will be employed in
FY24 for elements with scores of >6;
a. Contralline-Blesdstream-infestions{GCLABSHEnvironmental Cleanliness-
Terminal Cleaning failure
i Staff education and competency check offMulii-diseiplinary

worlgroup



Infection Control
Infection Prevention Program Plan
Page 5of 5

il. Mascular-access-assessmentWeekly documented IP oversight
iii. Implementation of central-line-decision-toclunit specific terminal
cleaning checklist

b. Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Compliance
i. Compliance monitoring
ii. Staff education and competency check-off

F. EVALUATION OF PLAN EFFECTIVENESS:

1. Statistical analysis of infections
2. Trend analysis of infection rates
3l Healthcare-acquired infection rates to include home health.
4. Monthly infection reports to nurse managers, clinical directors, infection control liaisons
5 Quarterly infection reports to Infection Control Committee
6. Infection Control rounds report and annual compliance assessment
7. Support Employee Health Services to monitor compliance with required and
recommended immunizations
8. Annual assessment of communicable disease exposures with trend analysis
9, Annual risk assessment for MDROs with trend analysis
10. Periodic assessment of process measures with staff feedback
a. Evidence based processes to prevent surgical site infections
b. Evidence based processes to prevent catheter associated bloodstream
infections
C. Evidence based processes to prevent catheter associated urinary tract
infections
d. Evidence based processes to prevent C.lestrdioides-difficile infections
e. Evidence based processes to prevent ventilator associated events
f. Hand hygiene compliance
g. Isolation precautions compliance

G. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Infection Control Policy: Infection Prevention Risk Assessment
2. Infection Prevention Risk Assessment Tahle

H. REFERENCE(S):
1. APIC Text of Infection Control and Epidemiology, 2021.

Joint Commission, Hospital Accreditation Standards, Chapter: infection Prevention and Control,
www jointcommission.org

St CMS Conditions of Participation: [C (reviewed 01/24)

4. Title 22, Calif. Code of Regulations (reviewed 01/24)




BlEp pU2J} PUE J0JUCW 0} BNUNUDD) (3JewIUBg SUOIIIYUI
diyspiemals Jnoiquuy paysignd OH 34A
uoiuaaaid uo uoneanpy| 1B sased g ou) mEmm NSHN/QIqeT PoON
3u318AH pueH pue 10 Jamo| puad]
SUO|INEJAI4 PISEQ UOISSIWSUR] | /pIEpUR]S 0] 313YpY
BIEP PU3J] PUE 10HUOW O] INUIJUOD 1S8 OH JHA
diyspiemals noigqiuy (ydewyduaq
uofuaaald uo uoneonpy| BN ased T paysiqnd| NSHN/QI9ET pow
3UDI3AH pueH pue ou) 3sed’ {-0
SUOIINEJAld PRseq UDISSIWSUEL] /pIEpUER)S O] 3U3YpY
B1Ep puall pue JOLUOW 0] 3NU|IUO) 1d 000T * (VSHIN) SUOIPAUI
Hwpe sAep juaned OH VSYW
U0 BulUD9JIS ‘SIBU +YSYA J0OJ UOIIBZIUO|0IAP |BSEN {ej03/saanisod
uonuaaaud uo uoneanpl| BN IT0 30 # :0T0T J0 SY| NSHN/QI9E] PoN
2udIFAH pueH pue "sAep 1d 000T/S6'€
SUOIINEJRId PIseq UOISSHUSUERILL /piepuelS 0} 243Ypy Jo ajeds paysygnd
IHI UYL 5537
PIEP PU3.] PUB JOHUOL 0} 2NUIIUOD 1S9
Hwpe OH VSYW
U0 BUiuaa135 ‘S3JEU +YSHIAl JOJ UDIIBZIUG|OIIP |BSEN
uopuaaaud uo uoleanpy
dSY/HH/suonnelald paseq uolssiwsuel | /piepuels (vo
BAION| YIS €Z0ZAD)} | T> (YIS} S°0> "MIS| NSHN/QI9ET POW
SASEI 7
R
sa18a1e.435 UONUDADIY £207 [[:005) aanos eleqg | Ayouyd ysiy

209




B1EP PUaJ] pUB JOolIUoW 0} 3NURUOD (uouyap
sased IvA
JUBAS P3IRIIOSSE JOIBIIIUSA |1B JO | AQ MBIASI 3w |edy uo paseq
3IPuUNg dvA 040 J2MO| puaJl sased dvAd)
uonuanasd uo uoneanpy| PBW | | va yaiy BlUOWNSU
IS fsesea g dVAd JO J3quInN
9ua|8AH pueH pue paje(dossy
SUOIINEIB.d paseq UOISSILISURL | /piIepuels 0] alaypy 101e(1IUDA
qo14/550d
B1EP PUIS] PUB JOHUOW 01 SNUIIUGY (YIS) oney
UOIEIU3WINJIOP NY JAUISD) Ul Deyd jo0ls |BIsug u0I1133ju)
uawdinba asn juaned ajgduis-uou Aue plepuels
104 '@ SWOOJ JIPD) 10 Suluea)d |eulwlS] JO) Yoea|q asn (aSe1ane OH P D
diyspiemais J0Iq1uY |eUOIRY
saulaping |003s Jad Bunsal/uonuaaaid uo uoeanp] 13 10N aya ueyy (1> WIS) £°05 Wis| NSHN/Q1ge Y3IH
4a1em/deos yum HH sa1e4 JyBIy
SUOIINEJALd PISE] UOISSIWISURL | fpiepuels 0} a13ypy 9%0E) €'
diyspiemais onoiqnuy (Jewypuag YH IHD
uonuaassd uc uoneanpy FNSTETY
wawdinby| 18N 12 30 e e te PO
aled Juailed uonduislq g ulues|) ‘suaBAH puey pue e
SUOIINEIRI4 PIsEq UOISSIWSUEL ) /pIBpURLS O} BJaYPY
diyspaemals anoiquuy (ueWYIUaq Suodaut
uonuaaaud uo uonednp] paysignd OH 1953
wawdinby| 1B ¥ ) m..Emm JENTES! PO

2487 Ju3ijed uonduIsiq '3 Buluea|) ‘auBAH puey pue
SuciIned>ald paseq uo|ssiwsuel ) /prepuels o) aiaypy

JO J3MO[ pualy




Jeis/diysiapea) yun 0] S31e HH UO yaeqpasy Ajyjuow
HUN Yoes Ag Yiuow /Sjuswow O Jpny

"B1EP puaJl PUB JO}IU0W 03 3NUIU0)

‘}JB1S JO J31yD) pue s3udIW Je sgiA 0} uoieanp3
{8uiuieapiau ‘uonejuslio aaAo|dwa map) ucneinpl
auza18Ay puey 1o} sau3ping JQ3 PUe OHM 01 2U3YpY

yaul JoN

%56

%96<

3diap

POW

3ouedwod
2UaIBAH

puey

B1EP PU3I1 PUB JOLIUOW 0] 3NUIUCY)

J01eINpa 11un AQ 3SEI YIBI JO MIINDL DU {EDY
3a|pung | LNV

510npoud |BLISIXS ISN/IBAOWDI JIIDYIED) IIBIOAPY
uoluanasd uo uonesnp]

2ua1BAH puey pue

SuDIINEdald Paseq UOISSIWSUERL | fpiepurls 0) 3u3Ypy

12A1 10N

£8°0

(T>¥IS) S0 WIS

NSHN/ZVQ

Y&

1Lnvd

B1EP PU3J] PUB JOLUOW Q] ANUIIUCY
103e3npP3 NuUn AQ 35ed YIea JO M3IASI WD |eay
S|pung 1Sdv12

2uedwod ajpung 4113

uoIjuUaA32d UO UOIE3NP]

3u319AH pueH pue

suoINelald PIseq uoISSIWSURS | /PIEPUE]S O] 2laypy

1B

o

(T>¥Is) s'oNIS

NSHN/ZVQ

Yy

1Sav1D

M3IAL UoNeZIIIN Alleq

‘sjenr] Buluayemy snoauejuods 10y JUWSSISSe Ajleq
JU3A JJo

Buiueam 10) JUBWASSISSE AJ(EP ANUIIUOD 03 | Y odad
|[e1goJoiw pue podat z014/d33d Allep SJouow asinu di

1PN

840

>4Ns

NSHN

PO

{¥ns) oney
uopezin
piepuels
IvA




DD 1 Lodad pue JONUCLW 01 2NWIILOD (uoydouy) aid
ue SIIINLD
J1H Suiwitopad geis uo suop Asualadwod jenuuy o wenduwos SN pue Qds In4ag PO
‘goueldwod Ajuc 03 Q7H op 1843 {eanding
2INSUD 01 SpUnod Ap@am Buiop J01341p 4O 73 dI SesJe suapuo)
01 01 BIEP HOdas pue YO 17 AdS IPNE 0] ANUUG) N C Ol s T es—p— uonezI NS
5 2y ! ! o
sl L |eando|oig 0iaz7 jeaiding A
‘Bunuodal 4| a1e4Nd2E JO) BUNWEINIS sjuaWalInbal saseasiq
210w 8uI3158 A|SNONUITUOI SI UOIIEIIUNWIOI J3UI3D) P %001 unodas yum| zvamauied PO 3|qeuoday
'SUCIIIPUO3 3|qenodal JS0W SIYIIUIP! ISIPUOAR J3UWIDD Juendwod %001
€707 3das L4 paay isidooiwapidl 31D $32UN053Y
juawyedaq
EE1 4 314 07| d8dIW3L Y3y uoIjuaAasd
uoi333}U|
S3PWWOD spuno.
21eudouidde 01 papodal ale spunos JO3 way sguipuly 3ey ol
ssa {(auwn 2y3 Jo %001}
PPE 0] J1Un Yea o Jaduey 01 panodal spunold 103 U3WUoJIAUY
woJy sSuipuiy Bupuno Buipunos 303 (e
. IPUnos 303 YUM| 131y 10N %08 EEIET Mol
U] PIssSAIPPE SaNss|
pa1e10diodu) SpPUNOL |0JIUOTD) UOIIIIJU] SABY 03 3NUIIUDD)
|04IU03 UOIIFJU|
(e
$31BJ YIS YBiy 1M $,|SS U0 SYPNE LWI0I3d Jedg/uedip
$31198uNs |B12310{02 /11232 ‘daag
10} pajuawajdw weadoud awoy jeaiding aanesadonad lenadns)
‘AdS ' YO Ul lusBwadeurw yQ Yum papasu se uayo| 183w 960 I>HIS NSHN ysy 12301 (sadAy
340w 10 ‘(Wnuiuiw 1e) spunos Auapenb wisopad 0y ) or V) 155

30UEHAWOI JOIGIIUE 10} MBIABI ISIIEWIIEYY Q|
IS IWWI0)
4O PUe SAD "YdDIA ‘Id¥D 221 yum sduipuyy aseys




55

aupaiedaly
131U |eaIpay AU 1] JO S13p|oyaels
. Jjealp D uLY PloYyay 31 01 paiejas Asuadiow]
434310 pue sjuaied ‘Yeis 0} uoissIWSueI) (IAQD uaaaud S1ID AU
03 sAem [|e ul aledidiued pue poddns 03 anuiuo? Lot
Aue pue 331UWWI03
[|1An JJBIS j0JIUOD) 1@ UOIIUAARI U0I1I3u| £207 udy| 19 SIA sswadeus 1daq dl PO
y3noJyy panuuod Jwapued GT-QIAQD @NSs) D] Aue Joj } 5 mmmﬂa
B|ge[IBAR S} |0JIUOD) 1 UOIIUBALJ U113} "3aRILIWI0D 5 mn_w mo
ul 191
uawaBeuey J1SeSI JO J3QUIIW 3G 01 INUIILOY) SR
‘syow 7 Auaaa 03 padueyd sBunaay twnwiuuiw sdupasw
1e Allapenb s3uilasw 53| 2Npayds-ald 0 anuiluo) winwiuiw e A
1B S 1daq dl PO

s3unaaw Apauenp




Infection Prevenlion
Infection Prevention Risk Assessment
Page 2 of §

E.

1. San Diego County is becoming increasingly bicultural due to its close proximity to Mexico. In
addition, the county is already ethnically diverse, and will be increasingly so. As of 2022, the
largest San Diego County racial/ethnic groups are White (43.4 %) followed by Hispanics (35%})
& Asian (13.1%). Approximately 22.6% of the county's populations are immigrants, including
refugees, who come from other countries, speak many different languages, and have a variety
of needs as they assimilate into their new environment. Approximately, 39.4% of people in San
Diego County speak a non-English language. The senior and disabled populations are growing
disproportionately compared to the rest of the popufation.

LOCATION OF ALL SERVICES WITHIN ACUTE CARE SETTING

Lower Level
Location Departments Inpt/OBV OutPt Ambulatory
Assembly Rooms
Cafeteria
Employee Health
Medical Records
Pharmacy
Sterile Processing
Quality/Risk/Infection
Prevention B o
Level 1
Location Departments Inpt/OBV OutPt Ambulatory
North Wing Acute Rehab X
South Tower ICU X
Pavilion Cardiology Services X X
1st floor Emergency X
13t floor Laboratory X
1t floor Pulmonary Rehab X X
1¢t floor Radiology X X X
Level 2
Location Departments Inpt/OBV OutPt Ambulatory
South Tower (2E/2W) | Patient Rooms X
Pavilion (2P) Patient Rooms X
Level 3
Location Departments Inpt/OBV OutPt Ambulatory
Center Tower PCU (Forensics) X
Pavilion (3P) Patient Rooms X
South Tower (3E/3W) | Patient Rooms X
Level 4
Location Departments Inpt/OBV OutPt Ambulatory
Pavilion (4P) Patient Rooms X
South Tower (4E/4W) | Patient Rooms X
1. According to the US Census Bureau 2022 QuickFacts, the demographic information on the
three cities most often served by TCHD is listed below.
Median Total # African
| City [ income residents | White | Hispanic | Asian American




Infection Prevention
Infection Prevention

Risk Assessment

Page 3of 5
QOceanside $ 84,373 174,068 58.4% 37.7% 7.2% 4.3%
Vista $ 80,703 98,381 57.1% 49.2% 51% 3.3%
Carlsbhad $ 133,341 114,746 74.2% 16.6% 9.7% 1.2%
2. Tri City Medical Center Patient Characteristics for Fiscal Year 2023
a. Patient Census:
Average. Daily Average.
Census Length of Stay* | Total Pt. Days
Acute Care {excludes all below) 98.2 5.33 35,135
Icu* 11.4 5.6 4143
NICU 4.8 .56 1,770
Rehab Serv. 5.0 9.7 1833
i. *ICU ALOS includes discharges, transfers out, and expirations. All other areas are
based only on discharges.
b. In acute care FY 2023, the three largest age groups are age 60-69 (19%), 70-79
{20.8%), and 80-89 (15.5%).
C. 76.8 percent (6,571) of Emergency Department patients were admitted to the hospital in
FY2023.
3. TCHD's primary focus is on basic community services. The top ten major diagnostic categories
{DRGs) are the following:
a. Obstetrics
b. Newborns & Neonates
c. Infectious & Parasitic Diseases
d. Circulatory System
e. Musculoskeletal & Connective Tissue
f, Nervous System
g. Respiratory
h. Digestive System
i. Kidney & Urinary Tract
j- Hepatobiliary System & Pancreas
4— Top three Inpatient Surgical Procedures (Fiscal Year 2023): Esophagogastroduodenoscopy

(EGD) Ureteroscopy and Spmal fusmn (FUSN) :




Infection Prevention
Infection Prevention Risk Assessment
Page 4 of 5

F. EMPLOYEE HEALTH:

1. The Employee Health department at TCMC works collaboratively with the Infection Prevention
Department to minimize the spread of infectious disease to and from employees.
a. The total number of employees who worked at this facility in CY 2023 was approximately
1,638.
2. The Employee Health department contributes to the prevention and control of communicable

diseases by established policies and procedures listed in TCMC policies. Together with
Infection Prevention they work collaboratively in:

a. Investigating and monitoring exposures to communicable disease and illness.

b. Establishing pro-active policies and procedures for management of employee infection
risks related to disasters, bioterrorism, and emerging pathogens.

c. Establishing guidelines for work restrictions due to communicable disease.

G. REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF FY2023 HOSPITAL SURVEILLANCE:
1. See related document: Infection Prevention Program Plan

H. RISK ANALYSIS FOR FY 2023:
1. See related document: Infection Prevention Risk Assessment Table

GOALS, OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES, EVALUATION:

1. The goals, objectives and strategies are described in the annual Infection Prevention Program Plan.

2. Using the risk analysis and the summary of healthcare-associated infection surveillance outcomes,
prioritized risks are identified based on their nature, scope, and impact on the care, treatment, and
services provided.

3. Goals and objectives, with specific strategies are developed and implemented to address the
prioritized risks. These strategies may take the form of policy and procedure, surveillance and
monitoring activities, education and training programs, environment and engineering controls, or
combinations thereof. Strategies may differ in approach, form, scope, application and/or duration
depending on the specific risk issue, the care setting(s) and environment. See:

J. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

1. infection Control Policy: Infection Prevention Program Plan
2. tnfection Control Policy: Epidemiologic Investigation of a Suspected Outbreak
3. Infection Control: Infection Prevention Risk Assessment Table

K. REFERENCE(S}:

1. County of San Diego Public Health & Human Services Agency, Public Health Services.
Retrieved from http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/ (reviewed 01/24)

APIC Text of Infection Control and Epidemioiogy, 2021.
https:/iwww.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/missionviejocitycalifornia,orangecountycalifornia/P
ST045217 (Reviewed 01/24)

Joint Commission, Hospital Accreditation Standards (reviewed 01/24)

CMS Conditions of Participation: IC (reviewed 01/24)

Title 22, Calif. Code of Reqgulations (reviewed 01/24)

Health and Safety Code (reviewed 01/24)

CDC Guidelines as listed (reviewed 01/24)

CDPH AFL 09-07 (reviewed 01/24)

FDA 21 CFR Part 1271 (reviewed 01/24)

County of San Diego Tuberculosis Control and Refugee Health Program.) TB Statistics-Fact
Sheet 2022 (01/24). Retrieved from:
http://www.sandiegocounty.gov/hhsa/programs/phs/tuberculosis_control_program/

12, hitps://datausa.io/profile/geo/san-dieqo-county-ca/

SFN

2O NO O

S o



Infection Prevention
Infection Prevention Risk Assessment
Page 50f 5

13. https :/iwww.sandieqocounty.gov/hhsalstatistics demographics.html
14. https:/flwww.california-demographics.com/san-dieqo-county-demographics




LIKELIHOOD SEVERITY PREPAREDNESS RISK SCORE
1(low)-Sthigh) | 1(low)-5(high) | 1(low)-5(high) e er‘i';;‘;f;'r';‘:;‘r’e’; o
GEOGRAPHY/COMMUNITY
::‘rfsl’HLzrgso;r%a;ggf) Fevers {e.g , Ebola 12 5 32 1.750
Fideanite iy 2 . 3 4027
Legionellosis 3 3 3 3.0
SARS-CoV 4 4 54 4.03.2
Novel influenza virus 43 4 35 4.03.2
FACILITY
Infection Types
CLABSI 36 4 43 873.0
CAUTI 35 3 43 2.2560
C.difficile 4 3 3 40
S8l 43 4 3 534.0
Pneumonia 34 4 32 8400
CRE 24 4 3 5273
Influenza 4 3 4 30
Norovirus 3 4 43 340
RSV 3 2 4 15
Aspergillus 23 4 3 4-02.6
Candida auris 23 5 33 £03.3
VRE 3 2 4 1.5
MRSA &) 32 4 1.52.25
Equipment Related Risks
P oS | : s %
i : E 240
Unsafe injection practices 3 4 4 30
Pathogen Exposure Risks for Patients
and Staff
MDROs {multi drug resistant organisms) 3 3 4 2253
C. difficile 43 3 4 2.3.03
Influenza —Seasonal 2 3 4 15
Infestations (Scabies, Lice, bed bugs) 34 3 4 2.2530
Tubercuiosis 4 4 30
Communicable Diseases(COVID-19) 4 3 54 3024




~ TCMC 20232 |IP Risk Assessment

Internal Environmental Risks !
Fhdt |
Construction or Renovation Projects 3 3 5-03.0 |
Laundry and linen problems 3 | 3 4 2 253
T — = -
Medical Waste mishandling 3 4 4 f 30
Mold 3 4 3 40
Water Intrusion/ Disruption 45 4 33 675.3
Environmental cleanliness- terminal
Clean supplies and equipment are not 3 3 3 3p
stored appropriately
Safe Food Handling: cool down logs, i
labeling 43 3 _: 4 233.0
Ice Machines — schedule for cleaning lce 5 4 [ _3 { =
containers 40
Employee Related Risks
Hand Hygiene (non-compliance) 5 | 3 i 3 == 50
i | e R |
PPE (non-compliance) 45 4 3 6753
Needlestick: Bloodborne pathogen
exposure 35 4 4 503.0
"PAPRSs (non-compliance ) 3 43 43 | 30
Unidentified T8 patients in Emergency 3 4 4 30 o ]
department & direct admit

Medium=3-86



(&’)Tri-(:ity Health Care District
Oceanside, California

INFECTION CONTROL

POLICY
ISSUE DATE: 09/01 SUBJECT: Required Reporting
REVISION DATE: 06/14, 02/18, 12/20
Department Approval: 08/2001/24
Infection Control Committee Approval: 08/2001/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 1442002/24
Administration Approval: 42/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 12/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To promote consistent reporting practices of Reportable diseases required by Title 17, California
Code of Regulations for Reportable Diseases and to assist the hospital Infection Control
Program to intervene rapidly when appropriate. State law mandates when and how to report
(i.e. in writing, by phone, or fax transmission) depending on the disease or condition.

B. PROCEDURE:

1.

Completing the required reporting to the local public health officer is the responsibility of every
healthcare provider (physician, podiatrist, nurse practitioner, physician assistant, registered
nurse, nurse midwife, or medical examiner) whom knows of, or in attendance on a case or
suspected case of any of the required reportable diseases or conditions.
a. For inpatients, contact Infection Control at 760-940-5696 for reporting assistance.
A list of required reportable diseases for healthcare providers is listed on the Confidential
Morbidity Report (CMR) available at SanDiegoCounty.gov.
The CMR can be used for most reports (see TB and HIVV/AIDS below). Forms for reporting are
available at the CMR website.
a. Urgent information should be reported via telephone:

i. Epidemiology: 619-692-8499

i. STD: 619- 692- 8501

ii. Tuberculosis: 619- 692- 8610

iv. For diseases that require “immediate” reporting on weekend/holidays contact
858-565-5255.
b. Most-Some diseases are required to be reported within one working day and can be
mailed, faxed or telephoned, refer to the CMR for disease specific reporting time frames.
c. Mail information to the County of San Diego, Health and Human Services Agency, Public

Health Services, 3851 Rosecrans St. San Diego, California 92110. Please note the

department (i.e. Epidemiology, STD, TB Control, or Immunizations branch).
d. “Fax” information to:

i. Epidemiology: 858-715-6458

ii. STD: 619- 692- 8541

iii. Tuberculosis: 619- 692- 5516
HIV infection and AIDS are reportable in California using the required form (not CMR). The
clinical laboratory or physician can notify Infection Control to report via
SanbDiegoCounty-govphone call and FedEx 24 hour delivery of medical records.

i. SDPH HIV Branch: 619-692-8505



Infection Control
Required Reporting
Page 2 of 2

4ii. 24 hour Fed Ex delivery to: 6160 Mission Gorge Rd. Suite 400, MS-P491,
San Diego, Ca. 92120.
5. Tuberculosis (TB) reporting is mandated by the Gotch Bill (AB 804) and requires a special form
via SanDiegoCounty.gov
a. See the Infection Control Policy: Aerosol Transmissible Disease and Tuberculosis
Exposure Control Plan for further TB reporting requirements. Notify Infection Control
during regular work hours Monday through Friday, or the Administrative Supervisor
during holidays and weekends for reporting assistance.
6. Clinical Laboratory
a. Microbiology will telephone the San Diego County Health and Human Services for
communicable diseases listed under Report Immediately or Report Within One Working
Day.
b. Infection Control will be immediately notified of positive- Acid-Fast Bacilli (AFB) smears
or cultures and positive TB results in order for timely reporting and foliow up.
c. Suspected or known meningococcal infections will be immediately reported to Infection
Control or the Administrative Supervisor on evening, night and weekends, and holiday
shifts.

C. EXTERNAL LINK(S):
1. Confidential Morbidity Report (CMR):

http://www.sandiegocounty.govi/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/phs/community _epidemiology/disea

se reporting requirements for health care providers.htmi
2. HIV/Aids Reportable Form:

http://www sandiegocounty. gov/hhsa/programs/phs/hiv_aids epidemiology unit/heaith care pr
ovider_toolkit. htm!

3. Tuberculosis Reporting Form:
https://www.sandiegocounty.gov/content/sdc/hhsa/programs/phs/tuberculosis control _program/
reporting.htm|

D. RELATED DOCUMENT(S):
1. Administrative Policy: Mandatory Reporting Requirements, 236

2. Infection Control Policy: Aerosol Transmissible Disease and Tuberculosis Exposure Control
Plan
3 Infection Control Policy: Bloodborne Pathogen Exposure Control Plan
E. REFERENCE(S):
1. Consent Manual (2019, 46" ed.)California Hospital Association
2. County of San Diego, Public Health Services Reporting Instructions and Requirements

(Program specific Information through Community Epidemiotogy, Tuberculosis Control and
Refugee Health Program, and the HIV, STD and Hepatitis Branch).(Reviewed 7/23)

3. https.//www.cdph.ca gov/Programs/PSB/Pages/CommunicableDiseaseControl.aspx

4 Title 17, California Code of Regulations (CCR) §2500, §2593, §2641.5-2643.20, and §2800-
2812 Reportable Diseases and Conditions* (Reviewed 7/23)




(C‘J) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF
CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION (CME)

ISSUE DATE: 10/05 SUBJECT: Continuing Medical Education
(CME) Speaker & Honoraria
Reimbursement

REVISION DATE:  05/09, 11/12, 12/15, 06/18, 03/19  POLICY NUMBER: 8710-604
03/20, 04/21, 12/22

Medical Staff Department Approval: 042201/24
CME Committee Approval: 10/2201/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 142202/24
Administration Approval: 12/2203/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12122

A PURPOSE:
1. To outline the process utilized by the Continuing Medical Education CME Committee to
determine honoraria, and reimbursement expenses paid to individual faculty, authors, planners,
and activity support staff and volunteers.

B. POLICY:
1. Tri-City Healthcare District's (TCHD) CME Committee is responsible for approving funds for
speaker honoraria.

2. The CME Committee Chairperson/designee is responsible for approving honoraria, and
reimbursement expenses greater than $500.
3. Honorarium shall not be paid to the director of the CME activity, CME Committee members,

presenters, authors, joint sponsor, members of the medical staff involved with the supported
activity, or others involved with the supported activity. No other payment as aforementioned
shall be provided.

4, Members of the medical staff, who provide educational presentations, may request
reimbursement for their expenses, i.e., development of PowerPoint/slide presentation as
outlined in the following procedure.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. The CME Coordinator may contact commercial support in an effort to secure an unrestricted
educational grant.
a. All commercial support funds shall be made payable to “TCMC Medical Staff Treasury”.

2. The CME Coordinator shall inform the speaker of the approved, offered honorarium.
a. The CME Coordinator shall obtain a completed W-8 form from the speaker.
b. Upon completion of the CME activity, the CME Coordinator shall mail the honorarium
check, “Thank You Letter”, and a copy of the activity “Evaluation Summary” to the
speaker.

D. REFERENCE(S):
1. ACCME Standards of Commercial Support — Standard 3.7.



Q
@‘9 Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF
CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION (CME)

ISSUE DATE:

10/05 SUBJECT: Educational Planning, Needs
Assessment, Objectives and
Evaluation of a Continuing Medical
Education (CME) Activity-Ensure
Content is Valid

REVISION DATE:  05/09, 08/12, 12/15, 06/18, 03/19 POLICY NUMBER: 8710-600

04/21, 12/22

Medical Staff Department Approval: 1412212123
CME Committee Approval: 10/2201/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 142202/24
Administration Approval: 1212203/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12/22

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To outline criteria utilized for educational planning and evaluation of a Continuing Medical
Education (CME) activity

B. DEFINITION(S):

1.

Prioritization Grid — a tool utilized to organize the educational needs of the medical staff and
assigning a CME scheduling priority according to the impact topics have on performance,
HWOP, Joint Commission functions, culturallinguistic implications, and National Patient Safety
Goals.

Plan Do Study Act (PDSA) model — Simple yet powerful tool for accelerating quality
improvement

Professional Practice Gap — The difference between health care processes or outcomes
observed in practice and those potentially achievable on the basis of current professional
knowledge.

C. EDUCATIONAL PLANNING — NEEDS ASSESSMENT:

1.

s

Annually our physician's learning needs are surveyed to: a) identify educational needs or
professional practice gaps, and b) evaluate the performance of the continuing medical
education component at Tri-City Heaithcare District. This data is then summarized and
provided to the CME Committee to use in planning educational activities and in determining the
potential value of the activity.

Identified needs from multiple sources are used to initiate and support the planning process.
Need documentation is the first step in planning a CME activity.

Each source of need requires a supporting document to use in setting methodology, design,
objectives, and evaluation of the CME activity.

D. EDUCATIONAL PLANNING — OBJECTIVES:
1

2.

3.

Based upon the identified needs, the objectives are developed for each CME activity.

The purpose or objectives of the activity describes learning outcomes in terms of physician
performance or patient health and are consistently communicated to the learner.

The target audience is identified and stated in all learing materials.



Medical Staff - Continuing Medical Education
Educational Planning; Needs Assessment; Objectives; and Evaluation of a Continuing Medical Education (CME) Activity

Page 2 of 3

4.
5.

1.

2.

3.

4,

5.

o »

Background requirements of the prospective participants are listed when indicated.
Learning outcomes in terms of competence, performance and patient outcomes are indicated
and communicated to the learner.

EVALUATION & IMPROVEMENT:

All educational activities are evaluated for effectiveness in meeting identified educational needs,
as measured by competence, performance and patient outcomes.

When applicable, educational activities are evaluated for effectiveness in meeting identified
educational needs, as measured by practice application and/or health status improvement.

The overall CME program is evaluated regularly by the CME committee with review of its
mission and activities of the previous year.

Improvements are made in the CME program by incorporating suggestions of the CME
committee into the operating CME policies and procedures.

Outcomes in physician behavior which influence the health of the population are measured
when applicable by repeated surveys or statistical review of morbidity data.

PROCEDURE:
1.

Activity Request - Upon request, the CME Coordinator will provide the activity planner with a
“Quick Tool for planning Accredited Continuing Education™ from ACCME Tool kit form for AMA
PRA Category | Credit™.

CME Committee Review/Approval Process:

a. The CME Coordinator will submit the completed “Quick Tool for planning Accredited
Continuing Education” form to the CME Committee for review/approval.

b. A quorum of the CME Committee members has the authority to approve a CME Activity
Request outside of committee via electronic mail response. The CME Coordinator will
make a copy of the electronic mail responses and file with the "Quick Tool for planning
Accredited Continuing Education”.

C. AMA PRA Category | Credit™ requests shall be granted at the discretion of the CME
Committee. Utilizing the Peer Review form from the ACCME toolkit.

d. The CME Committee may utilize prioritization grids and/or the FOCUS-PDCA tool in
planning CME activities to organize and prioritize topics maximizing the impact CME
activities have on physician competence, performance and patient outcomes.

Documents — The CME Coordinator may utilize the ACCME toolkit for each activity, and will

provide the following documents to the activity planner foliowing approval by the CME

Committee:

a. Faculty disclosure form for disclosure of relevant financial relationships with resolution

declaration should a conflict of interest exists;

Cultural diversity form;

Content validation form;

Commercial guidelines (ACCME Commercial Support Standards);

e. W-9 form (if applicable)

Required Documents — The CME Coordinator shall ensure documentation is on file for each

approved CME activity per the CME Checklist. The activity planner will provide the following

completed and signed documents to the CME Coordinator. Note: AMA PRA Category |

Credit™ will not be assigned to a course if the following are not provided in a timely manner

before the course date.

Faculty's curriculum vitae (mandatory};

Faculty disclosure form (mandatory),

Content validation form (mandatory);

Original handout material, and/or electronic (PowerPoint) presentation (if applicable):

W-9 (if applicable);

Audio-visual (AV) requiremenits (if applicable),

Processmg Time - Processing time for CME requests is typically 60-90 days.

Advertisement - All AMA PRA Category | Credit™ approved activities shall be advertised to the

Medical Staff. The CME Coordinator will assure that the advertisements include:

SO

(=S



Medical Staff - Continuing Medical Education

Educational Planning; Needs Assessmeni; Objectives: and Evaluation of a Continuing Medical Education (CME) Activity
Page 3of 3
a. Title of the activity and topics to be presented
b. Statement of desired outcomes
c. The CME accreditation and credit designation statement
d. Acknowledgement of educational grants or other financial contributions (if known at the

G.

10.

11.

12.

13.

time of the publication)
Relevant Financial Relationships (Ineligible Company) — Disclosure of relevant financial
retationships will be provided at every CME activity. See Commercial Support and Prevent
Commercial Bias and Marketing policy
Evaluations/Sign-In Sheets — An activity evaluation form and a sign-in sheet shall be provided at
every CME activity where AMA PRA Category | Credit™ is awarded.
Faculty - The CME Coordinator shall summarize the evaluations and provide a copy of the
evaluation summary, a letter of appreciation and honorarium (if applicable) to the speaker within
four weeks of activity closure.
Learners - The CME Coordinator may send a follow-up e-mail to the learners six (6) weeks
following the activity.
CME Committee — The CME Coordinator shall provide the CME Committee with a summary of
evaluations.
CME Credit - The CME Coordinator shall provide TCHD Medical Staff members a copy of their
CME records upon request.
Record Maintenance - CME records shall be maintained for a minimum of six (6) years.

REFERENCE(S):

1.
2.

Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical Education (ACCME) Standard 1

All recommendations for patient care in accredited continuing education must be based on
current science, evidence, and clinical reasoning, while giving a fair and balanced view of
diagnostic and therapeutic options

All scientific research referred to, reported. or used in accredited education in support or
justification of a patient care recommendations must conform to the generally accepted
standards of experimental design, data collection, analysis, and interpretation-

Although accredited continuing education is and appropriate place to discuss, debate and
explore new and evolving topics, these areas need to be clearly identified as such within the
program and individual presentations. It is the responsibility of accredited providers to facilitate
engagement with these topics without advocating for, or promoting, practices that are not, or not
yet, adequately based on current science, evidence, and clinical reasoning.

Organizations cannot be accredited if they advocate for unscientific approaches to diagnosis or
therapy, or if their education promotes recommendations, treatment, or manners of practicing
healthcare that are determined to have risks or dangers that outweigh the benefits or are known
to be ineffective in the treatment of patients.



)
@9 Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF
CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION (CME)

{SSUE DATE:

10/05 SUBJECT: Joint Providership/Co-Providership

REVISION DATE:  05/09, 08/12, 09/14, 08/18, 03/19 POLICY NUMBER: 8710-602

03/20, 04/21, 12/22

Medical Staff Department Approval: 04/2212/23
CME Committee Approval: 4042201/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 1412202/24
Administration Approval: 42{2203/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12/22

A. PURPQSE:

1.

To outline criteria utilized for Joint Providership or Co-Providership of a Continuing Medical
Education (CME) activity.

DEFINITION(S):

1.

Joint Providership— A relationship between an accredited CME provider and a non-accredited
provider, in which the accredited provider works in partnership with the non-accredited provider
to plan and present CME activities in accordance with the mission of the accredited provider.
Co-Providership- A relationship between two accredited CME providers to plan and present
CME activities.

POLICY:

1.

2.

3.

The non-accredited organization should have as its primary interest the dissemination of health
care information or the findings of medical research.

The non-accredited organization agrees to follow all procedures outlined by Tri-City Medical
Staff, and contained in the CME Policy Manual.

The Course Director should be a physician with an affiliation in the non-accredited organization.
The program pianning request should be received at least six (6) months before the scheduled
date of the activity. Timing for the activity should not conflict with other CME activities
sponsored by Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC).

Tri-City Medical Center CME planning forms are to be completed and submitted as part of the
course file.

All promotional material shall follow Tri-City Medical Center's CME policies, and be submitted
for approval to the CME Coordinator before being distributed. Appropriate accreditation
statements will be used, and all materials must indicate joint sponsorship with Tri-City Medical
Center CME as the accredited sponsor.

A course coordinator should be designated by the non-accredited organization to manage the
administrative details.

All potential joint/co-providership rejationships will be examined on their individual merits.
Although all CME activities joint/co-providership with Tri-City Medical Center CME must comply
with this policy, Tri-City Medical Center CME reserves the right to refuse to enter into a joint/co-
providership agreement for any reason whatsoever, regardless of that organization’s willingness
to comply with this policy.

The responsibilities and role of the joint/co-provider will be clearly delineated in a letter of
agreement between the joint/co-provider and Tri-city Medical Center CME. Tri-City Medical



Medicai Staff Continuing Medical Education {CME)
Joint Providership/Co-Providership

Page 2 of 2

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Center CME has the right to withdraw from any activity if the joint/co-provider fails to meet its
obligations as described in the letter of agreement, or fails to comply with Tri-City Medical
Center CME policies and procedures.

Tri-City Medical Center CME will charge fees for its services. These fees and the terms for its
payment will be mutually agreed upon and delineated in the aforementioned letter of agreement
between Tri-City Medical Center CME and the joint/co-provider.

All commercial support for Joint/co-provider activities shall be obtained as unrestricted grants,
and all aspects of commercial support should be disclosed prior to approval of the activity. The
CME Coordinator acting in behalf of the CME Committee will administer commercial support.
Joint provider activities shall be consistent with Tri-City Medical Center's CME Mission
Statement.

Tri-City Medical Center, through its CME Committee, shall participate in the planning and
implementation of these activities. A representative from the non-accredited entity should
attend the CME Committee meeting to discuss progress.

All activity expenses are the responsibility of the organization seeking joint providership
Evidence of a proposed neutral budget is to be completed before expenses are incurred. Tri-
City Medical Center will withdraw from an activity if resources are inadequate for the
development of a high quality educational product or activity.

Attendance information should be submitted to the CME Coordinator within two (2) weeks of the
activity, in order to provide timely distribution of CME certificates.

The proposed CME activity cannot be advertised prior to CME Committee approval and the
designation of CME credit.

D. RELATED DOCUMENT({S):

1.

Wiritten Agreement for Joint Providership.



(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

MEDICAL STAFF
CONTINUING MEDICAL EDUCATION (CME)

ISSUE DATE:

04/09 SUBJECT: Regularly Scheduled Series (RSS)

REVISION DATE:  12/09, 11/12, 09/14, 08/18, 03/19  POLICY NUMBER: 8710-606

03/20, 04/21, 12/22

Medical Staff Department Approval: 0H2212/23
CME Committee Approval: 10/2201/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: $42202/24
Administration Approval: 12/2203/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 12/22

A PURPOSE:

1.

To outline criteria and process for approving and evaluating outcomes for Regularly Scheduled
Series (RSS).

B. DEFINITION(S): A regularly scheduled Series (RSS) is planned to have:

oM =

A series with multiple sessions.

The series occurs on an ongoing basis (offered weekly, monthly, or quarterly).

The series is planned by and presented to the accredited organization’s professional staff.
The series are only offered as directly-sponsored activities to the accredited organization’s
professional staff.

C. POLICY:

1.

2.

RSS conferences such as cancer conferences and cardiovascular conferences are approved on
the basis of common needs and goals for each session for a one-year period.

Initial RSS Request: Required documentation to be provided to the Continuing Medical
Education {CME) Committee at least 60 days before the first session is scheduled:

a. Request for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit(s)™

b. Planner and Faculty disclosure forms.

Continuing RSS: For regularly scheduled series conferences currently taking place with
Category 1 credit, the planner shall submit on an annual basis to the CME Coordinator the
Annual Evaluation and Outcomes form and a new Request for AMA PRA Category 1 Credit(s)™
and Faculty Disclosure form(s). A 60-day time frame for CME Committee review is encouraged.
Conference Planner: The conference planner is responsible for providing the following
documentation to the CME Coordinator within 30 days of the session date:

Session Case Selection & Outcomes form.

Completed evaluation forms.

Evaluation summary.

CME Reporting Form.

Attendance roster.

Case summaries {if applicable).

Copy of promotion materials (flyer).

Regularly scheduled series conferences must be at least 50 minutes in length for one (1)
category 1 credit.

@*panow

D. EVALUATION - IMPROVEMENT:




Medical Staff Continuing Medical Education {CME)
Regularly Scheduled Series (RSS)
Page 2 of 2

1. Learners will complete an annual RSS Learner Evaluation form. Results will be summarized
and provided to the CME Committee.

E. REFERENCE(S):

1. Accreditation Criteria and Policies for Continuing Medical Education (CME) * with annual report.



3@> #0323V mivIe GIINVAQY

R EpaN Q- &)

13103 [edIPAN AL

EVC0C dH3dN

SIUDAD ISIDAPR pub
SLOLID PAR[AI-LONTEIPIW d[qriudadtd
JO UONINPIL DL TN ISN UOHEDIPIU

AA1D3) 2 pur djes djowoad o st (ue]

LAY TR UOHUDADE] PUR UOHINPIY
T0LE] BOneIIPaN o1 Jo asodmd oy




‘Pasn pue paio}UOW ‘paldisSIuiwpe ‘panguisip ‘palols ‘pasuadsip

‘papunodwol ‘pasn aunlepPuawou pue padexped ‘pajeqe| a4 s3onpoad ‘pPIIeIUNWILIOD 348 Si3pJo uondulsaid ‘paquasaad

91B SUONEJIPIW YIIYM Uj Seale [|e 0] Sulelad ueld dY3IA 2yl sluanedine pue syuanedur yioq Suipnppul ‘Aljoe) ayl Jo ainsuadi)
331 Japun 10 A}||128) Yl UIym 312 BUlAI9224 sJualled |je 01 9|qedijdde S| uejd HONUIABIG PUB UDIDNPaY J0J13 UOEIIPAA 24
:adoog

‘o2 JusWaAoIdwl
aouewload pue Al9 es UCIIEIIPAW FYT JOHUOW PUB 13341P 0} $231IIWWO0I pue swedl Aleu|jddsipi}nw JO JUSWIAJOAU] e
S3SSIWL JRAU PUPR SI0LID UOKEPIW 2ININY JO POOYIIDYH 2Y) 2Z)Wuiw 0] sa8ueyd walsAs Sunuawadw] e
!SIUDAI SSIW JESU ‘pUB
$10.442 uonedpaw szAjeue pue Ajauapl 01 e1ep (|dvD) wawaacsdw; asuewsopad pue adueinsse AJjenb apim-uoyieziuedio Buisn e
uswanjoau) Aseuldidsipiinw y8nolys s10019 uoniedpaw Suljeuiwn|a pue 3uipueisiapun o3 yoeoudde  swaisAs, e Suizin e
'SIUIAD
SSIW Je3U pue 510443 uoleaipaw Suipodas pue SulAynuapl 10y aunynd aaund-uou 3jgejunodde ue BupPeiquwa pue 3ulleal) e

'sapnpul (ueld dY3IN) aylL

'SJ0J43 UOIIEIIPAW 3INPAJ Pue JU3Ad A[2AI1D3443 01 SUOIIDE 3AI1IALI0D JO WUBWAO|IAIP
PUE UOIEN|RAD 3Y) U] SI3)EW UoISIIap Ad)|od SWIOJuU) JBY] 3IUIPIAS JUBAS|aS pue aAldalqo apirosd pjnoys ueld syl JO SSaURAIIBYS
93 ssasse 01 pasn ASojopoy1aw 3y *Ajjenuue pamalnal sl UB|d UOJIUBAI4 PUB UOIINP3Y JOLI] UOIIEIIPIA 241 JO SSAUDAINIDYD 3y

‘SSAUDAINIDYD 1O} pISSISSE
aJe uejd 3yl 01 suoiIedyIpOK "$9553930.d JUsWAseurw Kysi pue ‘Juawanosdwi duewlo3d pue Juswadeuew Ayenb ‘yels ‘sjuaijed
0 spasu 3uidueyd ay) J0 UOIIBIBPISUOD U) sIseq SuloBuo ue uo palepdn S| UE|d UOIIUBASIG PUB UOIIDNPAY JOIT UCIBIIPIA 241

2SN UoMIEdIP3W PUB 3UoJIUOW ‘UOIIEINPA (UOIIBAISIUILIPE UoINGLIISIP

‘Bussuadsip ‘Buipunodwos ‘a:niepuawou pue 3uieyded ‘Suijage) 1onpoud ‘uoeIUNWWOD J19pIo uondursasd ‘Buiquisald ‘ssasoud
JuaWaFeuew UoljeIIpaw ay) JO SWIISAS Pue saunNPadoJd 3J0D 3YJ UO SNJ04 $531)LIIS LOIIUBABLd PUB UOIIINPAY JOLIT UOIIEIIP3N
"SIUDAD DSIDAPE pUE SI0.ID PILE|AJ-UONeIIPaW 3)qeluarald Jo uonanpal ayl YySnouyl asn uoedIpIw A

pue ajes ajowoud 03 S) (Ue|d dYIIN) Ue|d JUBWIN0IdW| 3JUBWIOIBY UOIIUAARIG PUB UOIIONPaY 4043 LO11eIIP3A 2Y] 4o asodsnd ay |
:MIINIBAQ pue 3sodind ueld

S|eoq) @ ue|d €420z :ueld uononpay 10413 uocijedpsin
dajua) jedipaiy ANo-1 L



[l |

"wasAs aued Yy jeay 3yl yanouyl izjsuen Jo spouiad I|ges3uina
1€ Jo suone|ndod jusned ys1i-ySiy 01 passisiiwpe pue psqlidsaid suonedipaw 13|e-ySiy YIM SI0442 JO )S1 3YI 3INpay e

‘uonanpal
10413 uoledIpawl 104 sa1dalells Iledosdde Juawa|dw pue Juawaaodwi SUIpasu SeaJe AJIJUdp! O} BIEP 3ZAjBUe pue 13|00 ©
"AJl|euoIIduNy UO JJelS I1BINPI pue sue
A13jes uoEJIPaW 40} SPJEPUE)S 135 “salll|euolidouny Suiuodal pue sanljigedes walsAs jo wnipuadwod alep-01-dn ue ulelulely  ©
"S10J42 UOIIEIIPDW JO YS1I 3Y] 9aNpaa 01 ABOJOUYDI3] I2I|13N pUe SIBN|BAT o

{"uoLI2}11D B SB SJ104J2 JO 22usaId 1o 2oUIsqe
8yl 9pnjoul 10U 0Q) "SUOIIEN|EAD duERWIORd pue 32ua1adwod 99A0|dwa JO uolIEN|BAS U| S3aUa) Alajes Juaned ajesodioduy ©
'$10113 03 3INQIIIU0I ABW 1O 3AeY
18Y3 53.npPad0oud pue swalsAs JO UCIIEN|BAS U ISISSE 0] SISAjRUY 103)43 APON 2.4N|ie4 pue SISAjeuy asned) 100y Ul JJels IA[0AU| ¢
'$10443 01 Butpuodsad JO) JUBWUOIIAUD 33.)-3We|q e ysi|gels] ©
'$$3204d JusWSSeUBW UOIIEIIPIW S Ul PBAJOAUIL JJBIS 0) UOIIBWLIOU| SIBUILIASSIP PUE L3y A12fDS UONIDIIPIN JINSI MIIASY
'sanss| Alajes juaied/uonedipaw In0ge Yoeqpad) 44e1s AUI]IUOL Uielqo 0} spoylaw dojpaaq  ©
‘swesdosd |euOIRINPS pUe SITNII|SMBU Jjels
Ul s3|dwexa 31345U03 Yum pue swial dynads ul Aages uoedIpaw 0] IWBWHILWO) S,uoieziueSio 3yl S1E2UNWWOI AISPIM
"SYSLI
A1ajes uoljeaipaw jenyoe o jenualod Jodal 01 els saFesnodua eyl ssadold Buipiodar anijiund-uou ajgeunodde ue aziseydwy e

'$3559204d Uolje3IpaW anosdwi 0} sa1UNlIoddo [euOlIpPE AJIJUSP) 0} BIEP IY) 95 'S9553204d JUdwWssasse
Adualadwod pue suonuaalaul Adeweyd ‘UoNEI DU (YYIN) SPIOISY UOIIBIISIUILUPY UOIIBJIP3IA ‘S1uaAa 13851 pue
acueljiaains 1a3ndwod YSnoayl $3sSIW JBIU PUE 51013 UonEJIPaW Bulinided AQ UO112313P JOLIS IJUBLHUD 0] SPOYIaW jedI) ©
‘sagueyd Alessadau alelljioey pue ‘WlsAs Y3 3aoidwl 01 SUOIIEPUBWIWIOD L
Iyew ‘sasned paseq-walsAs SulAyuap: ul ajedidiued ‘S10112 UOIEDIPAW 140d3J 0] JJe1S 8RINOJUD O) WISAS B Ys)|qelsy  ©
'stseq JejndaJ e uo Je1s JUsLI0-3Y "SIUIAS UonedIpaw Builiodal 10y $355900.d UO JJB1S 1BINPS PUE JULQ
'SIUBA pale|aJ uonedipaw Sundesl pue ejep Sulinides 10) $a13o|0poylaw pue 5|00} Suiliodal dul-Uo JO SSUIIBME SIUeyu]
‘Builiodaa anjjoe soueyua pue 3uiiodal au|-uo Ijenjead
‘Alajes uoljedipall aaosdwi O] UDIIBULIOU] JO 3SN PUB e3ep JO SisA|eue pue Suiliedal ‘UoI3d31ap JoLd aroidw)
RETVIRETLTy)

S|eo9) @ ue|d €207 -ue]jd uononpay 40443 uoljedipapn
18yuag |eaipay Ano-ul



[l

's3udiied 0} S 3INP3AI pue I3UIIINIAI JUIARd 01 paBueyd ale swalsAs pue saunpadoud 10 paysiqeisa

3JB $3I1A135 PUB SUOIIIUNS ‘Sassadoad pue pazAjeue sue siouu3 “Aluoud ysiy e s| 510449 uonedpaw Jupnpal pue Sunusiaid

‘jje1s jje Aq Suiliodas pue uoieIYIIUAP] 10412 UOIIEIP3aW a8ean0dua AjaAINDE SI3PE3| [BHASOH "SALIAIIE UOIIINPaL pue uonuasaid
1013 BuloBuo suoddns pue Ayages Juaned saziseydwua Jey) JuaWUoIIAUR Ue Bujuleluiew 0} pajliuuwod st diysiapes| |endsoy
:uoneziuedio

18I929Y) Alajes uonedIpaw  ©
sjuawssasse uoljesedasd Aaaing  ©
sisAjeue ded pue $|00) JUSWISSaSSE-}|9g  ©
:3pnpug Aew saunseaw duendwo) spaepuels
uo|1enpaJidde pue [euoissajold Ag paziugodal saiSaiens Alajes Juawadeuew uoneIPaW Yyim asueldwod SNONUIUOI JINSU3

‘DUBLLIOLD SWIISAS YIEAH 10} 3INIIISU| BIUIOJI|ED PUB SLIB|Y JU3AT
J2UIUAS UOISSILIWIOD JUIO[ ‘dIANIS] SB Yans suoneziuedio paziu8o2aJ A||BUOIIeU WO SUollepuawwodal adnoead ajes Juawsjdw|

"SUOIIEdIpaW M3 |e-ySiy pauyap o4 Y2342 3|gnop uapuadapul ‘2A1HUS0 € Joj $59204d JUIISISUOD B YSIiGRIST
"NDI pue sauelpad
se yons suoliejndod juaied ysu-ySiy ul pasn SUOHEIIPIW PUE SUOIIEJIPALW 13| Y3IYy JO SUOIRIUIIV0D Srup 2ZIpIEpuUelS w
‘aleydoudde se ‘suoiesipaw 143je-y3i JO AsN Y] J0J 5195 JIPJO PIBPURIS YSI|qRIST =
‘SUOIEPUSWIWOI3) J213aead 3jes ajeu
pug |exdsoy 3yl ul SUOIIe3IPaW 31|B-PUNDS/2)I|B-}00] pue suolledipaw Laje-ydiy 40 3sn ajes pue 3gesols ayl aljenjea
'S9S0P J1X0) A||eI13UD)0d 0] JJBIS LIdje
A|le21u0J133|2 01 WBISAS AU 130 Y3 01Ul WSY] J3IUS PUE SUCIIEIPaW HBje-ySIyY J0) S3S0P 3JBS WNWIXEW Ys)|qeisy e
:s401831pul SUIMO|j04 3yl apniaul 01 (Adelayiowayd pue duilelpad
"3 3) suonedipaw 13|e-ydiy Suialadal syuaned pue siuaized ysu-ydly Jog s3ssad04d Juawsdeuew UoedIpaW 31enjeAl  ©

S|eos) R uejd £vzZ0Z ‘uejd uonionpay Jodigj uoijedipa
19)ud [evdipay ANo-1L



S3NIIGEIBUINA W315AS AJQUap! 01 s110das 10112 UONEIIPAW JO SISAjeuy e

SUQIIeN|BA] S UCNEJIPAN e

SIAPNIS YINL

SAIPNIS |dYD e

ssed uOI1EJIPBW JO UDIIBAIRSAD e

{7012 ‘s}9|Y VA4 M3V ST 8'9) S13je [eUIIXD JO UOIIBNIEAT e

101 PAHWI| 10U 2JE NG 2PNPUI ABW 510142 UOIIEIPAW 0} 2INQIIIU0I PINOD Y2IYm $310U311Yap

10 SSauyeam Afuapl 01 SWR1SAS 10 sainpadosd JuawsaSeuew UOIIEJIPIW USAS|3 3Y) 4O YIB3 31en|eAd 0] pasn ABojopoylaly

‘ue|d dY3IN
3Y3 JO SS3UIAIIIIYD Y} SSISSE 0} PUB SANSSI AJaJes UOIIBIIPAL SSIIPPE 0) ‘Papaau SE SAUEPUNOQ |eluawledaplalul ssodde Supiom

‘1Je1s |edsoy pue ‘yeis |edipaw ‘diysiapes| jjels jedlpaw pue [eydsoy 3yl Yum A|3AieI0qe]j0D SHI0M wea ] A13jeS uoledIpaiAl 3yl

‘SWIAISAS pue saInpanold/ sassadoad JuawaSeuew uoneEIIPaW JO JUSWAADIAWI
33} PUE SJOLI3 UCIIEIIP3W O UOKINPAJ PUE UoU3AId 3Y3 [3SN UCIIEIIPIW 3)eS JO UOISIACId 3Y) 'SPIEMO] UONEBZIUEBSIO BYI UIYIM
$J3Y10 123.41p pue 3pIng 01 51 3|04 §,33NIWWO/Wed) 3yl “ueld Y3 Jo 1ySissaao Atewud sapirosd wea] Alajes uotedipaly ayl

JUILISSISSY pue CO_HNHCUEU_QE_ uejld -~

(s)anneluasasdal Jeis [edipaly e

SAMAIDS BIRD JUDNBY dA

1uswadeue ysiy JO J0IBNQ  °

23UdIsa 10 SDIIAIDS JIBIS |EDIPIIA pue Juawadeuely A)END JO 102410 o
Adewlieyd Jo 103034Qq e

1S3PN|IUI WRSY 310D UBld dYIIN DY JO SISQWBN

'S10312a41(] jJo pieog |yl pue
291IWWO) 3AIINIAXT |eAIPRW ‘(uajeainbs uo) Puno) Ayajes Juained pue Ayjeny ‘9a11wwol) uoleaipa ayl ysnoayy |eaosdde s ue|d
dY3IW 943 ulpuswIwioDal 10} 3)qIsuodsad OS|E 51 Le3] 3J0J 3Y] 'Ue|d UOIIUIADIG PUE UOIIONPaY J0JI3 UCIIEDIPSIN 3Y) JO JUWdO|aA3p

404 9|qIsuodsal 1 2IWWOo)/Wed) A}ajes uonedIPa Y3 WOUY SIDGWAL ue|d dYIN 40 pasudwod dnoud Aseundsiplijnw v

uawdojaaag ueld -~

:uejd ay} Jo ssadoid

s|eos) R ue|d £+Z0Z :uejd uoljonpay Jo4i3 uoljedipap
J83ua) |edlpa AND-HL



"sjeuolssajoud yijeay paijje Jaylo pue guisinu ‘Adeweyd

10) sM3IA3J Adua1adwod [BnUUE pue Uo1IBIUSLIC SUIND WNNJLIND 3100 A13JES UCIIEJIPAW 3PNDUI [|IM UOIIRINP3 jEJIUID  »
‘uoljuaaald pue uoiINpal Jolla 404 sadueyd ssadoud

Ajlluapl 01 pue si0J4J42 uonedIpaw Jo Sulllodal pue UCIIEDIJIIUSP! JO) PAUIIP 3( [|IM SSIONS JO SAINSEIW PUR SIWOINO0 Paldadxy
‘sde8

AJlqusp 01 saznaeld uonedipaw 3jes paziudodal Ajjeuctieu o1 pasedwod pue a3ioeld JUHND AJIIUIPI 0) POMIIADL 3] ||IM SLLIISAG

‘SPaau AJuapt 01 pasn 3q ||IM JUIWISSISSe A13Jes UCHIEIIPIW [BNUUB UY

IDUIPIIUL AI23YY Budnpal Jo [eed 3yl YUm 510418 uoijedipaw Suijiodal pue BulAjuapl yum

151558 01 pasn aq ||Im ASojopoylaw JUIMO||0) aY] "IAIIRINIUI Ul dHIIN 343 Joddns 01 pal1easd 24 Swn|nNd1LIND 3402 J14193ds Aljul

ISSIUDIEMY PUE UOIEINPT

$9553304d MO|PIOM AQ Pasned S104J3 pUe ‘10 SJ104J19 |B1ua10d 01 A|9AI1I3YS pue Ajpides puodsay  »

swa3sAs Aojouy2a Jo jennualed uoionpal pue uoUaAaLd Joa uoledIpaW BZIWNGD .

suo|lepuUAWWOd3l 3xdeld ajes asn uopedipaw Juawaldwy e

‘ue|d 2y sacudw) 01 ‘papazu uaym snipe pue uejd BunsIxa 3yl JO SSBUIAIITYD SYI MIIAIY o

‘sayoeosdde ABojouyral-uou pue Adojouyday

y3oqg apn)oul s3|8a1ea1s "paynuapl ale sai3ajens uonejuawa|duwi JUel NS pue palen|eaa ale sa18alens Juawaaosdwi ‘Ajlenuuy

:s913aiea1s voneuawsapdw| -
'$2133]1..1S JUBWBA0IAWI BUNINJ PUB JUILIND 410G SPNJDUI 0 P3YIIUIP! 248 S3INPadocud pue suwa)sAs asn uolIledIpajy

‘ajensdoadde se suoleziuedio/suonedlgnd Jaylo

pue uoISSILWOD JUI0f 3Y) ‘(dHSY) SiSIDeWIRYd WISAS Yl[eaH JO A121205 uediawy ‘(dINSH S93110B.14 UDREDIPSA 3)€S JO) 3INHISU|
‘(INOI) audIpawy Jo 8IN1ISU| Y1 WOo4 suonelignd sapn|dul ainjesall} ayl 'sa18a1eJls JUSWIAOIdWY S, UB|d UOIUIAII] PUBR UOIONPaY
10413 UOIIBIIP3A Y] JO UOISIASL pue m3iaaa BuloSuo pue Juawdo|aasp syl oy siseq SUI0SuUo ue UO PaMaIABL SI 2UNJRIY JUILIND)

:sa1dajens uawaaoidw) <

"Ajlenuue paysigelss sJe saluolid pue pawaojiad st uejd ayl JO SISA|BUR dyD =

"Ajlenuue 15e3| 1B 1ng ‘papal3u usym pamainal st Alljiqisea) apeaddn ASojouyda) .

SSUBAINSD 3dDUBYUD pUB J1EN|BAS 0} S93ueyd ssadoud/sadnoeld Jo suoneiuawadwi Sunsnipe pue Buojluoly
SISA|eUY 35NE) J100Y e

S|e0s) @ ue|d €207 :uejd uonoNpPay J0iig uonedipsy
1399 |edpay A)o-1)



'$10%2341Q
JO pieOg 31 pUB ISNIWWIO) JAIRNISXT |BIIPIN Y] ‘|1Uno) A1ajes Juaned pue Alend ayl ‘(1'8d) 99131HWwo) uonexpaiy ayl
0} payiodala aq ||im pue (1us|eainba J0) INWWOo)/wea ) Alajes UoIIENPIN YL JO UoIRIUNY B 3] j|IM did JHIW BY1 JO M3IA3I |BNUUY

"3SN UOIJBIIPaW [|RJBAO pUE $|00) Sul/oHUOW ‘UOIIEINPS JJelS pue Jualied ‘uoljesssiuiwpe
‘uoiangusip ‘Suisuadsip ‘Buipunodwod ‘ainjepuawou ‘Sutdeyded ‘Suage| ‘uonelunwwod JapJio uondudsald Buiquasaad
JO M3JARJ DAISUBYDIAWOI B ‘03 PaYILI| B J0U ING ‘BPNIPUL [IM did dYIN 3Y3 JO SSFUDAINIALD Y] JO JUSWSSISSE |BNUUE 3Y|

"M3IASS [EnuUe Ue Sulnp passalppe 3g J0u ||IM Sanss| duewlopad [enpialpu] luawanoidun

1oy seiunuoddo paiejas walsAs pue 24npadosd UO SNJ0j PUE ‘SIIDUSIIIYBP PUR SSBUNESM ‘BJED |BIIUI|I JO SPUIL] pue sulaned

JO M3IADL 3ANI2US0413J PUB JUSLINDUOI YIOQ JO ISISUOI [|IM SISA|BUER 3Y| 'SS0J13 PAIE|3) UCIIEIIP3AW 3INP3J 01 S10Y3 SNI0) 01 Ppapasu
se payipow pue Ajjenuue pamalnal st (did dHIN) Ueld 1UaWwaAoIdw) 3dUBWI0LIBd UOIIUBARIJ PUB UONINP3Y J0113 UOIIEdIPAA By
:MIIAIY |ENUUY

"pazi|iIn S| SEale |euolIduUNy pajdaye
01 UOIIBIIUNWLICS 193JIP PUE SOWAW pasndo) ‘Ajayes Jualjed uo yoedw) 330/paliil U 3ABY SUCIIEPUILIWIOIAL JO SBuIpUl) §| o
'ss2J804d $,d1d dYIW JO HelS 2Jed Juaned alepdn 0) s19133|smau ApJapenb saysignd weat A19jes uonedipay Ayl o
‘syuawedap jeuonauny s AYjoe) ayl wouy diysiapes)
JO pasudwod aJe yaym ‘[12uno) A1a4ES JUBIIE4 PUB AJl|enD ay3 03 s8ulpuly ) sjuasald osje wea| Alajes UOIEJIPIIN Ayl
2311WLIOYD) 2A1NIAXT |EJIPAIA Y]} 0] syodau aAleluasasdal sy yanoay)
YIIYM ‘9311IWILIOT) UOIIEJIPSIA 341 01 PRliodal 1y dJe wea] AJajes uoiedIPaW Yl WoJj SUCIIEPUAWWOIAI pue sSuipuly e

:Suipoday

‘232 ‘suodad ejep (AING) UOHEIJLIDA
uolle3Ipal apoaieg ‘spoday (HQy) duige) Suisuadsiq pajewoiny ‘uonezi|iin Snup 18881 3 8) soueaains pazuandwo) e
{suoienjea3 asn uonReIIPIW "3°3) SHUPNE PUR SMIIAIL LIBYD JUDIINJUOY) e
V Wnpudppy 995 *(53131]1q11edWOdU) pUBR UOIIIE3S SNJP ISISAPE ‘SASSIW JBAU ‘SI0.I3 UOIIEIIPUL) MBIASI JUBAD Srup ISIGAPY e
:PpNPUI ABW YIIYM $32UN0S Blep 3|dilNw JOJUOW ||IM Wwead) A13)es uonedipaw ayL
:Bunojiuop

'$19119|SMAL BVJJLIWOY) UOIIEIIPAIA PUB SUOEIU3SAId 331HWWoD ela $sa530ad ue|d dYIIN JO PULIOJUI 3G [IM JJE1S jedipawl 3y e
s|eon) B ueld £HZ0Z -uejd uonINpay Jolig uonedlpay
133uad9 |edipay ANo-ul



L

‘saidesayl sresdnp 404

}I9ay3 oy suedisAyd pue ‘sasinu
Suipuiwial pue siapao ajesdnp
BuiApae)d sispewdeyd (-39
‘S1apJ0 Ysnj) 3uljes Nud ‘9sh jo
JIPL0 1O SUOIIINIISUL INOYIIM
sajeds ujed awes ayl YIm spaw

se AlJg|naed ‘sypne Leys uo
sajdesay) aredndnp jeuoiseIdro
puy 03 Suihunuo) Hzoz/10
supne yeys

| 30 synsaJ 3uipuad (£70Z/20
‘31EN|EAS 0] BNUIIUOT)

‘apew Julaq syudwasoiduwy)
indul QW J341NY YUM 8TOZ/T0
"3n0 |jod uoneziwnido gw

941 Jo Wed ag | SIUL (L TOZ/LO
‘spaw

alenjdnp Joy manal Jadosd

UG [2A3] HEBIS PRI 18 U0ISSNISIp
9 0} SaNUIU0) L TOT/v0
"Adesay| seadng anz g :[eoS
‘uonenjeas asnoesd jeuoissajyosd
duioBuo ayy yjo ped se siapio
21e2//dnp 3pn|oul 01 papiaap sey
Ajeny (ledpawy Juawaacidun
I UDBY Sey Yy
s31e21pu) sispewseyd woly
SNSUDSUOD |B42USD :9T0Z/90

ujed ~3-3) siapso (Nud) papaau |

ABojouysa)
uolIewWIO)U)
suoday
Adewieyd
suoday (1dvD)
Juawaaosdw)
Fiuewiopad
2 DUBINSSY
Ayjenp
adue||IdAIng

supne |
1eyd [BnUBW 3Wnsay (£Z0Z/Z0
‘Yuow Jad speyd

OF pue OE Usamlaq aFesaae |

ue Sulipny 1PNy [ENUEN

‘papasu
Ju3Wdo|3Aap 32INas eje(
BuioBup

A8ojouyday
uoEWLIOU|
Heis Susinn
Aoiendsy
HEIS [eApa
yeis
Axeweyd

1202 |udy 2n1-09

HJIOM AJunwiwo) Jawa) |
uonepaw

aeddnp jo suate
Bulaa29) ase s19apIAOId
‘uoneluswadw 1auws)
s1apinoid

10 Juuiesiads ajqissod
saidajens

yuawaaoudus pue sasned
1BN|BAT 0} 'S |EJIPIN
30 121y yum uonauniuod
ul Buiyom pue

sJopJo aeddnp Supyaed]

2202/s0
1202/t0
ozoz/11
6T0Z/T1
6102/£0
9102/90
S10Z/80
£10Z/2T

s|eon) R ue|ld £¥Z07 -ue|d uoljonpay 10413 uoljedipsin
1ajuag jedlpay Ao-u |

o
UOCIIEIIJIDA s1ap1o
Japio uonelpsw
1s1eweyd aeydnp
Buunp J0 Jaquinu

MIIARI 3|10l a5e2.439(]




Ino 3jn1 01 wifyIode ue yum dn
3wo02 03 gel YMm Hiom o3 pue
duisanpy 03 uoeanpa apiaoad o)
UOUBAAIG UONIBJU| 1EZ0Z/80
*suoIsnjIuol jnjduiueaws

Aue yew o) udlisap Apnys

ayl ui sajqeriea 3uipunojuod
Auew ooy 03 anp papuadsns
3losd D -sonolgiue
WeIIe|-B13Q UOISNUI-PIpUaIXa
32afoud D Jo exep Buipuad
"3]e1S SUIBLdI 5|eIqOIIIWL | JUE
Jo @sn 21eudoaddy :£707/Z0
|eacsdde Suipuad -Juswaaldy
ad11Ie1d IAIIRIOGR||0D

1¥40 paieal (€z0Z/10

Jayuny ayenjeaa

01 paau ou os 3uiquiosald
s1eudosddeu) 4o saaueisul ou
SMOUYS JIAISIPWSI JO§ INN “SISBq
Alsauenb e uo sjeiqossiwiue

J0 3uisop jeuas ulyipny
‘SUQISIIALGD (Od O3 Al JO Jagwinuy
3uinoudw) :€z707/10-2202/90
passed pue Aaains

JL 03 dSY PaIuasald :2Z0Z/S0
s|eiqoiiwniue

jo Burtonuow seudosddy
s|elgossiwinue

30 Buisop ajendoiddy

Adesayy jeiqosawinue adusa
J0 Buiquasaud aeudosddy

suodau
Arewueyd

idv0D
usIluUaA3Id
uolIIBu|
s\vPIWwWO) ['8d

FVVHWILICD 4SSV

Seiptad suonedpul |euonippe
1o} 009-00% jo ones jeod
JIW/JNY PaAlIap-ueisaieg
asn o} josoloid Buisop
uAwoduea palepdn (€70Z/70
(s07) Aeas yo yidug

jendsoy aseasdap oy swelde|
-£13q UoISNJUI-pIPUIIXD
:323l0ud (j0) wawanoidun
Ayjenb pauswadw) zzoe/eT
"(LvdO) Adesayy

|BIGOIDNWINUY [BJ3IUBIEY
JuanedinQ ul JUaWaAjoAul
1siewseyd patenu) :zzoz/ ot
wesdoignue

£20Z-1Z0T 01 s3)e)s aseas;p
p3123)3s Jo} suawda) ondwa
paisajasd pappy :2202/L0
MIIA3I 0] mum_um:.:mnn

10} syiodas Aptep 3uisop |euau
pue Od 03 Al P231eal) 1ZZ0Z/90
SHIOM ANUNWIWOD

13u13) i sduodated
UONUBAIBIL) Is)deWIeyd dSY
pipay “NIMSapwal Jo {S3NIW)
SUONEN|EAD J5N UOIIEDIPW
Ayiuow pue Aderayy
[eBunyiue Jo {LOQ) Adesayy jo
shep 3unIesy pawueIs ;zzoz/so
swafeuew

QIADD 3PPV DINDL palepdn
‘TTOT/B0 ‘TTOT/L0 'T20C/20

s|eo9 B ue|d £4Z0Z :ueld
131udY |edipay A3io-1)L

uonensiuIwpy |

yes [espaiy |
(L)
ASojouyoay
uopewou|
AS1y
Aujenp
|oJ3uQ)
uo1U|
ABojoigosdiy
Adeuneyd

uonINpPay 40443 uoljesipap

saJnpadoud

UOI1ED)LIBA pUB Buuapio
pajuaw3ajdwi pue
6T-QIADD Jo) suawi8al
BRI PRYIIRSSIY
uaipung

|euas Ag pue uofeaipul Ag
Auisop apnjaui 03 Axjod
Buisop |euau pazepdn
sapijod

Bwisop apisooASouiwe
pue uAwodsues palepdn
Adasiaald

01 SWQ1 palepdn
wesdoignue 0Z0Z

uo siuade jeIqosdiwnue
10 asn 10} saunaping
PIPUIWIWLIOID) papPY

0202/v0

JrL

|043u0)
uo13I3|
(osw}
231J1WWo)
Aages
uonelpan
{dSv) weadoud
diyspiemals
jeiqoinuwnuy

diyspremals
{E1gOIILKUY




6

X —— e TN S

%56 SA %06 SA %8 :dWIpIzeyd)
| s VA $A 5dd1135 SA JNDL
i odalg

ues YA pue sejiunug sdduag

01 pasedwod Ajjigidassns
paanpai 01 anp Ajuo nNJ| pue

| Q1 01 PR121153J MOU SWIPIZEYID
pue wauadotaW (7Z0Z/TT
s|etgoJd)wiue

Pa3131153d Jo 3sn 3eudoiddy

Y0
UOIIURASIY
uo13aU|
331WwWo) 1784
320D 4SY

mide) mau Jo asn pajuawapdwi
qe| Adojo1qoini 1ZZ0T/TT
3w)pizeyas pue

wauadotalu Jo s3NW Ajyruow
Buiwiopad panels :zz0z/So
S|21QOJDIWIIUE PRIDLIISAI JO 3Sh
31 PaJ|0IIuU0d pUE paseasdaq
wea3 gl Ag pamaiaal Japlo
J€15 3S0P U0 0] S|eIoIIIWIUE
p312141532 Bunapao paywin

%e9

Sem £202 soquaidas o) Auenuef
wouy NI 1. saapiaoad

pue sueisAyd Ag asuaiaype
auyspingd |aJ :£70Z/TT

‘$HI0}3 5,U0NUBAIId

uo1)I3JU| pue uoneIUIWIdw)
dAO 12}e ¢ Jauend

£20¢ 104 synsau ulpuad
"sjuaned ysu-ydiy w |Q3-vH

J0 uouaAaud 03 3unpasoud
Axewnseyd {daQ) sixejAydoad
uRAwosueA |elQ pajudtud)
pue paroaddy :£202/01
{uo)r3||03 3l0jaq sinoy

tz 35ed ayy u) pajuawindop
$|0035 1218345 JO £ 2ARY

10U pIp oym sjuaned ‘uoidafoo
10035 JO SJINOY g UILIIM
saAleNe| paaladas Juaned
~3-8) Bunisay QD 104 Juas
sajdwes jooys aelidosddeuy

4els [ealpaly
(L)
Adojouyds)
ucleWIoU|
%siy

Aulenp
|03U0D
uolIaju)|
ABojoiqoaonn
Areuueyq

SuoRdo JUIWIEDI) PANL|
UMM S3GOIIW JUBISISA |
Jo a3uaieaasd Suiseany) |

0Z0¢/s0

dsv
MBIASY VeY)

sjelqoianuiuy
pajoLisal
uiquosaag

‘Jeaoidde 3uipuad

-1 PUE (S|LN) suonlagu)
13e4) AJBULID 10) JUILIILI)
naidwd oy ssuiapind

ppe pue Adesays sudwa

1o} saulpapind euownaud
JINDL 33epdn :€20T/TT
*$3se1 |3)-YH payodal

a3y} 0} Joanquuod adie|

e se suopepuawwodas Jupsay
Fuimoijo} 10u pue Suisay
ajendosddeus paynpuap pue
Z JouenD £207 Sulinp sased
pazAjeuy ‘adesane [euoneu
ay3 saoqe (1g)-vH) 23uappu)
3|PUHP SIPIOIPLASOLD

pannbae-jeydsoy :gzoz/80 |
tereadde

S|eo9) B ue|d €207 -uejd uoilonpay 40413 uonedipsw

13jua) |eaipap ANo-ulL



0l

| UOI1B!|IDU033Y UoENPIN Ag 2oue)iBAIng FuioduQ |

JuisinN | dnouB Aueuydsipniny | 0Z02/L0 Aqupny | anoldw|

R, sl B e A SRR BT Tho Y, e Sl N T b S Ty "

| ‘paudis
Jcuo pIBYy WSem Suisog
ay3 sajejndod Ajjeannewojne
PI?Y Waam/iydiay painseaw
ay) 1eyy os ydiamfiysiay
Sunuawnaop 104 mopsom
ay3 w1 33ueyd jeqo|d e
pajuawaldw 12u433 :€20Z/0T m
(puy _
*INSS| SIY1 03U1 HOO| 01 3IN21YIP INQ I51) sl Juaned
0} Jaulad yum pased jaxa1) =HIPW ay3 vl sapuedasdsip
P12y ydiop Suisoqg ayy 0 1YSiam 104 SE] B SLY J3UIRD)} |
43A0 8u)55049 10U S1 IYT1om mau Asuedsuasip 981e| e 51 a1y}
Y3 Wham pasnseawt [enul 110 Y3y swaas yydam ay)
ay) wol) payepdn s1 yiam a3 Jasinu ay) yum s3ySam yosya
31343 Suipuiy ase syspewseyd 3|gnop sispeuneyd Sulaey ‘s3nip paseq-1ySiam
‘JANAMOY “13U4a) ol pue (swesSopy sa spunod) pay 30 asop ay3 Buiignop
panndul syydam 12321004 jo 1284402 ay3 Ui s3ySiam ndu) 1Sowje ‘B se paaud
saauejsul papodal oN (bZ0Z/T0 03 4e1s 3uisinu 01 uoyedINPa si spunod ur ySem
I Bam apiaoid 01 A1ajes pawy 1 su3aned ayl ‘vayo Jaulan
138.1100Ul JO s33UelsU) Suipuiy MBIA3] HeY) Ul 51UaAD BUIMIIABY (ZZ0Z/0T Buisany ‘13UJ37) u| paiajua duiaq ¥20Z/10 ut andui s3y3jem
II1s M3IABS LIBYD (E202/T0 sueday 1y Bui08up Adeuneyy 2. S1yd1am 19211000 zz0z/60 S Buisop Budip
UOI1B|EDS3 l
3P |EIGOIIIUIIUE JO 2B
Jaydy pue Adesayl aanaaya
0) WIS Uj UONINPDI SI 3J3Y1 S4NoY 7 Uiym soual aouelsisal
1235 0) eyep Buniemy (£20Z/20 pue swsiuedio Apyuspl djay
%66 01 {Q128) vonesyuuesp| 3Ny nd
SA %06 SA %68 ‘Wwauadosay pPoo|g Jieua anscudelp | uonReNSIUILPY

S|eon) B ue|d €7Z0Z :ueld Uononpay 1043 uoiedipapw
193uag [esipay AyD-u)



[l
aauel|dwo?) 3047 paseasau Adewueyqd Bu103uQ Suisiny | 1uswdojaasq 195 J8pJ0 | 6102 , T dNSI T 304D aa0adw)
"uoreUSWNIOp e l
uonoeas Adsaje 3nsp |
anosdwi djay 03 sueiauyday
eju) AJo1sly uonepaw
03 YIeqpaa) papiacld syuoadag yJuaned
*UOIJEIUSINIOP UONIEIS Y} 1BYM pUE paJU3WNIOP
Adsaje 8nap Juaned jo yoe| $1 3eym waa) Asuedasasip _
Buipuy |13s ‘JaAaMOH "ueISAyd e si 3J9y3 1 ueisiyd sy JUBWAo|aAIP Ul ) SIL) |
Y} 01 UOEIIUNLUWIOI H3je o3 1sewueyd ayl Apou ) @1e8usaaul 0] ]) "Auolsiy
PUE UOIIBINWLIO) 3334402 { Jo veisAyd 3uniwpe ay uonespaw suaned
J0 UOIIR[BS YIIMm Ajjeidadsa | uae 0y aue Ay} ‘suonedpaw ayy 03 sadueys ale
‘pasosdun ucnejuswnlop | sauaned e mainas suepduyIA 3J3Y) J JaWIaD) yBnouyy .
Aoysiy uonexnpay (€z0z/11 ayejul A103s1y uonedpaw poau|e Jou aJe suedisiyd
"UOHBHIDUOIBI l Y1 3u0jaq pI)PU0ID ‘Apusund £z0z/20
UOIeIPaW 131400u] | dle suopelpaw 33 § ey os adieysip
0} paie|as suodas Joda $s2304d QY3 pasiaaY £Z0Z/S0 pue uoissiwpe uvodn
_ paw BwAia334 115 1€Z0Z/TO ‘suonedpaw UOIEIIDU0IR UOIIEIIPAW
! ‘2Je3 jo aseyd Jo uoiysuen s,uaned e pa|ouodad ayy Suiwaopad
__" uodn pue papaau uaym ApeaJsje sey ueisiyd ayy uo J1e1s 3uisinu pajesnpl
Ajuo ssapincid Ag pauliopad Jaye pajepdn s1 Aoysiy pauwl ‘paleuIws
uaaq sey Ai0isiy uonedpawt a3yl uaym pue g3 ay3 jo INo 8J9Mm suoiyisod
0T0Z/L0 UBnoJyl 6TOT/LO W01 patiajsuels s Juaiied e alojaq s,u2131uYy23) Aseuneyd
‘lesp spodalqy | Aoisiy paw a191dwod 03 ajge Q3 Z 1o ST-PIACI YUM
$1 weidoud 3ied) Jo suciusues] uonel|uodal “ 10U 2J€ SYI21 U3aym o} ayejul adieyasip
553304d 31ENjEAS 0] BNUNUOD paw w Aioasiy uojeaipaws Joy ssanoud 0] UCISSILWIPE WO)
‘ojut uaad asop 1se| 3y ssIw jo doue|dwod | 33 3siAa1 0} paaN €Z0Z/Z0 s53204d uone||Puo3aJ |
U3lO 3M MOYS SHPNY L TOZ/L0 sapiaoad 1oy | 7202 pue A103s1y uoleIIp3W S044 den ssaopud
"PIPIIU SURIZIUYIIY AQ SUOP | MBIABI JRIS PAN 13QWaA0N 3A1-09 suoijsod ay jo Azesndae {9SdN) sileoo uoneluoPIY
10U UOI1RII2U033)4 UOIIEdIpaw L84 pue Axajes | ueIdIUYIaL Adewaeyd AJoIsiH 11 pue ssaujnySuiuesw Alajes Juaned pue AJ01SIH
“ UQ MalARJ Jayung (L TOZ/v0 UONBJIPIA 01 | UCNENPBN Z P31BAID 1ZZ0T/TT Hels [eaipay auyy Juinoadun ssaippe JeuoneN €20z uoedIPIN
St pamoys suodal pauodau pue |4 Arewdseyd | o1s3y3aBol Ind usaqg sey £20Z/T0 Hels [eaIpa N Jo Adeandoy

3 3

m_mom.u Q ue|d £vZ0Z Em.__m_ _._m_u.o._q__vum_. 10413

Iajua) jeaipay ANo-uy

uonesIpay




<l

0} paau Aejy "aduewlopad |
ueinsAyd jenpiaipul

10y AjaAndaye U az11n 0} a|ge
2q 031 Wodas ugsiydi aziwo3sn2
0} 3|qeun yeys paw ‘:£20Z/1t |
IS Ul sage)

3042 u05sy3n ay3 dunsodas
1els 03 Ipew uois1IFQ ‘SIapIo
Arewueyd-uou Auew u) Sulnd
os|e sem )1 pue uodal Zvg l

| 9yl wouy Sussiu 1M SIapIO |

PUBSNOL) [EJIBASS JBY3 PUnoy m
uodas 2yg 243 30 uondadsug "
4a3s0 uodn ‘58ues yw08-ydiy o3
-piw 3y} ul jeod ay) mojaq uaaq |
Sey ajed 304D Y1 ey) pamoys
uQsydn ‘eod ayy anoqe |
$3184 30dD PAMOYS Yalym
wvoda) Zya ay3 03 Ateajuo) *JBGUISAON JO 150W y3noay
(Zwa) 0°Z sanAleuy uiadsiq | suodal yomian 3wpeys saded pajelssasau l
Uy payedas asoyy snsIaA | UQSIYE Jausa) JUBPIIUL SWIUMOP PApUIIND !
uQsIy3r ul pouodal sajes | uoieuawajdw JWDL -910N €£20Z/TT |
30d) a3 uaamiaq Aduedasssip SEINIED) YO Heis |eapa
B SeM a13y) jey) punoj 150d suodaa 40 3NIWWO) UG
“YaomiaN UQSIY3N s3I a3 azAjeue |JIpn UoOnREIUBWNIOG BY) JY}ID 0} uollesnp3 yeis
0} ssadxe Jujued Jayy :£70Z/50 1218348 40 %06 | piemsoy 3unig 03 Juswancidun 21ey 2dueidwor 30dD
Suienjeas anunuo) 1e 3184 31 Jas§ 10y} sease pajasie) Aue auam 73N
7Z0T 1207 udy uo 13y} 1 PN 03 JSIAIL UL pue 1734 Aq panoudde
JO  Janenpd yEnouyy |eos anoqe | uoijejuawalduwl sapiacud fuepisAyd [enpiaipul pUE SauljEPINg JUBLIND)
ulewal sa3jes 304D (€20Z/10 w SHIOM | pue Ajedads Aq saied 30dD Jo uo paseq Ajaein3as
ANUNWWOo) | umopyeasq payoday (£20zZ/60 HEIS |eaIpay paiepdn $135 3P40 s3ed
aley suoday ozoz/et Azewdeyq 3042 J04 papaau £202/50 J3uel|dpiod

m__.mom.u 9 :m_n_ vaoN-"_..:m_n.__.pm_wwmuom_. 10143 :w_a.mu.__ww.-
13juag |edipay A)1D-u1



£l

IPLLIAD

ajeudouddeur jo aseasnzq

‘uoinguisip odaa Japioyaeq
Apjaam pue sa|ppny A3ajes
diysiapea| ul sjuaBIUNoUUe
yZnouyy pasosdu

ud3q SeY UONEIIUNLIWOI
Ajawn yng ‘@nssi

uE 3q 03 anuiuol sadeloys
#nap pue siapioxoeg :£202/7T
panrosdun

3 0] SPIJU UONEINUNWILIOD JBY)
p3jeardl pue Ae|ap lusawieal)

Ul p3nsal adeloys uaaind

jo a3pajmoun Jo y3e7 1€20Z/20
spunogdwod

3(1193S 404 GEOS Buisn

“0)a'suoday shleuy | 3|ppny | jesuyd e 01 uoRngHIsIp Lodas
Buiseyaing) sa2unosal §47 Suisn Areunieyd Japioroeq puedx3 (£z0z/Z0
sanleuIB) e ut Ajiep ssnasig ‘N1 01 papuedxa
snnadesayl Jo4 Bupjoo spodas J231e) ‘sueinisiyd g3 s04 |
Hels 8uisinu Iapioyleq | swodad japioyieq Snip Apjeam
PUE PAW YIM UDIIBIIUNWIIO)) Apj@am Auysiqnd pawels :zzoz/s0 4e1S [P JIam padeuew UONEJNUNWWOD
JaAng ayi yym UcREUINJOOD Hoday 020Z/2T Arewseyd pue palenunNWLWod £702/20 adeyuoys
paliuapi safeuioyg afewnoys 1’34 gui08up Juisiny | 3q o3 papasu saBenoys | 6T0Z/90 HdQD uoHEIPIN

3.l 3PIIBAC
Fuuonuow

IPLIBAQ UDIIEJIPIN PaMEIASY |  HEIS [ENPAN

Heis duisany

ENIVELY)
uonellpaw jo ales ydiy v

£20Z/11 L
6102/10 IS

sapldAQ
MmaAy

sanjeusd) e

pue ssdenoys Juaund

10 aieme s) JYeis Juisanu
1ey3 os Josipuadns asnoy
Buisinu a3 pue sJadeuew

“£70Z 29quianop 01 Joud saies
0} JBJIUIIS S3)BJ 304D (E207/2T

uodas zyq a3 Suipps Japisuod

S|eos) 9 ue|d €vZ0Z :ue|d uononpay 10413 uoijedps
iajua |eaipay A1o-ul



14

T Mau JO Juiues) 0y pare|al w=l i
Aja8ae| aue spuapu| 1ay2od
SiXAd 3yl Ul punoj uonespaw
Juoam 3y3 Jo syuapUl
'suepiIuYydd} Adeuweyd |esaaas paljiuap) :£zoz/0t
mau |[e jJo Sunien 3y "YI31-¥28Y2-4281 jO
oju| pajesodiodul ) Uoednpa peaisul uoiedyuaA 1sewseyd
ay3 1ey31 Junsua anuuod aainbau Im sucnelpaw
01 paau [jim Ing SIUIPIdU) v3je ydiy Jo s|jyaa sixAd
payodai Jayjo oN HZOZ/T0 ‘P31l St UONEIIPIW 31234403 3Y]
‘Bunojucw 1BY] SBIQ UOIIBULIJUOD INOYIIM
ANUIIUOD |[IM Ing pasuadsip Apuspuadapul AJlI3A 01 S5aUIM
suoljeslpaw 3uoim Jo S3JURISUY l e 198 p|noys suediuydal
payecdal Jayio ON (EZ0Z/T0 ‘aJnjiej ueds apolleq "Aj339.103u)
juawredap Asewueyd pue JO 2IURISUI BY) U] ‘SIXAd DY} pasuadsip suopedpaw
‘1'8d ‘S 01 s8ujpuyy palsoday aul(iy usym Suuueds apoaieq 40 $30URSUI 12O
‘uonENPAW Pay|li Aj33a4100U) 3zI11N sAem|e 03 SURIZIUYII) PaMmoyYs ZzZ0z Ul sioues .
ay) uipsedaJ (Y3IN4) sisA|euy Axewleyd 01 J9puILId) pue i pal JO SMIIADY 'SIXAd _ uol|1edipaw
517913 pue 3poy aunjiey uonEINPa PIPINCLd (ZZOT/TT .w 343 Ul paj|iy ucnepaw €20Z/01 _ dugum
| Bp31INpuo) 1gz0z/1T-7202/01 suodal 1y | 3uo3up | Axewueyq 3uoum paynuapl zzoz/o1 ISW | ay1 Buisuadsig |
$Z0Z/10 jo se Buspuad j)s 3p1LIBA0 UONELS UONEdIPIN |
| —Ppalolsal uIBg IABY SIDAIDS sixAd jessaaiun 3upeyssasau |
SIXAd J13Un pajeI}iu) W RUMOP JU3PIGUI JUNIUMOP PIPUIIXD _
33U)5 pacepd s19pIO MBU JWIL -210N :€20Z/1T | m
Aue 10} 9%00T JO 218J IPILIBAD suodal 3plusA0 Buimaiaal | |
adx3 ‘aswigumep i3un dn Jaus pawnsaJ sisiveuneyd (zz0z/80 |
|e03d ajes 3pLIBAD EZOZ/TT $I2pIC Q7 [|B MIIAD) |
umop o131sipewreyd Q3 Z padiH
puzsy 01 Jununuos pue [eod 0zZ0Z/S0 uo | |
Suneaw ayes 3pLIIAY (E€Z0T/TO 1'3d Ag panaidde uoisiaai 15e7
%> |20 1B 17202/20 151 pue Adijod HOVD |

S|eon) R ue|d £vZ07 :uejd uolonpay 10413 uonedipap
i9jua) |edlpay QD141



¢l

J3U0 J1EN|BAD O} P33U ||IM
X' T°ZTA 01 2pesddn
0} ssaudosd ul uonelpawal

o8esn
sllelpient %56<

M3U PapPY 1£20Z/10-2202/11
"}2s ejep ay} ajepdn o3 Joyp3
31INS S|I_JPJEND) JG) SUCISSIS

JUS-UO SUey
wouy sBuipuly 17z0Z/01
Suneaw

dwind sug|y "19s elep sjleJpieng }lewyouag 395 Buiuiesy dn 195 :2202/11 guisiny aa1wwol Ayages IS 28esn
MIU pasea|ay (€z0z/20 suodaly suepy 8uio8ug Aseuueyd UOHEJIP3N 18 PassnisI] zzoz/ot dINSI s|leJpienc
$3)BJ URIS AAIG I
10 Buiuodas pue 3upojiuow
*3WNUMOP Suunp sassazoad 503 JWNSIY HZ0Z/T0
(ensn u) uondnas|p 03 anp Ajaxy | ‘saanpadosd
‘sajed |eod mojaq o) paseanap | |ewuou jo uopdniiaju) 03 anp
SB1B4 UBIS ||BIDAQ (€TOZ/TT $ajes Ueds pasealdap Padxy |
Suiuueds apolieq uoiexpaw *sainpadtold awumop pue
pue juaned yyoq Joj %05 Sunueyd Jaded Jupeyssarau
1se3| 3 jo |eod 1ow a3 ‘£20Z/0T UIpPUL BWRUMOP ‘a3
Suiuuess papuaixa JNIL :£202/TT ul Ajjernadsa ‘Buiuueds jou
apodieq uonelpaw pue juaned sueas ANg Suipiedal 01 PRlejRJ 500443 uimoys [
Y10q 10} %56 35E3) 3E JO |eod Suisinu 33e3npa 01 Iseweyd 1IS S40143 uoNEIPaW
33t syun juanedu) :€Z0Z/S0 Q3 2anbas Ae £Z0Z/70 jo suoday 1y 1zzoz/1n |
1207 Wiod) paseasow | a3 w papinoJd 3q 03 uoIEINPD umop SuipuaJul sajel
3Aey sylun Juanedu Joy) salel JuisinN "sa1es Ang poday yioq Suimoys spoday
UBIS AING 2Z0Z "s3un Juanedu Apengal 01 s8unleaw Ayajes SHIOM, ANUNWWOD
| 10)18s %56< YRWYIUIG MO|5Y | uonenpapy pawnsay :zz0z/T1 Hels jeapay Suuueds (spa |
1BJ |15 SR124 AlNE Q3 (£202/T0 spodal 1y J4e1s Axewneyd Heis Buisany 2P0 JBQ UCIIEDIPIW pue juaned)
a1eJ Buiuueds suoday pue [eapaw Suisinu payeanp3 Hes pue syuaned 1o} BUIILD 720e/11 Suluuess M

3pOoJ Jeq UONEIPaW PaseEdId)

Arewuseyq

aunyesy 8 sixAd paziin

suoneapaw duyjy/2uipeo] 10y |

ainpas0.d 1adoud uo payeanpa
sueRIuYI} [enpIApY| |
‘suepuydal Asewneyd

Adxeuneyq

80.4 dea Bunjaaw JoN

Jajua |ealpay ANo-H1

0z0z/10

S|e0S R ue|d €420z :ueld Uononpay Joii3 uoijedipap

80u4 dea

apoj seg




91

[ o1 uonejusws|dwn Suiemy
‘leacsdde 440 Suiieme

‘1’84 passed ejjadw) Joy piny
adind a12u0qURIq WNIPOS "1 'Rd
ui panosdde |030304d 321A3Q
ejjadw| J0) ultedaH :€Z0Z/10

"YVIN Aep-t 33 Jo asn
| Ay yum paacaduw Ajedue| sayep
UOIIRISIVIWIPE UoIIe3Ipaw

J0 vonieudwWNIOop ‘(aded

AJaAa uo sainjeudis fsieniul
Juissiw F'3) uonla.400 papasu
uoNeIUIINIOP JO SIUIWI|D
awos YSnowly wZ0zZ/10

‘bzoz Aenuer
Ul %E£S S8 01 £20T Aenuer
u) %S0°€L WOd) paseatoul

sey adesn sjleJpiend :pZ0Z/10
p3121dwod uaaq sey apesddn

SIpny Hey)
suodas 1y

syupny
uey) sadeyd

3JEJ YOS Yy}Mm pUuE Ajlep a3uc |
1583} e swool sjuaned ayy
u s3eq upeday J1walsis pue
uonnjos adind uueday y33y2
0} s3sideweyd NDI :€TOT/TO
Buio8ugQ

"HYIN W RUMOop Aep-1noj mau
£ JNO [|04 03 UOIIEINPT YIUM
pajJom Aewseyd :gz0Z/TT

*syuodaJs adesn sjieapieng
sue)y AjJauenb Jo malaal

uo paseq }as elep sjieJpieny
paiepdn pasealay :£202/01
adesn s|iespiens) alen|eaaal
01 £70T AR U1 HI5IA 3115

pue uonexnpa (e dn 33s
M OYMm JUBYNSUOD BAIZNIBXI
SUB|Y Yum 13 ‘£70Z/10
Aseaqi| ay3 vl s3nip 3unsixa

uo sHW)| pasinas pue sEnip

HEIS |EApN
Suisiny
Adewseyq

sydep Agjaoue
st

yes jenpan
JuisinpN
Axeunleyqd

‘papiuapl

TEEL ETITEERILET
ejjadw) uo syuaned
1oy ueday Buipiedal
$J0JJ3 UCREDIPIN

-aged ...u.mo

uc s3jep uojessIuupe
ay} aam 03

303104 URYO SNY SE JUIAS
JWHRUMOP PIPUIIND

ue Jo} [enyoesd Jou sem
Y "sanoy may e duigse|
awnumop 10§ Ajuo |njasn
3q 03 punoy sem (Yy)
P40231 uojleIIS|LIUpE
uoiesNpaw
Jwumop Sunsixy

"pasiaal aq 031 papaau
SHWwI) 3yY3 1Y) pue Aseaq|
Snup ay3 wouy Buissiuu
saidesay}fsuoledpaw
|BJDABS S1aM 3J9Y) 1Y)
pamoys aanejussaldal

£20T/10

£20Z/11

S|eon R ue|d £4Z0Z :Ueld UOIINPAY 10117 UoleIIPIN
13)ua) [eslpap ANO-ul

JSW

ML

dINSI

a2nap eljadw)
10 uneday

Joy sainpasrpud
pajielap jo ypeq




Ll

adieyasip 1e yeys/suaned
0} pANQUISIP
S1) SUOXOJRU TZE =
auydiouasdng
| UMM PIIEAJ) SEM
| Juaned e asaym SIUNOIUD
jeudsoy/Q3 18T o
waweas
yyeay jeauaw dn-mojjo} 03
jela2424 Juaned pajeyjde;
NS 3y} 2J3aym S133UN0IUI
leydsoy/aQ3iyeT o
NNS 3yl AQ udas sem
3ned B 3Jaym SJ2UNOOUS
lendsoy/a@a zir e
'€T0Z ‘TE J9qwazeg ydnosyy
€207 Aey a1e) wy wesdoad
NNS 3yl Jo Juawiysijqelsa
ay3 LIS HT0Z/TO
PI3y sem Bunasw
231wwo) diyspiemals
plo1do 15114 1€£202/80/20

‘paodal sjuaAd

Jayuing oN ‘2uisop ulreday
uj sayeIsiw Joj |eisuajod
ay) paseasdap sey ejaduy
40} pinj 83and ajeuoqsedq
wnipos Jo asn :gZ0Z/Z1
AJED19 MIINDY

| pueuonanpuy auydiovasdng
_ J10) 5eIp 185 JAPIQ ‘€20Z/90
1V 3uipaedal

ucpelnpa apiacad /ssauaieme
IsIBJ PpUR $S22INOS3Y

Yum saapiaoad fsuepisAyd
pue sjuaned Pauuod

djay 01 (Nns) 101edinen

asq ajuelsqns padIK :€20Z/S0
‘uonejuawajdwi Juipusd
-Adesayy LY J0) soipe]
pews “1qQ Yum juawdaidy
a01ed SARIOYE]|0)

e paysiiqels3 :€20Z/€0
JapJosip

asn pioido yum syuaned

diay 03 wesdoud (1vIN)
WBWIBSLY PIISISSE-UOHEIIPIW
| e uipess o Aypqgissod
Supo|dxg "uoinsod JojeSiaeN
SUPNY JWBYD | IS 3JUBISQNS B }O UO|IE3I 3Y)
suoday | 4oy [eacudde Buipuad :£202/T0
Asewuseyd Suodup

sjuaiied ul pinyy aduind uueday
0] 2A1IBUIR)|E SB dleuog.edq
WNIpoS PIappy 's2led 12310
343 32 Bujuuna ale Aayj 1ey)
pue BuiBuey s) uolIEIIUBIUOY
8nJp 1924100 3Y3 1By} 3JNSUl
03 uleday J1wWR3sAs Jo 23ueyd

‘ulseday 03 juesajojul |

1l

Anjenp

HES {BIpalN
SuisanN
Axewueyd

“Ajlenuue pamaual

aq Aey "wesdoud
diyspJiemals projdo ue
Hels 01 SOHQ wouy uesd
10y jeacsdde paaaday

7Z0T/T1

L
adpug v2

(sDHQ) | Anunwwod by}
CERILVEL Ul Saijeuow |

2ie3yleay | pue sanipiqipw
jowawuedsg | paleas-ploido
BjulIo)eD | Joisquinu ydiH

S|eos) Q uejd €202 :uejd uolldonpay Jolly uones’psw
Jajua |esipsy Aj1o-1L




81

ssasoud Fupjrolsal
M3U J0 uoeluwjdw)
3uipuag :€202/21

) Uo Bupaom

11 'safaeys pue uonensiuiwpe
uonedpaw Juissiw

ppe 03 adleyasip-3sod piodal
YO puawe 03 3|geun :£20Z/10
‘uonesisiuiwpe

UOREJIPSW PAjulaWNIopun
pue ‘sadieyd yo passiw

315eM JH02JBU PAJUIWNIOPUN
Buipuy 19S5 :2202/21

.

*EZ0Z BUN( Ul pAajeIsuial
sem weaSosd uonnquisip
uoxojeu Iy} duLs

supny Jeyon
spoday
Adewseyd

paw yYim dn Mo||0} ||IMm Oym
dnosB ABojoisayisaue ay) wol)
aAneluasaldas ay) 01 Aen3al
pauodad aq ||Im uoRensiuLpe
uO(1E|PaW PIJUAWINI0pUN pue
‘3ISEM J110JJEBU PAIURWINIOPUN
‘safleyd YO passiy JoIIuod
Alouaaui/Al|Igelunodde pue
UONEIUIWNIOP J9113] SSNISIP
03 dnoud A3ojoisayisaue

Yl Woyy aaneuasatdal

YUM BN 1€202/20

‘Adejnuwiioy 3yl 03 3say)

Buippe uo yaom 01 || ‘pioIaYy
Adojoisayisauy ayi 03 pappe
3q J0uURI A9Y) 0s AiBpnuiiog
8nug ASojoisayisauy ayi ul

10U BJE SUOIIBIIPAW SWOS 1.yl
puna4 3uileyd uoneJIsiuIWpE
gnup 3wissiw pue

sadiey Yo Buissiw Buipsedal
1031eINPa YO pue Jsdeuew

N21 YUM I8N £20Z/T0
paseydand sueJ ejsayisauy
|leaosddy Buipuay

SuoBupn

wesdosd uonnquasip
auoxojeu ay) Juipeisal
o) dupjoo) NNS *I50

Ul p23uasaad azueuajulew

Ayjenp

1l

HEIS BRI
Axeuwleyq
Aojeioqge
Aeuow|nd
-olpie]
Busann
(WIH}
Juawaldeuey
uoneuLIoJut
HEIS [edpaN
SuisanN
Axeuneyd

Hoday uedrs uoy

SUE) eISaYISauy

10} |eacsddy Suipuad
sapuedaudsiq

PUE $S3PLUBAQ JO MIINIY

20T/TT
6T0Z/2T

S|eos) @ ue|d €207 ‘uejd UOHINPAY J0o4l]J uoijedlpaN
1ajua |edipajy Ano-u)1

s3@ays 3|3uiys

jonuo)
AJojuanu
JAujgeiunondy
MO 3 Ul

Josupny | ue) eisayisauy

LLELS]




6l {40 ‘womogagu

V wnpuappy

s10.113 uoymipay Hujzjsobain) 1oy xapuj JUIW DN

asealdUl 03 Sed
BISSYISOUE 3[1qOW J0) SAR)
uonespaw Jo uoneUIWI|dusy
ay) pue sJed eIsayisaue uj
sucnespaw Junols Jo pealsul
sixAd A1adung ujew ay) wosy
suonedpaw Junj201531 SSNISIP
03 diysi3peaj YO pue ysay
e1S8YIsaUR YUM 3N (EZ0Z/0T
"HEIs

S|eos) @ uej|d €202 ‘uejd uonionNpay .1oiig uoijedipsw
iajuag [edipay A319-141




Q
‘C‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

PULMONARY SERVICES
POLICY

ISSUE DATE: 08/97 SUBJECT: Pulmonary — Scope of Services

REVISION DATE(S): 08/97, 01/00, 09/03, 08/06, 09/08,
09/09, 11/11, 05/12, 09/17

Department Approval: 06/2001/24
Division of Pulmonary Approval: n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 142002/24
Administration Approval: 12/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 12/20

A OVERVIEW OF THE DEPARTMENT:

1 The department of Pulmonary Services provides diagnostic and therapeutic services to
inpatients, outpatients, and emergency department patients under the direction of a licensed
pulmonary physician. Services are provided to neonates, infants, adolescents, adult and geriatric
age groups. Service settings include all hospital areas. Pulmonary services provide a 24-hour/7
day service designed to meet the needs of our patients.

B. DIAGNOSTIC SERVICES INCLUDE:

1. Pulmonary function testing (outpatients scheduled 2 days/week: Tuesday & Thursday and
inpatients as ordered). If there is a need, more days will be opened to serve community and
patient needs.

Non-invasive oxygen assessment (Pulse Oximetry).
Home oxygen assessment.

Blood gas sampling and analysis.

Sleep screening (limited sleep screen— inpatients only).
Bronchoscopy.

CPAP set up and education

NooakowN

C. THERAPEUTIC SERVICES INCLUDE:
1 Patient pulmonary assessment.
2 Patient respiratory education.

3 Medical gas administration.

4 Aerosol therapy.

5. Hyperinflation therapy.

6. Pulmonary hygiene.

7 Airway maintenance and support.
8 Ventilatory support.

9. CPR.

10. COPD Discharge Education

D. PROVIDERS OF SERVICE:
1. All providers of respiratory therapy are appropriately oriented to the department and are licensed
as required by law. Respiratory Care Practitioners (RCPs) acquire additional training and
continuing education to ensure the proper care of patients. RCPs function under the direction of a
medical director who specializes in pulmonary medicine. The medical director acts in that role for




Pulmonary Services
Pulmonary — Scope
Page 2 of 2

oW

6.

of Services

two years as described in the medical center by-laws. RCPs also function under the direction of
an operations manager and director.

The pulmonary services department staff work in 12-hour shifts. The number of staff scheduled
each shift is based on the total workload calculated from the Respiratory Therapy Workload
Summary report. .

Qualified RCPs are available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Members of the pulmonary management services team include the following:

a. Pulmonary Operations Manager/Clinical Educator

The department of pulmonary services is composed of professional, technical, clerical, and
support staff in the following categories:

a. Director

b. Puimonary Operations manager /Clinical Educator /-Critical Care Specialist/Adult and
Neonatal Leads Registered/Certified pulmonary function technologists

Registered respiratory therapists (RRTs)

Certified respiratory therapists (CRTs)

Cardiopulmonary assistants (equipment technicians)

ob descriptions are on file for each of the above job categories.

®ao

e

E. EQUIPMENT:

1.

The pulmonary services department provides services utilizing medical equipment that is
maintained in proper operational condition per preventative maintenance schedules and
manufacturer's recommendations. Equipment inventory includes disposable and non-disposable
equipment.

F. STANDARDS AND PRACTICE GUIDELINES:

1.

Effective and efficient patient care is provided based on current standards of respiratory care and
practice. TCMC pulmonary services adheres to federal and state regulatory imperatives and
standards including the Respiratory Care Practice Act, Title 22, and Title 17, Center for Disease
Control (CDC) and OSHA, and JCAHO. Patients can expect care that is delivered in a manner
consistent with the American Association of Respiratory Care (AARC) Guidelines for Therapy
whereby patients are assessed so that individual needs are met. The patient is evaluated to
ensure that therapy is appropriate, indicated, and objectives clearly defined.

Patients and patient families can expect to be treated with dignity and respect (per “Patients’
Rights”} by the RCPs who also provide education and explanation of services for their customers.
In addition to the national guidelines, policies/procedures and protocols are based on expert
consensus, and community standards. Policies and procedures are reviewed and revised as
needed to accommodate new evidence, standards, and/or guidelines. Final versions are
communicated to the staff through email, staff meetings, and daily huddies on each shift.

All policies and procedures are posted online after submitting to house wide review and board
approval.



REHABILITATION SE

y Medica

@‘9 Tri-City Medical
Oceanside, Califor

RETIRE: NOT REQUIRED POLICY AND
NICU OT NO LONGER PART OF REHAB
DEPARTMENT; OT FUNCTIONS WITHIN
THEIR SCOPE OF PRACTICE

ISSUE DATE: 07/97

REVISION DATE(S). 07/98, 01/06, 01/09, 03/12

Rehabilitation Department Approval:

Perinatal Collaborative Practice Committee Approval:
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval:
Medical Executive Committee Approval:
Administration Approval:

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:

Board of Directors Approval:

SUBJECT: NICU Scope and Qualifications
POLICY NUMBER: 505

+44811/23

0444911723
nfa

02/11802/24

03/4903/24
n/a

03/19




Rehabilitation Services
NICU Scope and Quaiifications-Policy
Page 2 of 7




Renabiitation Senvices
MICU Scope ard QualificabionsFadey
Page 3 of 7




Rehabikiation Serdices
MICU Scope and Qualifications Fakey
Page 4 of 7




Rehabilitation Services
NICU Scope and Qualkfications-Pobkey
Page Sof 7

- raseordanse-with the American Physical Therapy Asseciation Nearatal
Physical Thorapy- Part4-Clinical Competencies and Neonatal latensive Care

Unit Chinical Training Models and Neonatal Physical Therapy. Partll: Practice

Practice Guidelines:




Rehabilitation Services
NICU Scope and Qualifications-Pohey
Page 6 of 7




Rehabilitation Services
NICU Scope and Qualifications-Pelicy
Page 7 of 7




£
(c‘) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES

SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 07/09 SUBJECT: Anesthesia Equipment
REVISION DATE(S): 01/13, 04/20
Surgical Services Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 02/2002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Administration Approval: 04/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for the cleaning and Preventative Maintenance (PM) of anesthesia
equipment located in Surgical Services and other departments in which anesthesia services are
provided (including, but not limited to, Emergency Department, Interventional Radiology, Cath
Lab and PACU).

B. DEFINITION(S)

1. Critical Equipment: Devices that enter sterile tissue or the vascular system; must be processed by
sterilization.

2. Semicritical Equipment: Devices or items that contact mucous membranes or non-intact skin;
must be processed by sterilization, or, at a minimum, high-level disinfection.

3. Noncritical Equipment: Devices or items that come into contact with only intact skin.
Intermediate-level or low-level disinfectants may be used to process noncritical items at the point
of use.

C. POLICY:
1. Anesthesia equipment shall be cleaned according to manufacturer’s instructions for use (IFU).

Cleaning procedures shall follow all perioperative and infection control policies and procedures

for Universal Precautions.

2. All disinfectants utilized to ciean anesthesia equipment shall be hospital approved.

3. Biomedical Engineering (Biomed) department is responsible for the PM and service of all
anesthesia equipment, per manufacturer's IFU. PM and service records are maintained in the
Biomed department.

4. Anesthesia machine safety:

a. Daily testing of anesthesia machines is performed by the anesthesia technician per
manufacturer's IFU. Documentation of anesthesia machine daily testing is performed by
the anesthesia technician and records are maintained in the Surgery Department for 3
years.

b. Gas Scavenger: All anesthesia waste gases are vented through the hospital vacuum
system that pumps exhaust to the atmosphere. Trace gas analysis is done on an annual
basis by a contract service as part of medical gas testing, per Building Engineering
department.

c. Pin Index:

i. All cylindered gases have specific pin connection system, to avoid interchanges.



Surgical Services - Surgery
Anesthesia Equipment
Page 2 of 2

fi

ii. The cylindered gases with PIN index system are Oxygen, Nitrous Oxide, and
Compressed Air.

Portable Cylinders:

i. Portable cylinders may be stored together, but never with flammable gases or
liquids.

ii. Do not allow oil, grease, or flammable materials to come into contact with oxygen
equipment, such as valves, regulators, fittings or gauges.

iil. Oxygen cylinders should not be draped with any combustible matenals.

iv. All cylinders must be adequately secured to protect against accidental falls.

Vaporizers:

i. Only the anesthesia technician or anesthesiologist is permitted to fill vaporizers.

ii. The vaporizer safety lock-out system is used.

Medical gas hoses and adapters are color-coded.

D PROCEDURE:

1 Cleaning of anesthesia equipment after each use:

a. Don appropriate personal protective equipment (PPE).

b. Discard trash, sharps, and linen into appropriate containers

c. Cover used criticat and semicritical reusable equipment for transport to the dirty utility
area. Reusable critical and semicritical anesthesia equipment includes, but is not limited
to: bronchoscopes, Glide Scope handles and Glide Scope stylets.

d. Clean and disinfect reusable noncritical equipment with a hospital-approved disinfectant
according to manufacturer’s instructions for use (IFU). Clean all surfaces of the
anesthesia machine, monitors and carts with a hospital-approved disinfectant, according
to manufacturer’s IFU.

e. Restock the machine and cart as necessary.

E. REFERENCE(S):
1 AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.

2t Rothrock, J. C. & McEwen, D. R. (2019). Alexander's Care of the Patient in Surgery, 16" Edition
St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 3/08 SUBJECT: Block Time
REVISION DATE(S): 6/09, 11/09, 4/15, 11/15, 02/17,
05/20
Department Approval: 03/2008/24
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/2002/24
Administration Approval: 05/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 05/20

A PURPOSE:

1.

To outline the granting, review, use and revocation of block time. Block time scheduling will be
provided in the operating room to regulate and ensure continuity of scheduling and to optimize
the utilization of the operating room.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1. Block Time: Surgical time consistently reserved for a surgeon, surgeon group or specialty.

2. Full Block: Eight (8} hours of time.

3. Half Block: Four (4) hours of time.

4, Release Time: Specified lead time prior to the day of the block which is a cutoff date or time.
a. If the block is not booked by this time, the time will become available for open booking.
b. If the surgeon voluntarily releases the block prior to the specified release date, the time

will not be included when the adjusted utilization is caiculated.
(o If the block is not released prior to the specified lead time, the unused time is included in
the adjusted utilization.

5. Utilization: The amount of time used for surgical cases.

6. Utilization calculation: The amount of time used for surgical cases divided by the amount of
time allocated to the block.

7. Adjusted Utilization: Utilization calculated with released time subtracted from the allocated
time.

C. POLICY:

1. Requested/Approval of Block Time:
a. Surgeon, service or group may request time.
b. Hospital administration may request time on behalf of a new surgeon or service.
C. Block time will be granted based on actual/anticipated case volume.
d. Requests will be approved by the OR Committee.

2. Release Time: Release time may vary among individual block and percentage released,

depending upon utilization and type of service.

a. For utilization of 85% or greater for a three-month period: 24 hour release (except in
cases where 25% of the block time is released).
b. For utilization of 70-84%: 72 hour release.

c. For utilization at or below 69%: 7 day release.



Surgical Services
Block Time
Page 2 of 2

a

h.

Robotic block times are released two (2) weeks in advance.

Released block time cannot be reclaimed once released if other cases are scheduled
during the time.

Released block time can be reclaimed if no cases are scheduled in the time

If the block time is voluntarily released before the assigned release time, the released
time does not count in the adjusted utilization calculation.

If the block time is not voluntarily released before the automatic release time, the unused
time will be included in the adjusted utilization.

Adjustments to release times will be made quarterly (January, April, July, October)
based on the prior quarter's utilization.

Maintenance of Block Time:

a.
b.
C.

d.
e.

Monthly block time utilization reports will be distributed to individual surgeons
Monthly block time utilization reports will be reviewed at OR Committee.

Quarterly (January, April, July, and October) block utilization will be reviewed and the
block time may be increased, reduced or revoked based on the prior six-month average.
Block utilization must be at 60% adjusted or 50% unadjusted to retain block time

If utilization for the previous quarter falls below requirements, the surgeon/surgeon
group/service will be notified of the deficiency.

Periodic reviews of block time and surgeon on time arrival by the OR Committee may
result in further adjustments to or reinstatement of block time.

Generally, action is taken based on a rolling six-month average, NOT by per month
average.



(c\) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE: 6/09 SUBJECT: Bumping Surgery Procedures

REVISION DATE(S): 11/10, 09/12, 4/15, 02/17, 04/20

Surgical Services Department Approval: 0212008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Commiittee Approval: 02/2002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03R2002/24
Administration Approval: 04/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To provide guidelines for “bumping” of a surgical procedure

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

2.

Bumping: The process of superceding a scheduled case with an emergency/emergent/urgent
procedure

Emergency Surgical Procedure: Any procedure requiring surgical intervention immediately
upon presentation to preserve life or limb. Emergency procedures are performed in the first
available operating room, or may require staffing an additional operating room (OR) immediately
to care for the patient (i.e., trauma).

Emergent Surgical Procedure: Any procedure requiring surgical intervention within
approximately one hour of presentation. Emergent procedures are performed in the first
available time in the OR schedule.

Urgent Surgical Procedure: Any procedure which requires surgical intervention within
approximately 4-6 hours of presentation. Urgent procedures are placed in an available time on
the OR schedule.

C. POLICY:

1.

Emergency/emergent procedures will take priority and wilt be performed before a scheduled
procedure that is not in progress. The OR Supervisor/designee and Charge Anesthesiologist
will advise the bumping surgeon of the affected surgeon to be contacted, based on the criteria
listed below.

When a surgeon deems to bump another surgical procedure, the bumping surgeon must inform
the affected surgeon of their intent.

The surgical case to be bumped will be determined by the OR Supervisor/designee and
Anesthesiologist based on the following criteria:

Time of case

Length of case

Condition of patient

Availability of equipment

Least disruptive to entire schedule

Date/time the case was scheduled (last scheduled may be bumped first)

Choosing of surgeons within the same group will not be a determining factor

Urgent procedures may require surgical intervention within a specific time period and may
require a scheduled procedure to be bumped.

~0a0ow

o



Surgical Services - Surgery
Bumping Surgery Procedures

Page 2 of 2

5.

6.

Every effort will be made to accommodate the bumped procedure in a timely manner, and the
bumped procedure will take first priority for any open time.

When a surgeon elects to bump his/her own elective scheduled case, the bumped case will be
placed in the order to be rescheduled based on availability of rooms and staff to accommodate
the case.

Disagreement between surgeons in the above process will be arbitrated by the OR Medical
Director, Chief of Surgery or Chief of Staff.

Requests for bumping may be referred to the appropriate surgical division for review.



=)
‘C‘P Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE: 04/94 SUBJECT: CPRin Surgical Services

REVISION DATE(S): 02/05; 07/09; ; 01/13

Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: nia
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: ni/a
§ i i : 24

Administration Approval: 05/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 05/20

A. DEFINITION(S}:

1. Surgical Services: Includes Pre-Operative Hold (POH), Progressive Care Unit (PCU) POH,

Surgery, Endoscopy, and Post Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU).

B. POLICY:

1. Code Blue resuscitation efforts will be implemented on any patient suffering cardiac and/or

respiratory arrest in the surgical suite, as appropriate to patient's code status.

2. A Crash Cart is available for use at all times in Surgery, POH, PCU-PCH, and PACU. Crash
Carts in Surgical Services are maintained per Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Emergency

Carts.
3. Emergency cardiopulmonary resuscitation
a. Surgery:

i. The anesthesiologist will indicate when a patient is in a state of cardiac and/or

respiratory arrest and will direct resuscitative efforts.

ii. The surgeon, assistant or other personnel trained in BLS will initiate chest

compressions per the anesthesiologist's direction.

ii. The circulating nurse or designee will call for additional help as needed (call the
Supervisor/designee to recruit additional help STAT, or overhead page the need
for additional help, as applicable), note the time of the code bhegins, and assist the

anesthesiologist as necessary.

iv. Personnel responding to the code will bring the crash cart (including defibriliator) to

the room.

V. The circulating nurse or another member of the nursing staff will be designated to
record the events on the “Code Blue Record” and record details of the event in the

patient's Electronic Health Record (EHR).

vi. Scrubbed personnel will maintain the sterile field and supplies as the situation

warrants.

vii. Additional available staff members shall remain outside the room (but still within

close proximity) to perform duties as assigned.

vii. A hospital-wide “Code-Blue” page may be initiated when necessary, at the

discretion of the anesthesiologist and circulating RN.
b. POH:
i. Initiate a hospital-wide “Code Biue” page.
C. PCU-POH:
i. Initiate a hospital-wide "Code Blue” page.



Surgical Services - Surgery
CPR in Surgical Services
Page 2 of 2

d.

e.

PACU:
i

Initiate a hospital-wide “Code Blue” page.

Endoscopy (OR 12).

Initiate a hospital-wide “Code Blue" page.



@) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE: 07/09 SUBJECT: Food and Drink, Surgery
REVISION DATE(S): 11/12, 01/13
Surgical Services Department Approval: 0212007/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 02/2002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nl/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Administration Approval: 04/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

PURPOSE:

1. To provide guidelines for the consumption of food and drink in surgical areas.

DEFINITION(S):

1. Restricted areas: Areas which are accessible only from semi-restricted areas. Wearing of

surgical attire is required and masks are required in the presence of open sterile supplies or
scrubbed personnel. Restricted areas include the Operating Rooms (OR’s) and sub-sterile
rooms.

2. Semi-restricted areas: Areas which are accessible from unrestricted, other semi-restricted, or
restricted areas. Wearing of surgical attire is required. Semi-restricted areas include corridors
leading to the Operating Rooms, sterile storage rooms, Anesthesia workroom, peripheral
support areas, and processing areas.

3. Unrestricted areas: Areas which are accessible from the exterior of the building, other
unrestricted areas or semi-restricted areas. Wearing of surgical attire is not required.
Unrestricted areas include Pre-Op Hold, PACU, OR desk, offices, and hallways ieading to these

areas.

POLICY:

1. Food and drink must not be taken into the semi-restricted or restricted areas of the perioperative
suite.

2. Food and drink must not be kept in refrigerators, freezers, cabinets, or on shelves, countertops,
or workspaces where blood or other potentially infectious materials are present.

REFERENCE(S):

1. Kyle, Erin DNP, RN, CNOR, NEA-BC, AORN-ne—2020)— AORN Guidelines for Perioperative
Practice: Transmission Based Precautions, - Denver, CO., 2023, pgs. 1204-1205.-

2. Rothrock, J. C. & McEwen, D. R. (2019). Alexander's Care of the Patient in Surgery, 16" Edition.
St. Louis, MO: Elsevier.



(C‘? Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

{SSUE DATE: 1011 SUBJECT: Hysteroscopy
REVISION DATE(S): 01/13
Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/2002/24
Administration Approval: 05/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nia
Board of Directors Approval: 05/20

A PURPOSE:

1.

To outline fluid selection, fluid management parameters, and patient safety considerations in

hysteroscopic procedures. .

B. DEFINITION(S):

1.

2.

3.

Diagnostic hysteroscopy: Endoscopic visualization of the uterine cavity and tubal orifices to aid in
the diagnosis of intra-uterine disease.

Operative hysteroscopy: Endoscopic visualization of the uterine cavity and tubal orifices and
treatment of intrauterine disease.

Fluid deficit: The amount of fluid retained through extravasation during a hysteroscopic
procedure. The fluid deficit is the amount of distending fluid infused during the procedure minus
the amount of fluid recovered either by manual measurement or by measurement by the
hysteroscopy fluid management system.

OLICY:

1
2.
3

Antibiotic prophylaxis is not recommended for routine hysteroscopic procedures.

A fluid management system shall be used for all hysteroscopies.

Fluid selection:

a. 0.9% Sodium Chloride is the fluid media of choice for diagnostic hysteroscopy and in
operative cases where mechanical, laser, or bipolar energy is used. Monopolar
electrosurgery is contraindicated with 0.9% Sodium Chloride.

i. At fluid deficit of 1500mL, consider completing the procedure.
. At fluid deficit of 2500mL, conclude the procedure immediately.

Patients undergoing hysteroscopy procedure will be monitored for fluid deficit to prevent fluid

overload.

a. Monitor the amount of fluid dispensed and collected during the procedure.

b. The fluid management pump displays fluid inflow volume (the total volume that goes into
the patient) and the fluid deficit (the volume that is missing from the scale).

c. The hysteroscopy pump automatically tracks fluid deficit throughout the case, measuring
and updating the fluid deficit display every 30 seconds.

d. The “Deficit alert icon” on the pump alarms when the fluid deficit increases dramatically in

a short time (greater than or equal to 300mL/minute).

e. The hysteroscopy pump is programmed with a deficit threshold of 500mL. When this fluid
deficit is reached, the pump will sound an alarm and the deficit value will blink
continuously.



Surgical Services - Surgery
Hysteroscopy

Page 2 of 2

f. After each additional 100mL over the selected threshold, three warning tones will sound
and the deficit display will biink.

g. The circulating nurse shall monitor the fluid inflow volume and fluid deficit throughout the
case and notify the surgeon and Anesthesiologist when the fluid deficit reaches 500mL,
and every 100mL thereafter.

5 An air embolism can result from air contained in the tube set or connected instrument reaching
the patient. To prevent air embolism;

a. Properly prime the tubing and instrument before use, per manufacturer’s instructions for
use (IFU).

b. Do not allow irrigation bags to run dry.

6 Follow manufacturer's IFU for hysteroscopy pump set-up and operation.
7. Monitor the patient for physiologic changes, including core temperature, laboratory test results

(e.g., electrolytes, coagulation studies) and potential fluid retention in the abdomen, face, and
neck.

D. DOCUMENTATIONS:
1. Document the following in the Perioperative Record:
a. Type of irrigation fluid used
b. Fluid deficit (in mL}.

E. REFERENCES:
1. The Use of Hysteroscopy for the Diagnosis and Treatment of intrauterine Pathology. ACOG
Committee Opinion No. 800. American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. Obstet
Gynecol 2020;135:2138-48.
2. AORN. Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.



(@ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Operating Room (OR) Committee

REVISION DATE(S): 1/05, 6/09, 10/12, 5/15; 11115, 02/17

Surgical Services Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 0212002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Administration Approval: 04/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approvai: 04/20

A OPERATING ROOM COMMITTEE:

1. Existence

a.

b.

c.

e.

f.

The chairperson of the Operating Room Committee will be either the chief of surgery or

chief of anesthesia, alternating each fiscal year.

Members shall consist of physician representation from anesthesia, surgical sub-

specialties, perioperative nursing leadership and administration.

The committee shalt function as a liaison between Perioperative Services and the

Medical Staff and shall;

i. Conduct periodic review of operational policies (i.e., scheduling of elective and
emergency cases)

ii. Review incidents and adverse events

iii. Review problems with the daily management of the Operating Room schedule

iv. Review block time utilization

v. Review late surgeons for appropriate sanctions

The committee shall meet monthly in addition to any meetings called by the committee

chair.

The chair of the committee, with input from the Director of Surgical Services/designee

and OR Medical Director, develops the meeting -agenda.

Documentation of the minutes is forwarded to the Medical Staff Office and approved by

the Medical Executive Committee and Board of Directors.

2. Responsibility

a.

All surgical and anesthesia services are coordinated by the Operating Room Committee
through the development of policies and protocols relating to the functioning of Pre-
Operative Education (POE), Pre-Operative Hold (POH), Operating Room, Post-
Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU), and Anesthesia Department. These are coordinated in
conjunction with administration and are reviewed at least every three years.

The Committee determines OR availability requirements to meet the needs of the
community.

B. EXTERNAL COMMITTEES:
1. Perioperative Services is represented on select hospital level committees in order to align
surgical/anesthesia activities with other hospital-wide initiatives.



Surgical Services - Surgery
OR Commiltee
Page 2 of 2

2. Members of the Perioperative Leadership team will represent Surgical Services on clinical
product selection committees, patient safety committees, and regulatory compliance
committees, as well as the following interdisciplinary committees, including, but not limited to:

a Infection Control Committee

b. Quality Assurance (QA)/Performance Improvement (Pl) Committee

C. Policy and Procedure review committees (i.e., Clinical Policies and Procedure [CPP],
Administrative Policies and Procedures [APP])

d. Code Blue Committee

e. Radiation Safety Committee

f Donor Committee



@ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Patient Transport in the

Perioperative Environment

REVISION DATE(S): 08/97;, 04/00;, 07/11;, 11112, 01/13,

04/20

Surgical Services Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 02/2002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Administration Approval: 04/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

A PURPOSE:
1.

To outline the process of patient transport in the perioperative environment.

QLICY:

1.

Pre-Operative Hold (POH) Registered Nurse (RN}, Surgery Supervisor, or other designated RN
will call the nursing unit prior to transfer to receive a hand-off report from the patient's primary
RN/designee and ensure patient’s readiness for transport to the perioperative area.

a.

b.

For ICU patients and critical/unstable patients, the perioperative nurse assigned to the
case is to go to the unit and obtain bedside hand-off report from the primary RN prior to
transporting the patient to Surgery. The anesthesiologist, anesthesia tech may assist with
transport, as available. Intubated patients must be accompanied by the anesthesiologist
during transport,

Patients on a cardiac monitor must be transported with a transport monitor and RN,
unless the physician writes an order for the patient to transport without monitoring.

The following written information will be available to the transporting PeriOperative Aide:

—ET ST 0 a0 o

Patient’s Name

Room number

Medical Record Number {MRN)

Surgeon's name

Name of patient's nurse on nursing unit
Isolation precautions {yes/no, type if applicable)
Restraints (yes/no, type if applicable)

Falls risk (yes/no)

Monitor/Nurse needed for transport (yes/no)
Oxygen needs

Mode of transport (i.e. bed or gurney)

Location to bring patient (i.e. POH, PACU/Cubicle, X-ray Room #, Endoscopy, etc.)

If transporting by gurney, obtain a clean gurney from the Pre-Op Hold area with a sheet, blanket,
and pillow.
Patients will be transported to Surgery in their bed at the discretion of the RN.

a.

Two transport personnel shall be used to transport a patient in their bed.

Isolation precautions shall be followed during transport, when applicable.
Upon arrival to the floor, notify the patient’'s nurse, obtain chart and proceed to patient’s room.

[ %}



Surgical Services - Surgery

Patient Transport in the Perioperative Environment

Page 2 of 2

a.
b.

C.

.

Introduce self to patient.

Verify two patient identifiers by checking patient ID band with the chart and confirming
with patient.

Ensure patient’s privacy by drawing curtain and placing blanket over patient before pulling
down bed linen.

Before transferring patient to gurney, ensure wheels on bed and gurney are locked.

A floor nurse or the lift team will assist with transferring patient to gurney (if required),
making sure IV and drainage bags are carefully moved with the patient and IV bag is hung
on IV pole on gurney. Urine drainage bags are to be hung on the bedframe below the
level of the patient’s bladder, avoiding dependent loops in the urinary drainage tubing.
Raise and secure side rails and make sure patient’'s arms and legs are inside rails.
Transpoiter shall stay at the head of the gurney.

Transport feet first, at an appropriate speed. Enter elevators head first.

Upon arrival to POH or the OR, appropriate personne! will be notified and chart given to
the RN assigned to the patient. The transporter shall remain with the patient until the RN
arrives to assume care of the patient.

Upon arrival to POH, lock the bed/gurney. place it in lowest position and ensure side rails
are up. Give the patient the following items:

i. Warm blanket

ii. Hair cover

ii. Call bell

iv. Pulse oximeter placed on patient’s finger

V. Blood pressure cuff placed on bed



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 06/00 SUBJECT: Perioperative Documentation
REVISION DATE(S):-02/02;, 02/06;, 11/12;, 08/15,
05/20
Department Approval: 0312008/23
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approvatl: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/2002/24
Administration Approval: 05/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 05/20

A PURPOSE:

1.

To establish guidelines for intraoperative nursing documentation.

B. POLICY:

1.

i

As part of the patient's legal health record, the perioperative patient healthcare record should
reflect the plan of care, including patient assessment findings, nursing interventions performed,
and patient outcomes.

The electronic health record (EHR) should reflect continuous reassessment and evaluation of the
perioperative nursing care and the patient's response to implemented nursing interventions.
The components of clinicat documentation shall include, but not be limited to the following
elements, as applicable to each case:

Assessments

Clinical problems

Communications with other health care professionals regarding the patient
Communication with and education of the patient, patient's family members, and the
patient's designated support person {(as applicable)

Medication records

Order acknowledgement, implementation and management

Patient care interventions

Patient clinical parameters

Patient responses and outcomes, including changes in the patient’s status

Plans of care that reflect the social and cuitural framework of the patient

Penoperatwe nursing documentation should correspond with established guidelines and practices
for perioperative nursing care, health care accreditation organization requirements, Tri-City
Medical policies and procedures, and local, state, and federal regulatory requirements.

The names, roles, and credentials of all individuals participating in the patient’s care, as well as
observers in the procedure, must be recorded in the patient health care record.

Applicable segments of the perioperative record shall be completed in the EHR for each
procedure, including, but not limited to:

coow

a. Pre-Operative Checklist (including documentation of the Pre-Procedure Verification
process)
b. Case times

ct Case attendees
d. Skin assessment



Surgical Services - Surgery
Perioperative Documentation

Page 2 0of 2

e. Patient positioning

f. Procedural verification for all procedures performed in the case (i.e., Time Out)

g. Fire risk assessment

h. General case data, including location of the procedure, patient ASA score, wound
classification, and pre-operative and post-operative diagnosis

i. Surgical procedure(s) and anesthesia type(s)

J- Skin preparation and hair removal

k. Counts, inciuding outcomes of counts and follow-up actions for incorrect counts

l. Patient care devices

m. Laser information and laser safety measures

n. Cautery used, including settings, lot number and expiration date of return electrode, and
skin assessment before and after return electrode placement

0. Tourniquet, including settings and skin assessment before and after tourniquet use

p. Catheters, drains and tubes

q. Medications administered on the sterile field

r. Irrigation fluids

S. Cell Saver (i.e., blood salvage system) information, including machine identification
number, anticoagulant used, volume collected in the reservoir and volume returned to the
patient, wash volume, hematocrit (QC) of the first processed bowl, and name of personnel
reinfusing blood

t. All surgical specimens and cultures sent

u. Implants and prosthetics, including all identifiers as applicable

v, Dressings

W, OR departure information

X. Charges for supplies used during the procedure {i.e., Pick List)

7. Tissue implants shall be documented in the Carefusion Tlssue and Implant Module (TIM)
system, using the Carefusion TIM application icon located on each computer desktop in
Surgery. Refer to Carefusion Pyxis Tissue and Implant Module User Guide for complete
guidelines.

(G REFERENCES:
1. AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.



‘@’) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE: 06/09 SUBJECT: Perioperative Standards of Practice
REVISION DATE(S): 11/12, 013/13, 04/20
Surgical Services Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 02/2002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 0312002124
Administration Approval: 04/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nia
Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

A PURPOSE:

1.

B. POLICY:

To describe the responsibilities for which perioperative practitioners are accountable and to
define a competent level of nursing practice and professional performance that is designed to
achieve desired patient outcomes in the perioperative setting.

1.

Structure standards were developed to quide professionals in administrative roles and to provide
direction for evaluating operational systems.

a.
b.
c.

d.

A philosophy, a purpose, and objectives shall be formulated to guide surgical care.

An organizational plan for surgical care shall be developed and communicated.

A registered nurse shall be authorized with administrative accountability and responsibility
for surgical care.

A registered nurse administrator shall be accountable and responsible for developing
mechanisms that ensure optimal age-appropriate patient care.

Surgical Services management team shall develop and manage the budget for surgical
care.

Surgical Services shall have written policies and procedures that serve as operational
guidelines.

Surgical Services management team shall be responsible for establishing staffing
requirements, selecting personnel, and planning for the appropriate utilization of human
resources.

Staff development programs shall be provided for surgical care personnel.

A safe surgical environment shall be established, controlled, and consistently monitored.
Surgical Services leadership team shall promote the discovery and integration of new
knowledge by encouraging development and use of nursing research.

Surgical Services staff shall maintain appropriate documentation related to surgical
activities.

Surgical Services leadership team shall recognize professional responsibility to promote,
provide, and participate in a learning environment for students in health care disciplines.
Surgical Service shall establish methods for continuous assessment, measurement, and
improvement in the quality of patient care and departmental functions, in conjunction with
the organization’s Quality Plan.

Standards of perioperative clinica! practice focus on the process of providing nursing care that is
population specific (i.e. culturally and age specific).

a.

The perioperative nurse collects patient health data.

(]



Surgical Services - Surgery

Perioperative Standards of Practice

Page 2 of 2

b.
c.
d.

e.

f.

The perioperative nurse analyzes the assessment data in determining diagnosis.

The perioperative nurse identifies expected outcomes unique to the patient.

The perioperative nurse develops a plan of care that prescribes interventions to attain the
expected outcomes.

The perioperative nurse implements the interventions identified in the plan of care.

The perioperative nurse evaluates the patient's progress toward attainment of outcomes.

Standards of perioperative professional performance focus on the process of performing
professional role activities.

a.

b.

The perioperative nurse systematically evaluates the quality and appropriateness of
nursing practice.

The perioperative nurse evaluates his or her practice in the context with professionat
practice standards and relevant statutes and regulations.

The perioperative nurse acquires and maintains current knowledge in nursing practice.
The perioperative nurse contributes to the professional growth of peers, colleagues, and
others.

The perioperative nurse’s decisions and actions on behalf of the patient are determined in
an ethical manner.

The perioperative nurse collaborates with the patient, significant others, heaithcare
providers, and others in providing care.

The perioperative nurse uses research findings in practice.

The perioperative nurse considers factors related to safety, effectiveness, efficiency,
environmental concerns, and cost in planning and delivering patient care.



@P Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Positioning the Surgical Patient

REVISION DATE(S): 01/964, 01/97;, 04/97;, 02/00;, 03/03;,

01/06;, 09/07;. 06/09;. 01/13;, 06/23,

05/20

Department Approval: 02/2007/23
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/3002/24
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/2002/24
Administration Approval: 05/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 05/20

A PURPOSE:

1.

To provide guidelines for positioning the patient undergoing operative or other procedures in the
perioperative area.

2. The goals of patient positioning include:
a. Providing exposure of the surgical site
b. Maintaining the patient's comfort and privacy
c. Providing access to intravenous (IV) lines and monitoring equipment
d. Allowing for optimal ventilation by maintaining a patent airway and avoiding constriction or
pressure on the chest or abdomen
e. Maintaining circulation and protecting muscles, nerves, bony prominences, joints, skin,
eyes, and vital organs from injury
f. Observing and protecting fingers, toes and genitals
g. Stabilizing the patient to prevent unintended shifting or movement
B. POLICY:
1. Provide care that respects the dignity and privacy of each patient during patient positioning.
2. Implement measures to provide privacy during patient positioning.
a. Keep windows covered (as applicable) and doors closed in patient care areas
b. Limit traffic in the procedure room
c. Expose only the areas of the patient’'s body necessary to provide care or access
3. Conduct a preoperative patient assessment to identify patients at risk for positioning injury,
develop a plan of care, and implement interventions to prevent injury.
4, Perform a preoperative assessment of factors related to the procedure that includes:

Type of procedure

Estimated length of the procedure

Ability of the patient to tolerate the anticipated position

Amount of surgical exposure required

Ability of the anesthesia professional to access the patient

Desired procedural position, potential change of position, and positioning devices required
Critical devices (e.g., catheters, drains)

Jewelry or body piercings

Braided hair, hair accessories, or hair extensions (patients positioned on these are subject
to injury).

TT@mea0Tw



Surgical Services - Surgery
Positioning the Surgical Patient

Page 2 of 3

10.

11.
12.
13.

14,

15,

I Superficial implants (e.g., dermal) or implanted critical devices (e.g., pacemaker)

k. Prosthesis (e.g., prosthetic limb) or corrective devices

Perform a preoperative assessment of the patient's risk for pressure injury. The patient is

considered high risk for pressure injury development in surgery if any of the following criteria are

met:

Surgical procedure duration greater than three (3) hours

70 years of age or greater

Smoker

Diabetes

Vascular disease

Vascular surgery

Glaucoma

Malnourished

r; Morbidly obese

Implement protective measures to bony prominences if the patient meets one or more of the high

risk criteria for pressure injury development in surgery

a. Offload pressure points (e.g., float heels off the bed by placing pillows beneath the legs)

b. Place prophylactic dressings to bony prominences or other areas subjected to pressure,
friction and shear (specific to each position).

Remove patient’s jewelry, body piercings, hair accessories, or other items that may pose a risk

for positioning injury before the patient is transferred to or positioned on the operating room bed.

Do not position the patient directly on critical or superficial implanted devices, to the extent

possibie,

Use OR beds, bed attachments, positioning equipment, positioning devices, and support surfaces

according to manufacturer's instructions for use (IFU).

S@*oooow

a. Verify cleanliness, surface integrity, and correct function of positioning equipment,
devices, and support surfaces before use.

b. Remove soiled, damaged, or defective surfaces, devices, and equipment from service and
have them cleaned, repaired, or replaced.

C. Ensure all beds/gurneys and operative tables are locked before transferring the patient

from one surface to another.
Ensure adequate number of personnel, devices, and equipment are available during patient
positioning activities to promote patient and personnel safety.
At least one surgical team member should attend to the patient on the OR bed at all times.
Coordinate positioning of the patient with team members by verifying all team members are ready
for positioning to occur and implementing a countdown to begin positioning.
When the patient has critical devices (i.e., catheters, drains, tubes) communicate about the
presence of the cntical device and take measures to secure the devices during and after
positioning.
Position patients on surfaces that reduce the potential for pressure injury and ensure surfaces are
smooth and wrinkle-free.

a. Avoid positioning patients on multiple layers of blankets, sheets, or other materials.

b. Avoid positioning patients on warming blankets.

Implement safe positioning practices, including. but not limited to:

a. Assess and maintain the patient's physiologic alignment, including head and neck in a
neutral position without extreme lateral rotation, during all phases of the procedure.

b. The anesthesiologist shali protect the patient's eyes when the patient is under general
anesthesia.

c. Do not allow the patient's neck to be hyperextended for long periods of time.

d. Prevent the patient’'s body from contacting metal portions of the OR bed and other hard
surfaces.

e. Prevent the patient's extremities from unintentionally dropping or hanging below the level
of the OR bed.

f Monitor the tocation of the patient's hands, fingers, feet, toes, and genitals during

positioning activities, including changes in configuration of the OR bed.



Surgical Services - Surgery
Positioning the Surgical Patient
Page 30f 3

a. Apply safety restraints and monitoring devices (e.g., blood pressure cuffs, pulse oximetry
sensors) in a manner that safely secures the patient and allows the accessory device to
function effectively without nerve, tissue or circulatory compromise.

i Verify placement, tightness, and security of safety restraints after positioning or
repositioning activities.

h. Monitor the patient’s position after positioning activities and during the procedure, and
take corrective actions as indicated.

i. Scrubbed personnel shall not lean against the patient.
i, Repositioning interventions may be implemented during the procedure as necessary.
J. Assess the patient's skin immediately post-operatively and document any interventions.

C. PROCEDURE:
1. For specific instructions on positioning the surgical patient and use of specialty frames, tables and
positioning equipment, refer to Elsevier Online Skills on the Tri-City Medical Center intranet and
equipment manufacturer's IFU.

D. DOCUMENTATION:

1. Document the following information in the patient's electronic health record (EHR):

a. Pre-operative skin assessment and reassessment(s) as necessary for changes in skin
integrity

b. Patient's position, including position of the patient's arms and legs and any repositioning
activities

(o} Personnel participating in positioning the patient

d. Type and location of positioning equipment or devices

e. Type and location of safety restraints

f. Type and location of any additional padding provided

g. Actions taken to prevent patient injury, especially any actions taken in response to

findings from pre-operative assessment and location(s) of dressing(s) applied for pressure
injury prevention
h. Postoperative assessment

E. REFERENCES:
1. Guidelines for Perioperative Practice, Positioning the Patient, Association of Perioperative
Registered Nurses (AORN), Denver (2023) pg. 702-750.



£
(c‘? Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE:

04/94 SUBJECT: Protective Barriers: Materials for
Gowns and Drapes

REVISION DATE(S): 02/05;, 06/09; 11/12, 01/13, 04/20

Surgical Services Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 02/2002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Administration Approval: 04/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: ni/a
Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To provide guidelines for the evaluation, selection, and use of protective barrier materials used as
surgical gowns and drapes.

B. POLICY:

1.

Surgical gowns and drapes shall be disposable and should be made of materials that minimize
the passage of microorganism from non-sterile to sterile areas.

a. Materials (including seams) shall be resistant to penetration by blood and other liquids
b. Materials shall be resistant to tears, punctures, strain and abrasion.
c. Manufacturers shall provide data concerning the ability of each material to prevent

bacterial transfer in relation to time, pressure and strike through.
Gowns and drapes shall be safe and comfortable for use in the practice setting.
Materials shall resist ignition and have a low rate of flame spread.
Materials shall be as lint-free as possible.
Materials shall be nonabrasive and free of toxic ingredients.
Materials shall be non-giare and of a color that minimizes distortion from reflected light.
Materials shall maintain integrity over the expected life as claimed by the manufacturer.
Materials shall maintain an environment appropriate to body temperature.
Materials shall allow freedom of movement.
Select the surgical gown by task and anticipated degree of exposure to blood, body fluids, or
other potentially infectious materials, as determined by the following factors:
a. Team member's role
b. Type of procedure (e.g., minimally invasive versus open, superficial incision versus deep
body cavity incision)

@~paooo

C. Procedure duration

d. Anticipated blood loss

e. Anticipated volume of irrigation fluid

f. Possibility of handling hazardous medications

g. Anticipated patient contact {e.g., splash, soaking, leaning)

Select the surgical gown needed for the procedure according to the barrier performance class as
stated on the product label.

Select and wear surgical gowns that wrap around the body and completely cover the wearer's
back. The gown sleeves should conform to the shape of the wearer's arms, be of sufficient



Surgical Services - Surgery
Protective Barriers: Matenals for Gowns and Drapes

Page 2 of 2

11.

12
13.

14,

length to allow gloves to completely cover the cuffs, and be of sufficient length to prevent the
gown cuffs from being exposed when the wearer's arms are extended.

Scrubbed personnel may wear a surgical helmet system when splashes, spray, splatter, or
droplets of blood or other potentially infectious materials may be generated and facial
contamination can be reasonably anticipated.

Sterile drapes shall be used to establish a sterile field. Sterile drapes provide a barrier that
minimizes the passage of microorganisms from unsterile to sterile areas.

Sterile drapes should be placed on the patient, furniture, and equipment in the sterile field in a
manner that prevents contamination.

Sterile drapes should be handled as little as possible

In the draping process, the drape material should be held above waist level, in a compact
position, draping from operative site to periphery. Sterile drapes should be placed in a manner
that does not require scrubbed team members to lean across an unsterile area and that prevents
the sterile gowns from contacting an unsterile area.

During draping, the gloved hands should be shielded by cuffing the interior portion of the drape
material over the sterile gloves.,

Once placed, sterile drapes should note be moved or shifted.

Surgical equipment (e.g., tubing, cables) should be secured to the sterile field with non-
perforating devices.

Consider only the top surface of the sterile drape to be sterile. Constder items that fall below the
level of the sterile field to be contaminated.

C. REFERENCES:

1s

AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.

L]



@‘) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 10/11 SUBJECT: Scope of Service for Surgical
Services
REVISION DATE(S): 12/11;, 10/12;, 5/15;, 02/17, 06/20
Department Approval; 03/2008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 04/2002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 05/2002/24
Administration Approval: 06/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nla
Board of Directors Approval: 06/20
A PURPOSE:
1. To describe the Scope of Service for the department of Surgical Services at Tri-City Medical

Center, including Pre-Operative Education (POE), Pre-Operative Hold (POH), Post Anesthesia
Care Unit (PACU), Surgery, Endoscopy, and the Sterile Processing Department (SPD).

B. POLICY:
1. Goals

a. To improve the general health and well-being of patients who require surgical care.

b. To improve patients’ health knowledge related to pre-operative preparation, the
scheduled surgical procedure, and post-operative plan for patients requiring surgical
care.

c. To reduce and manage complications and unexpected cutcomes.

d. To continuously evaluate and improve the services provided.

2. Description of Service & Assessing Department Services

a. The department of surgical services provides diagnostic, therapeutic and operative
interventions for patients requiring a variety of surgical procedures 24 hours a day, 7
days a week.

b. Assessment activities include pre-operative, intra-operative and post-operative patient
care for persons requiring elective, urgent or emergent surgery.

C. The Pre-Operative Education department provides instructions to patients electively
scheduied for procedures regarding preparation for surgery, surgical procedures and
post-operative care.

i. POE facilitates ordered laboratory and diagnostic procedures as part of the pre-
operative patient preparation, and gathers patient health history information.

ii. POE appointments are conducted in-person or via telephone, Monday-Friday
8:00am-5:00pm.

d. The Pre-Operative Hold department is responsible for assessing patients prior to surgery
and carrying out pre-operative orders. POH is staffed with RN's Monday-Friday 5:30am-
6:30 pm. After hours, the surgical RN is responsible for assessing patients pre-
operatively and completing pre-operative orders.

e. The PACU provides nursing care to patients requiring post anesthesia recovery from a

variety of surgical, endoscaopic, cardiac and interventional radiology procedures 24 hours
a day, 7 days a week



Surgical Services

Scope of Service for Surgical Services

Page 2 of 3

f.

SPD provides 24/7 support to Surgery by providing sterile instruments, supplies and
equipment necessary to complete surgical procedures.

Methods Used To Assess Patient Needs

a.

Patient health history and educational needs related to the surgical procedure and post-
operative care are assessed by a Pre-Operative Education Registered Nurse (RN)
during the Pre-Operative Education appeointment (as applicable).

Pre-Operative patient assessment and care is performed by a Pre-Operative Hold (POH)
Registered Nurse (RN},

Post anesthesia patient assessment and care is performed by a PACU RN.

Patients are assessed and prepared for surgery by a perioperative RN on the day of
surgery

Patients are assessed by a surgical Registered Nurse (RN) and anesthesia care
provider (if applicable) prior to transfer to the Operating Room (OR) or Endoscopy
procedure room.

Ongoing patient assessment and care is performed by the circulating RN and anesthesia
care provider in the OR throughout the procedure. RN's may monitor patients and
administer moderate sedation for appropriate procedures (including Endoscopy
procedures), per Patient Care Services Policy: Sedation/Analgesia Used During
Therapeutic or Diagnostic Procedures.

Scope of Services

a.

Service specialties include orthopedic, thoracic, vascular, neurosurgical, urclogic,
gynecological, anesthesia, plastics, otolaryngolic, ophthalmologic, oral surgery,
endoscopic, cardiac, robotic and general surgery.

There are 12 rooms in the OR suite, including 10 operating rooms {1-10) that can

accommodate any type of case, a cystoscopy suite (OR 11) and an Endoscopy suite

(OR 12).

Patients are discharged from the Operating Room by the surgeon and/or

anesthesiologist upon comptetion of the surgical procedure, and admitted to the

appropriate postoperative level of care.

The POE department services electively scheduled outpatients and AM admissions for

all surgical specialties.

The POH department contains patient 16 bays. A Pre-Operative Hold and Phase |l area

with six (6) bays is available for elective admission of Progressive Care Unit patients and

Phase |l recovery. POH services inpatients, outpatients and AM admissions for all

surgical specialties and Endoscopy.

PACU is a sixteen bay unit, including two cubicles enabled to act as isolation rooms.

i. Recovery services are provided to both inpatients and outpatients_requiring post
anesthesia recovery from a variety of surgical, endoscopic, cardiac and
interventional radiology procedures

Patients are discharged from the PACU and/or Phase Il when discharge criteria are met.

Patients may be discharged home or to the next appropriate level of care, per physician

order.

Staffing

a.

Sufficient staffing is maintained at ali times in terms of number of personnel, skill mix,
and competency to meet the needs of the patients in the OR. On call and call-back will
be utilized to additionally staff those shifts that have minimal staffing in-house.

Each patient is assigned at least two surgical team members, one of which is the RN
circulator.

The Surgery Supervisor/designee will make staff assignments according to individual
staff competencies and patient needs.

Complex procedures requiring additional resources shall be staffed with additional
personnel as appropriate.



Surgical Services

Scope of Service for Surgical Services

Page 3 of 3

10.

e. For complete staffing and on-call guidelines see Surgical Services Policies Staffing,
Admission/Discharge Criteria and On-call.

f. POE appointments are conducted by RN’s. Appointments are scheduled in advance by
the surgery schedulers.

g. Staffing for Pre-Operative Hold and the Post Anesthesia Care Unit is maintained in

compliance with current American Society of Perianesthesia Nurses (ASPAN)
Perianesthesia Nursing Standards, Practice Recommendations and Interpretive
Statements. On-call staff is available to cover the night shift and weekend

h. After hours, the surgical RN conducts the pre-operative patient assessment and
preparation.

Patient Population

a. Adult and geriatric patients requiring surgical management.
Extent to Which The Department's Level of Care/Service Meet Patient Needs
a. The services provided by surgical services meet the needs of both inpatients and

outpatients through availability of staff who are competent to provide service for the
current patient population.
Performance Improvement (Pl)

a. In order to improve patient care, several indicators are monitored and reported to the OR
Committee, Infection Control Committee, Quality Commitiee or other committees as
requested.

b. Pl data is posted in the department

Standards of Practice

a. Surgical Services follows practice recommendations as outlined in the Association of
Perioperative Registered Nurses (AORN} Guidelines for Perioperative Practice

b POE, POH and PACU follows standards and practice recommendations as outlined in

the American Society of PeriAnesthesia Nurses (ASPAN) Perianesthesia Nursing
Standards, Practice Recommendations and Interpretive Statements.

(o The nursing service abides by regulations of California Title XXIl, Joint Commission
guidelines, CMS and the Board of Registered Nursing.

d. See Surgical Services Policy Perioperative Standards of Practice

Medication Administration Standards Related to Care of The Patient

a. Medications are dispensed via the Pyxis Medstation system. Emergency cardiac

medications requiring refrigeration are stored in Cardiac OR locked refrigerator. The
refrigerator temperature is monitored by Pharmacy.

b. Anesthesia Pyxis Medstations are maintained in OR's 1-11.

C. Preoperative antibiotics and medications dispensed to and/or administered on the
surgical field during the surgical procedure are documented in the surgical nursing
record.

d. Anesthesiologists are responsible for documenting all medications they administer on
the Anesthesia record.

e. Medications administered in POH and PACU are documented in the electronic
Medication Administration Record (eMARY) in the electronic health record (EHR).

f. Medications in PACU shall be kept in wall-mounted lock boxes within each individual

patient bay. Medications will be properly labeled and discarded/wasted before the
patient is transferred/discharged from PACU. Medications shall not be left unattended
outside a lock box.

g. See Surgical Services Policy Medications in Surgery.

"



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY

ISSUE DATE: 06/09 SUBJECT: Standard Precautions in Surgery

REVISION DATE(S): 11/12;, 07/15, 06/18, 04/20

Department Approval: 02/2008/23
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval: 02/2002/24
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Administration Approval. 04/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 04/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To identify those practices used by surgical personnet in addition to the hospital Standard
Precautions policy, to protect both patients and personnel from exposure to bloodborne
pathogens. The perioperative setting is a high-risk environment for exposure to bloodborne
pathogens from percutaneous injuries due to the presence of large quantities of blood and other
potentially infectious body fluids, prolonged exposure to open surgical sites, frequent handling of
sharp instruments, and the requirement for coordination between team members while passing
sharp surgical instruments.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

Standard Precautions; The primary strategy for successful infection control and reduction of
worker exposure. Precautions used for care of all patients regardless of their diagnosis or
presumed infectious status.

Engineering Controls: Safety-engineered devices designed to prevent or reduce the incidence of
worker injury and the risk of bloodborne pathogen exposure to the worker.

Neutral Zone: A work practice control technigue used to ensure the surgeon and scrub person do
not touch the same sharp instrument at the same time. This technique is accomplished by
establishing a designated neutral zone on the sterile field and placing sharp items within the zone
for transfer of the item between scrubbed personnel.

Perforation Indicator System: A double-gloving system comprising a colored pair of surgical
gloves worn beneath a standard pair of surgical gloves. When a glove perforation occurs,
moisture from the surgical field seeps through the perforation between the layers of gloves,
allowing the site of perforation to be more easily seen.

C. POLICY:

PN

Standard precautions shall be used when caring for all patients.

Blood and body fluids from all patients shall be considered infectious.

Protective barriers shall be made available to ali personnel to reduce the risk of exposure.
Personal protective equipment (PPE) shall be worn whenever the possibility exists for exposure
to blood, body fluids, or other potentially infectious materials. PPE shall depend upon the degree
of exposure anticipated and may include:

a. Goggles

b. Glasses with side barriers

c. Face shields

d. Masks

(Y]



Surgical Services - Surgery
Standard Precautions in Surgery

Page 2 of 3

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

e Gowns (including impervious)
f, Shoe covers
g. Gloves

Remove PPE before leaving the work area and place used PPE in designated receptacle for

disposal. Perform hand hygiene after PPE removal.

Eye protection shall be worn by all scrubbed personnel.

Scrubbed personnel should doubte glove (i.e., wear two pairs of sterile surgical gloves) and use a

perforation indicator system.

Perioperative personnel shall take precautions to prevent injuries caused by scalpels and other

sharp instruments.

a. Perioperative personnel shall use engineering controls when feasible (i.e., sharps with
engineered sharps injury protection), such as blunt needles, safety scalpels, safety
needles and needeless systems.

b. The “hands-free, Neutral Zone” technique shall be used when possible, to transfer sharps
between personnel.

I. Identify and designate the neutral zone before beginning the surgical procedure.

H. Use an instrument mat, magnetic pad, basin or designated area as the neutral
zone.

fii Give verbal notification when a sharp is in the neutral zone.

v, Place one sharp at a time in the neutral zone.

V. Orient the sharp for easy retrieval by the surgeon or fist assistant.

Vi Ensure the sharp is handled by only one team member at a time.

i Place sharp items in the neutral zone after use.

c. Used needles shall not be sheared, bent, broken, or recapped by hand. If recapping is
necessary, an instrument, or the one-handed scoop technique shall be used.

d. Knife blades shall be loaded and removed using an instrument.

e, Sharp devices must be contained, transported, and disposed of safely. Disposable
sharps shall be placed in a puncture resistant, iabeled, or color-coded leak proof
container.

f The scrub person should account for and confine all sharps on the sterile field.

g Reusable sharps shall be ptaced in a puncture resistant container, isolated from other
surgical instruments.

h. Use gloves and an instrument to pick up sharp items that have fallen on the floor.

Standard Precautions shall be used when transferring specimens from the sterile field.

a All specimens shall be placed in a labeled container which prevents leakage during
collection, handling, processing, storage, transport or shipping.

b. Specimen containers received directly from the operative field shall be placed in a labeled
leak- proof plastic bag or container.

Perioperative personnel shall control work practices to minimize the risk of exposure to

bloodborne pathogens. This includes prohibition of eating, drinking, applying cosmetics, and

handling of contact lenses in restricted and semi-restricted areas.

Perioperative personnel with dermatitis, infections, exudative lesions or non-intact skin shall

refrain from providing direct patient care or handling of medical devices used in performing

invasive procedures.

Perioperative personnel should be immunized against vaccine-preventable diseases.

Perioperative personnel shall adhere to Employee and Occupational Health Service (EOHS)

policies regarding work restrictions for personnel with infectious diseases.

Infection control policies for Standard and Transmission based precautions shall be followed

a. Transport gurneys will be cleaned and fresh linen applied as soon as the patient is
transferred to the operating table.

b, Patient’s isolation status shall be communicated during hand-off report.

c. Patients on Airborne Precautions, including those with suspected or active pulmonary

tuberculosis shall be recovered in a private cubicle with a portable high efficiency
particulate air (HEPA) filter.



Surgical Services - Surgery
Standard Precautions in Surgery
Page 3 0f 3

D. REFERENCES:
1. AORN, Inc. {2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.

L



@’) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 11/09 SUBJECT: Surgical Patients with implanted
Electronic Devices
REVISION DATE({S): 01/13, 05/20
Department Approval: 02£2008/23
Operating Room Committee Approval: 0312002124
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 04/2002/24
Administration Approval: 05/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: nfa
Board of Directors Approval: 05/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To outline the necessary steps in caring for a surgical patient with an implanted electronic device
(IED).

B. POLICY:

1.

Take precautions when the patient has any IED (e.g., gastric or cardiac pacemaker, implantable
cardioverter defibrillator, cochlear implant, deep brain, vagal nerve, sacral nerve, phrenic nerve,
spinal cord or bone stimulator).

a. Electromagnetic interference (EMI) caused by energy-generating devices used during
surgery can cause complications for the IED.
b. Ensure surgeon and anesthesiologist are aware of patient’s IED prior to surgery.

The team managing the implanted device should be consulted before surgery and as needed
{e.g., implanting surgeon and/or device manufacturer).

Determine interventions to be performed for a patient with an existing IED based on the following
information that may be obtained from patient assessment, patient caregivers, the device
identification card carried by the patient, and the medical record:

a. Type of implanted device
b. Patient’s level of dependence
C. Location of the device and leads (e.g., within or outside the path between the active and

dispersive electrodes)

Device manufacturer and model

Clinical indication for the device

Battery life

Device settings

. Lead placement

or cardiac devices, the following information is also needed:
Date of last device interrogation or monitoring

Lead polarity (i.e., unipolar or bipolar)

Need for device programming

Response of the device to a magnet

Presence of an alert status on the generator or on the lead
The last pacing threshold

Perform the following interventions for a patient with an existing cardiac implanted electronic
device (CIED):

~pooUpPTNITC~0Q



Surgical Services - Surgery
Surgical fatients with Implanted Electronic Devices

Page 2 of 2

9.

10.

1.
12.

a. Reprogram the device by magnet or having equipment reprogrammed by a qualified
person, if so advised by the team managing the CIED.
b. Place the dispersive electrode as close as possible to the surgical site, verifying the IED is

not in the current pathway between the active and dispersive electrode.

Use electracautery, bipolar forceps, or other aiternative technology {e.g., ultrasonic
technology).

Place the active electrode cord away from the pulse generator.

Use a five-lead ECG system.

Use a beat-to-beat indicator (e.g., arterial line, pulse oximeter).

Have temporary pacing equipment and an external defibrillator readily available.
Keep a magnet immediately available if the pacemaker will respond to a magnet and one
is not used for reprogramming.

i. Use continuous cardiac monitoring whenever the pacemaker is deactivated.
Perform the following interventions for a patient with an existing non-cardiac IED:

13

Te~oa

a. Use alternative technology (e.g., electrocautery, bipolar forceps, ultrasonic technology)
instead of monopoiar electrosurgery when possible.

b. Activate the electrosurgical unit for the shortest amount of time possible.

c. Place the grounding pad as far as possible from the device’s generator and leads.

d. Verify the implanted device and leads are not between the active electrode and the
dispersive electrode.

e. Turn off the IED if it is safe to do so.

Take precautions for a patient with an existing cochlear implant:

a. Do not use electresurgical devices within 2-3cm of the implant package and electrodes.

b. Remove all external components.

Take precautions for patients who have deep brain stimulators, sacral nerve stimulators, spinal
cord stimulators, vagal nerve stimulators, or gastric pacemakers, including turning off the device if
so advised by the implant management team and if it is safe to do so.

Tri-City Medical Center employees may not deactivate or reactivate a patient’s IED.

Document |IED in the patient's electronic health record (EHR), inciuding all assessments,
consultations, interventions and outcomes regarding the |IED pre-, intra-, and post-operatively,
Provide education to patients and their caregivers on the effects of electrosurgery on |1ED's.

Notify post-operative RN of IED status during hand-off report.

C. REFERENCES:

1.

AORN, Inc. (2020). Guidelines for Perioperative Practice. Denver.



@ Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES
SURGERY
ISSUE DATE: 06/15 SUBJECT: Surgical Supply Stocking, Rotation
and Qutdate
REVISION DATE(S): 09/18, 05/20
Surgical Services Department Approval: 022007/23
Operating Room Committee Approval: 03/2002/24
Department of Anesthesiology Approval: n/a
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: nfa
Medical Executive Committee Approval: nfa
Administration Approval: 056/2003/24
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: n/a
Board of Directors Approval: 05/20

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To ensure rotation of sterile supplies so items with the earliest expiration date are used first.

2. To remove items from stock before the expiration date is reached.
B. POLICY:
1. All supplies located in the Surgery department shall be checked monthly for package integrity
and expiration date.
a. Materials Management is responsible for checking outdates of all supplies located in
Pyxis machines, including Tissue Pyxis.
b. Operating Room (OR) staff is responsible for checking outdates of items stored in the
Surgery department outside Pyxis machines.
c. OR staff is responsible for checking outdates of all medications stored outside of
Medication Pyxis machines.
2. Sterile packages are to be arranged to allow stock rotation on a first in, first out system.
a. New ltems shall be placed in the back, left hand side of the shelf.
b. Rotate supplies such that items to expire first will be located in the front, right hand side
of the shelf.
3. All outdates are to be completed by the last day of each month.
4. Remove items that will expire in the current or following month.
53 Expired items are to be returned to Materials Management department.
6. Document completion of outdates in the Surgery Outdate Log Book, located at the main OR
desk..
7. Items are to be checked for package integrity and expiration date prior to being used.
a. If only the month and year are listed, the day of expiration will be the last day of that
month. {i.e. supplies labeled with a 7/2025 expiration would expire on 7/31/2025).
8. Expired items will be reviewed for usage and necessity before reordering. ltems which are no
longer used or necessary will be removed from inventory.
C. FORM(S):

1.

Operating Room Outdate Log Book

[ 8]



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A SPECIAL MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 29, 2024 - 1:30 o’'clock p.m.

A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at 1:30 p.m.
on February 29, 2024.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present via
teleconference:

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director Nina Chaya
Director George W. Coulter
Director Gigi Gleason
Director Marvin Mizell
Director Adela Sanchez

Absent: Director Tracy Younger
Also present were;

Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Executive Officer
Henry Showah, M.D., Chief of Staff
Jeff Scott, Board Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

1. The Vice Chairperson, Director Nina Chaya, M.D. called the meeting to order at 1:30
p.m. with attendance as listed above.

2. Approval of Agenda
It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Coulter to approve
the agenda as presented. The motion passed (6-0-0-1) with Director Younger
absent.

3. Oral Announcement of tems to be discussed during Closed Session
Vice Chairperson Chaya made an oral announcement of the items listed on the
February 29, 2024 Special Board of Directors Meeting Agenda to be discussed during
Closed Session which included one matter of Existing Litigation, one matter of Potential
Litigation and Reports Involving Trade Secrets.

6. Motion to go into Closed Session
it was moved by Director Coulter and seconded by Director Gleason to go into
Closed Session at 1:35 p.m. The motion passed (6-0-0-1} with Director Younger
absent.

7. At 3:15 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session with attendance as previously noted.



8. Report from Vice Chairperson on any action taken in Closed Session.

Board Counsel Scott stated the report out from closed session will be given at the
beginning of today's Regular Board meeting at 3:30 p.m.

9. Open Session

a) Consideration to approve the Joint Marketing Agreement between Tri-City
Healthcare District and TriasMD for a term of five (5) years for an expenditure not to

exceed $100,000 per year.

It was moved by Director Chavez to approve the Joint Marketing Agreement
between Tri-City Healthcare District and Trias MD for a term of five (5} years
for an expenditure not to exceed $100,0000 per year. Director Gleason

seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors:

NOES: Directors:
ABSTAIN: Directors:
ABSENT: Directors:

10. Adjournment

Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason,
Mizell, and Sanchez

None

None

Younger

There being no further business, Vice Chairperson Chaya adjourned the meeting at

3:20 p.m.

ATTEST:

Gigi Gleason
Secretary

TCHD Special Board of Directors Meeting

Nina Chaya, M.D.
Vice Chairperson

2. February 29 2024



TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
MINUTES FOR A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
February 29, 2024 - 3:30 o’clock p.m.

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of Tri-City Healthcare District was held at 3:30
p.m. on February 29, 2024.

The following Directors constituting a quorum of the Board of Directors were present:

Director Rocky J. Chavez
Director Nina Chaya, M.D.
Director George W. Couiter
Director Gigi Gleason
Director Marvin Mizell
Director Adela Sanchez

Absent was Director Tracy M. Younger

Also present were:

Dr. Gene Ma, Chief Executive Officer
Donald Dawkins, Chief Nurse Executive
Jeremy Raimo, Chief Operating Officer
Janice Gurley, Chief Financial Officer
Roger Cortez, Chief Compliance Officer
Dr. Henry Showah, Chief of Staff
Susan Bond, General Counsel

Jeffrey Scott, Board Counsel

Teri Donnellan, Executive Assistant

In Board Chairperson Younger’s absence, the Board Vice Chairperson, Nina Chaya,
M.D. called the meeting to order at 3:30 p.m. with attendance as listed above.

Approval of Agenda

It was moved by Director Gleason and seconded by Director Sanchez to
approve the agenda as presented. The motion passed (6-0-0-1) with Director
Younger absent.

Pledge of Allegiance

Director Sanchez led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Report from Closed Session

Board Counsel Scott reported the Board conferred with legal counsel concerning
existing litigation in the case of Jacobs vs. Tri-City Healthcare District and directed

counsel to take appropriate action concerning the existing litigation matter.

The Board also conferred with legal counsel concerning a potential litigation matter
and also directed counsel to take appropriate action.

£



10.

11.

» Net Operating Revenue — $27,145
» Operating Expense — $27,454

> EBITDA -$2,410
» EROE - $859

Janice reported on the current month Key Indicators as follows:

» Average Daily Census — 122
» Adjusted Patient Days — 6,874
» Surgery Cases — 470

» ED Visits - 3,618

Director Mizell asked questions regarding ED volume once the renovation is
complete. Dr. Ma explained the ED has been impacted due to the new Kaiser facility
and the Urgent Care Center on Jefferson, however we have made significant
improvements in permanent staffing and he believes the volume will pick-up.

New Business - None
Old Business -
a) Affiliation Update -

Dr. Ma shared that we will not meet our initial target of March 31st to have
definitive agreements in place with UCSD, however both entities remain very
enthusiastic about the opportunity and are working diligently to get through the
due diligence.

Chief of Staff —

Dr. Henry Showah, Chief of Staff presented the February 2024 Credentialing Actions
and Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff. No concerns or “red flags” were
raised by the Credentials Committee.

It was moved by Director Coulter to approve the February 2024
Credentialing Actions and Reappointments Involving the Medical Staff
as recommended by the Medical Executive Committee on February 26,
2024. Director Gleason seconded the motion.

The vote on the motion via a roll call vote was as follows:

AYES: Directors:  Chavez, Chaya, Coulter, Gleason,
Mizell, and Sanchez
NOES: Directors: None

ABSTAIN: Directors: None
ABSENT: Directors:  Younger

TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meseting - 3- February 29, 2024

L



17. Adjournment

There being no further business, Chairperson Younger adjourned the meeting at 3:55
p.m.

Nina Chaya, M.D.
Vice Chairperson

ATTEST:

Gigi Gleason, Secretary

e —
TCHD Regular Board of Directors Meeting - 5- February 29, 2024

B



ADVANCED HEALl b CARE

@3) Tri-City Medical Center vd@)1 M)

Building Oparating Leases
Month Ending Fabruary 29, 2024

: " | Rate per Total Rent per LeaseTerm 4 T ki ;
Leasor |.Sq.Ft. | Sq.ft current month | Beginning Ending s Services & Location ~_| Cost Center
6121 Paseo Del Norte, LLC
6128 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 180 OSNC - Carisbad
Carlsbad, CA 92011 Approx 6121 Pasao Dal Norle, Suite 200
V83024 9,552 $3.59 |{a) 53,103 84 07/01/17]  06/30/27|Carisbad, CA 92011 1005
Cardiff Invastments LLC
2729 Ocean St OSNC - Oceanside
Carisbad, CA 92008 Approx 3905 Warng Read
V#3204 10,218 $2.58 |(a) 37.447.94 0F01A17]  08/31/24|Oceanside, CA 92056 7095
Craek View Medical Assoc
1926 Via Centre Or. Suite A PCP Clinic Vista
Vista, CA 92081 Approx 1926 Via Cenlre Drive, Ste A
VH#81981 6,200 $2.70 |(a) 20,594.69 07/01/20] 06/30/25|Vvista, CA 92081 7090
SoCAL Heart Property LLC
1958 Via Centre Drive OSNC - Vista
Vista, Ca 92081 Approx 1958 Via Centre Drive
v#84195 4,995 $2.50 |(a) 18,075.40 10101/22f Q6130127 |vista, Ca 82081 7095
BELLA TIERRA INVESTMENTS, LLC
841 Prudential Dr, Suite 200 La Costa Urology
Jacksonville, FL 32207 Approx 3907 Waring Road, Suite 4
VH#B4264 2,460 $2.21 |{a) 7,158.60 04/01/23]  03/31/25|0ceanside, CA 92056 7082
Misslon Camino LLC
4350 La Jolla Village Drive Seaside Medical Group
San Diego, CA 92122 Appox 115 N EL Camino Real, Suite A
VEB3ITST 4,508 $1.75 |(a) 17,052.64 05/14/21 10/31/31)|0ceanside, CA 92058 7094
Nextmed Il Owner LLC
6125 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 210 PCP Clinic Calrsbad
Carisbad, CA 92011 Approx 6185 Paseo Del Norte, Suite 100
V#3774 4,553 $4.00 |(a) 23,811.92 09/01/21 08/31/33|Carisbad, CA 92011 7000
500 W Vista Way, LLC & HFT Melrose
P O Box 2522 Qutpatient Behavioral Health
La Jolla, CA 92038 Approx 510 Waest Vista Way
V81028 7.374 $1.67 |(a) 12,812.09 07/01/21 06/30/26] Vista, Ca 92083 7320
OPS Enterprises, LLC North County Oncology Madical
3617 Vista Way, Bldg. 5 Clinic
Oceanside, Ca 92056 Approx 3617 Vista Way, Bidg.5
/31250 7.000 $4.12 |(a) 31,749.00 10/01/22] 09/30/25{Oceanside, Ca 92056 7086
SCRIPPSYIEW MEDICAL ASSOCIATES
P O Box 234296 OSNC Encinitas Medical Center
Encinitas, CA 234296 Approx 351 Santa Fe Drive, Suite 351
V#83589 3,864 $3.45 |[{a} 14,880.52 06/01/21 05/31/26|Encinitas, CA 92023 1095
BELLA TIERRA INVESTMENTS, LLC
841 Prudential Dr, Suite 200 . Pulmonary Specialists of NC
Jacksonville, FL 32207 Approx 3907 Waring Road, Suita 2
V#84264 3.262 $2.21 [{a} 9.492.42 05/01/23]  06/30/25|Cceanside, CA 92056 7088
Total 246,179.08

{a) Total Rent includes Base Rent pius property taxes, association fees, insurance, CAM expenses, etc.



ADVANCED FAES A LT B ¢

( ) Tri-City Medical Center

Education & Travel Expense
Month Ending February 2024

Cost
Centers Description Invoice # Amount  Vendor # Attendees
8740 BCPS 20524 EDU 200.00 B4332 AVANESOV ARTHUR

**This report shows reimbursements to employees and Board members in the Education
& Travel expense category in excess of $100.00
**Detailed backup is available from the Finance department upon request.



	agenda.Regular Meeting.March.2024.Final
	Chief of Staff - 
	  (4)  Reports – (Discussion by exception only)
	Discussion of Items Pulled from Consent Agenda 

	agenda.packet.March.Board Portal
	agenda.packet.March.1 of 2
	agenda.packet.March 2 of 2
	agenda.packet.March 3 of 3




